
Ray Bagshaw 
Mavor 

Michael Hendrix 
Council Member 

Pam Henley 
Council Member 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

City Hall -Council Chamber 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida 

Tuesday, July 21, 2015 
6:30p.m. 

John Dowless 
Council President 

Neil Powell 
Council Member 

Dan Drummond 
Council Member 

WELCOME! We are very glad you have joined us for today's Council meeting. If you are not on the agenda, 
please complete an appearance form and hand it to the City Clerk. When you are recognized, state your 
name and address. The Council is pleased to hear relevant comments; however a five-minute limit has been 
set by Council. Large groups are asked to name a spokesperson. Robert's Rules of Order guide the conduct 
of the meeting. PLEASE SILENCE ALL CELLULAR PHONES AND PAGERS DURING THE MEETING. "THANK 
YOU'" for participating in your City Government. 

I A. CALL TO ORDER 

I B. INVOCATION 

I c. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I D. CONSENT AGENDA 

I. Review and Approval of Minutes 

• ~~~~~ City Clerk's Memo 

a. ~f.J!Il!a\] June 16, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

b. ~fti§'I~~'WJ:llJ!t~~ March 31, 2015 Edgewood City Council/Planning & Zoning Board 
Corrected Minutes 

Crowder Gulf - Contract for Disaster Recovery & Debris 

d. ~!f~ilj~"~i1Jli$llll&J Designate Mayor Bagshaw as voting delegate at the 891
h Annual 

Florida League of Cities Conference 

(Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature, therefore, do not warrant detailed 
discussion or individual action by the Council. Any member of the Council may remove any item from 
the consent agenda simply by verbal request prior to consideration of the consent agenda. The removed 
item(s) are moved to the end of New Business for discussion and consideration.) 

I E. PRESENTATIONS 



Regular Meeting July 21,2015 Page 2 

Representative Mike Miller- Legislative Update 

I F. ORDINANCES 

None. 

I G. PUBLIC HEARINGS (ORDINANCES- SECOND READINGS & RELATED ACTION) 

I. ~] ORDINANCE 2015-05 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA FORMALLY RENAMING MAIN STREET (AKA MAGNOLIA 
STREET) AS MAGNOLIA STREET PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

I H. NEW BUSINESS 

I. ~11,1] FY 14/15 Tentative Millage Rate 

I I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

I K. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

I L. BOARDS & COMMITTEES 

I. Planning & Zoning Board recommendations for the following: 

a. ~lf~Jj VARIANCE(S) APPLICATION FOR SUSAN FORTINI AT 5125 
THE OAKS CIRCLE. (APPLICATION V AR#2015-02) 

b. WJ§~j:a~'iij~~ft'~ V ARIANCE(S) APPLICATION FOR JEFF & HAYLEY BAKER 
AT 5566 JESSAMINE LANE. (APPLICATION VAR#2015-01) 

I M. STAFF REPORTS 

City Attorney 

Wl!~ifl~:.;;il~lcl Supreme Court of the United States RE: Reed eta!. v. Town of Gilbert, 
Arizona et a!. 

Police Chief 

Monthly report 



Regular Meeting July 21, 2015 Page 3 

City Clerk: 

IN. MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS 

Mayor Bagshaw 

Council President Dowless 

Council Member Powell 

Council Member Henley 

Council Member Drummond 

Council Member Hendrix 

I 0. ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

August, 3, 2015 ..................... Budget Workshop (9 a.m.) 
August 12, 2015 ....... , ............. Budget Workshop (6:30p.m.) 
August 17, 2015 ..................... Budget Workshop ( 6:30 p.m.-TENTATIVE) 
August 18, 2015 ..................... City Council Regular Meeting 
September 8, 2015 .................. City Council Special Meeting (6:30p.m.) 
September 14, 2015 ................ Planning & Zoning Board Meeting (6:30p.m.) 
September 21, 2015 ................ City Council Special Meeting (6:30p.m.) 

You are welcome to attend and express your opinion. Please be advised that Sectic;m286.0105, Florida Statutes state that if you 
decide to appeal a decision made with respect to any matter, you will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record is made. In accordance with the American Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person with a disability as 
defined by the ADA needs special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, he or she should telephone the City Clerk at 
(407) 851-2920. 



Fro-m.- f"'-.e,. ~ of f"'-.e,. Ci;ly Ctev-1<.. ... 

13~ '-· /llfuk,s;, Ml\lfv, CPI\If, VI3TO 

TO: Mayor Bagshaw, Council President Dowless, Council 

Members, Powell, Henley and Drummond 

DATE: July 14, 2015 

RE: Consent Agenda 

To aid you in your review of your agenda packet, I want to give further explanation of three of 
the consent agenda items. Please note the following: 

March 31, 2015 Edgewood Citv Council/Planning & Zoning Board Corrected Minutes 

The correction of the minutes comes at the request of John Moccio for the following reasons. 

I, Scrivener's error 

(Email excerpt from John Moccio) "I just read the minutes for the council meeting in 
March and wanted to point out 2 errors for the record. You have my business name as 
SDM auto when it's actually SMD Automotive." 

2. Correction 

"Error two is in paragraph 9 which states that I would like the pole signs removed . That 
is not correct . I am a proponent of pole signs and do not like everything looking exactly 
the same . Like the cookie cutter housing developments that do not thrill me. What I 
actually said to Councilman Drummond is that I am for removing the signs that are in 
very bad disrepair and would cost more to repair then to replace with a new sign. I was 
not sure how to set the record straight and if this is not the venue to do so let me know as 
I want to make sure the record reflects that. I do support pole signs with additional 
landscaping like planters etc." 

As you know, a scrivener's error does not require approval of corrected minutes. However, your 
approval for corrected minutes is required when a sustentative change is made, such as the one 
described in statement "2" above. 

Recommendation: Approve corrected minutes as presented. 

Crowder Gulf- Contract for Disaster Recovery & Debris Removal 

The City of Edgewood has maintained an Agreement with Crowder Gulf since 20 II. The 
Agreement is for the purpose of providing services for disaster recovery and debris removal. It 
is my understanding that the Agreement came about after Hurricanes, Charley, Francis, Jean and 



Ivan, and the concerns the City had regarding clean up after a disaster. Fortunately, Waste 
Management helped with debris removal, and received payment for their services when the City 
received funding from FEMA. The City of Edgewood was not the only City that Waste 
Management helped following these hurricanes. As a result, Waste Management realized that 
they may not always be available to help, or have the level of funding that is necessary to help the 
cities they helped that sustained damage during these hurricanes. To ensure that the City has 
immediate help following a disaster, they entered into an Agreement with Crowder Gulf. 
Essentially, the City is piggy-backing on the Contract that Orange County has with Crowder Gulf 
therefore, the City will receive the same level of service and pricing as the County. 

Recommendation: Approve and authorize the Mayor to execute the Contract for Disaster 
Recovery & Debris Removal, for a term beginning on June 2, 2015 and 
expiring May 31, 2018, along with the renewal clause for two additional 
one year terms for services. 

Designate Mayor Bagshaw as voting delegate at the 891
• Annual Florida League of Cities 

Conference · 

The Florida League of Cities' annual conference will be held August 13- 15,2015, at the World 
Center Marriott, Orlando, Florida. Every year the League asks the City to designate an official to 
be the voting delegate on behalf of the City. Delegates will be voting on Resolutions and 
legislative actions. As you know, Mayor Bagshaw currently serves as the President for the Tri
League of Cities and serves as a District Director on the Florida League of Cities Board of 

· Directors. The Mayor is registenid to attend the conference. 

Recommendation: Approve Mayor Bagshaw to represent the City as the voting delegate at 
the Florida League of Cities annual conference. 

2 



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, June 16,2015 

I CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Dowless opened the regular City Council meeting at 6:30 p.m. The invocation was 
given by Council Member Powell followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The following attendance is noted: 

CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Ray Bagshaw, Mayor 
John Dowless, Council President 
Neil Powell, D.D.S., Council Member 
Dan Drummond, Council Member 
Mike Hendrix, Council Member 
Pam Henley, Council Member 

STAFF 
Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
Chris Francisco, Police Chief 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 
Police Clerk/ Accreditation Manager Shannon Patterson 
Administrative Assistant Sandy Repp 
Sgt. John Freeburg 
Interim Detective Chris Meade 
Code Enforcement Officer Debbie Cabales 

I CONSENT AGENDA 

(Quorum) 

I. Review and Approval of Minutes (Compliment to City Clerk Meeks from Council President 
regarding Minutes) 

May 19,2015 Regular City Council Meeting 

Council Member Powell made the Motion to approve the May 19, 2015 Minutes; Seconded by 
Council Member Henley. 

Unanimously Approved (510). 

3 



Regular Meeting Minutes June 16, 2015 Page2 

I PRESENTATIONS 

None. 

I ORDINANCES 

I. ORDINANCE 2015-05- AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
FORMALLY RENAMING MAIN STREET (AKA 
MAGNOLIA STREET PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

City Attorney Smith gave the first reading of Orclinanc£ 

Council President Dowless opened for public 
the public hearing was closed. 

Council Member Henley made the 
Member Hendrix. 

EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA 
STREET) AS 

PROVIDING FOR 

County had no 

I. ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, 
102-71 OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF 

THE 2015 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY 
PUBLISHED BY THE INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL, 

WITH THERETO TO CONFORM TO FLORIDA LAW AND 
THE CITY'S EXISTING CODE OF ORDINANCES; REGULATING AND GOVERNING 
THE CONDITIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF ALL PROPERTY, BUILDINGS, AND 
STRUCTURES TO ENSURE THAT STRUCTURES ARE SAFE, SANITARY, AND FIT 
FOR OCCUPANCY AND USE; PROVIDING THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE SHALL BE SUPPLEMENTAL 
TO ALL OTHER CODES AND ORDINANCES OF THE CITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY, AND CONFLICTS, AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the Second/Final reading of Ordinance 2015-03 in title only. 

4 



Regular Meeting Minutes June 16, 2015 Page3 

Council President Dowless opened for public hearing. Having no questions or comments from the public; 
the public hearing was closed. There were no Council comments or discussion held. 

Council Member Henley made the Motion to approve Ordinance 2015-03; Seconded by Council 
President Dowless. 

The Motion passed with the following roll-call vote (411): 
Council Member Hendrix Favor 
Council Member Drummond Favor 
Council President Dowless 
Council Member Powell 
Council Member 

2. ORDINANCE 2015-04 - AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CHAPTER 18 -
REGULAR CITY ELECTION FOR 
MULTIPLE OF FOUR TO A DATE 
FLORIDA PRESIDENTIAL 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

Council Member 
Member Henley. 

Favor 
Nay 
Favor 

ED<GE1IIO<::m. FLORIDA 
DATE OF THE 

THAT ARE A 
OF THE 

FOR 

or comments from the public; 
held. 

Council 

In response to Mayor Bagshaw, City Clerk Meeks clarified that on Page 19 of her memo to Council, the 
sentence beginning with "Based on the 2009 amendment regarding Charter review .... " was her 
commentary. Council President Dowless said he agrees with the City Clerk's recommendation to appoint 
a Charter Review Committee in 2016, and plan for amendments to be on the 2017 ballot, if applicable. 
Council was in agreement with the City Clerk's recommendation. 

5 



Regular Meeting Minutes June 16, 2015 Page4 

2. Non Ad-Valorem Assessment 

Mayor Bagshaw recommended no increase. City Clerk Meeks gave a brief explanation of staff time 
regarding the non ad-valorem assessment. Consensus to accept Mayor Bagshaw's recommendation and 
not increase the non ad-valorem assessment 

3. Market Analysis Proposal 

COMPSPRING 
FLORIDA ECONOMIC 
RCLCO 

Council President Dowless said he and Mayor Bagshaw 
improvements planned for Orange Avenue. For this 
any of the proposals until there is a better nnriAr<tton 

President Dowless said he would like feedback 
President Dowless explained why he was in 

Council Member Powell said he was confused 
Bagshaw said he believed the · due to the 
at different costs for their services. 
helpful. Council President Dowless 

None. 

None. 

City Attorney: 

No report. 

Police Chief: 

• Monthly report 

with Metro Plan regarding the 
off on moving forward with 

is planning. Council 
the proposals. Council 
\dvisors (FEA). 

Mayor 
~;fl:erA1nt services 

connpariso'n would be 

Chief Francisco gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding his monthly activity report for the Police 
Department. Council President Dowless asked for information regarding educating residents on 

6 



Regular Meeting Minutes June 16, 2015 PageS 

situations that would require calling 911. Chief Francisco said this information will be in the next 
newsletter. Administrative Assistance Repp said she would highlight the information. Chief Francisco 
said that the Police Department is utilizing Next Door to get information out to the residents. 

Last item of discussion was regarding vehicles. Chief Francisco referred Council to the spreadsheet 
provided to them regarding the Police vehicles. Chief Francisco said he thinks there may be enough 
money left in his budget to purchase another vehicle. Council Member Henley said she does not believe 
the Police Department has the money. In response to Council Member Drummond, Chief Francisco said 
that the dealership did not say they would extend their previous offer to a vehicle however, they 
still have cars on their lot. Chief Francisco confirmed for Council Drummond that the purchase 
price of the vehicle is separate rrom the cost of the extended In response to Council Member 
Henley, Chief Francisco said his goal is not to make any to Car 58 and keep it as a pool car 
until a mechanic says it is unsafe or too expensive to not plan to retire any vehicles. 
Mayor Bagshaw said the goal should be to rotate cars. 

Council Member Drummond made the 1v~o•um 
purchase of a new vehicle in the amount of 
Council Member Hendrix. 

Unanimously approved (5/0) 

City Clerk: 

0 

Brief discussion was 
calendar. City Clerk 

No. report. 

Council Member 

No report. 

Council Member Henley 

No report. 

Council Member Drummond 

No report. 

forward with the 
i!arlran~'y; Seconded by 

revisions being made to the 
and provide to Council Members. 

7 



Regular Meeting Minutes June 16, 2015 Page6 

Council Member Hendrix 

• April2015 Financial Report 

No comments or discussion held regarding the April20 15 Financial Report. 

Having no further business or comments, the meeting 
Council Member Powell; Seconded by Council M•,ml~.e~ 

Be a 
City 

p.m. following the Motion of 

8 



March 31, 2015 
Edgewood City Council/Planning & Zoning Board 

Sign Workshop #3 

Attendees 
Ray Bagshaw, Mayor 

John Dowless, Council President 

Mike Hendrix, Council Member 

Dan Drummond, Council Member 

Neil Powell, DDS, Council Member 

Planning & Zoning 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 

Marion Rayburn 

Chris Rader 

Staff 
Chris Francisco, Police Chief 

Bea L. Meeks, City Clerk 

Drew Smith, City Attorney 

Ellen Hardgrove, AICP 

Debbie Cabales, Code Enforcement Officer 

Sandra Repp, Administrative Assistant 

Council President Dowless opened the Joint Workshop at 6:32 p.m. Council President Dowless 

dispensed with the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. He acknowledged the Planning & Zoning 

members in attendance. Mayor Bagshaw requested all in attendance introduced themselves. City Clerk 

Meeks said a sign-in sheet will be provided for everyone to sign in, so that there is a record of the 

attendees who introduced themselves. City Clerk Meeks said the contact information provided will also 

be used to send updates. She reminded everyone that the information provided on the sign-in sheet is 

public information. 

Council President Dowless introduced Planner, Ellen Hardgrove, who referred to the support 

documents in the agenda packet. She gave a brief explanation of the background regarding the 

beautification of Orange Avenue. She said there is nothing new; the bottom line is that with the sign 

9 



Mr. Moccio also pointed out that it could be a problem to sell the property if the sign is not compliant. 

Council Member Drummond said that looking at it from a community point of view, did Mr. Moccio 

think the community would be improved by eliminating the pole signs. Mr. Moccio said yes but it needs 

to be a case-by-case 1\li a.. ':~ . . . 
llfl!l!lfe'rJl Council Member Drummond said the City does not wantto create a business hazard. 

Tim Bartlett {Adrenaline Films) asked about the landscaping. He said he thought his sign was compliant 

but worried about the landscaping. He said he is concerned about anything that walks, as it relates to 

the three foot hedge (to hedge the vehicular use area) . Mayor Bagshaw said that he believes this was 

required so that headlights did not shine onto the street causing a hazard. Planner Hardgrove said Mr. 

Bartlett's property has been specifically discussed and the property is fine. Council President Dowless 

said that this is an area that needs clarification (hedges). 

Resident Bonnie Bagshaw, said that for the past four years since her husband has been Mayor, there 

were changes on Colonial Drive {SR 50), i.e. Mills 50. She said these areas formed committees and 

became involved in changing their area. She said she prescribes to the Mills 50 newsletter. She 

explained that every time she receives their newsletter, there is a new business opening. She said the 

purpose of what the City is doing is to make it so that businesses are clamoring to open their business in 

Edgewood. She referenced areas that do have landscaping that causes site issues. She said she agrees 

that the business owners need to look at their spots. She said if the business owners are interested, she 

will send them the information about Mills 50. She referred to the Edgewood District website. She said 

if they have something going on that they want her to post, let her know, she will post it. 

Dan Riederich, Dan Saw & Tool said if he had to go to a drive-by business, he would not stop. He said 

the speed limit needs to be reduced at least by five miles per hour. 

Chris Rader, Planning & Zoning Board, said he is an engineer and understands the Code and the process. 

He said he has attended every workshop and says the goals and intent of Council is to help the 

businesses. He said he views what Council is doing as a partnership. 

Mayor Bagshaw said he wants the City to become a City that Realtors want to do their business in. 

Chief Francisco introduced Code Enforcement Officer Debbie Cabales. He said he has an open door 

policy and if there are ever any concerns or problems see him or Sgt. Jackson, who is Code Enforcement 

Officer Cabales' supervisor. 

March 31, 2015 City Councii/P&Z Joint Workshop 4 

10 



City Attorney Smith said the next step is tweaking the Code regarding signage and landscaping and 

working on the drafts. Mayor asked John Moccio to let the City know if they are anticipating a large 

attendance, as the City may have to move the meeting. 

Meeting adjourned 8:06 p.m. 

John Dowless 
Council President 

Approved by Council on 

March 31, 2015 

ATTEST: 

Bea L. Meeks, MMC, CPM, CBTO 
City Clerk 

City Councii/P&Z Joint Workshop 5 

11 



5435 Business Parkway 
Theodore, Alabama 36582 

June 16, 2015 

rowder ulf 
Disaster Recovery and Debris Management 

Office: (800) 992-6207 
Fax: (251) 459-7433. 

Honorable Ray Bagshaw 
Mayor of the City of Edgewood 
405 Larue Avenue 

via email: rbagshaw@edgewood-fl.gov 

Edgewood, FL 32809 

Re: Contract for Disaster Recovery & Debris Removal 

Dear Mayor Bagshaw: 

Please allow this letter to serve as CrowderGulf's commitment to provide Disaster Recovery & Debris 
Removal to the City of Edgewood under the same terms and conditions of the Orange County contract 
#Y15-1022-CH Disaster Recovery & Debris Removal. It is the intent of the County to enter into a three 
{3) year term contract beginning on June 1, 2015, with renewal clause for two (2) additional one (1) year 
terms for services as described herein. The City of Edgewood's contract will begin upon approval of this 
letter and will expire on May 31. 201 B. 

The City of Edgewood will receive the same level of support and pricing as stated in the Orange County 
contract. The City's contract will be administrated independently of Orange County and all issues will be 
handled direct with CrowderGulf. Please acknowledge the City of Edgewood's acceptance of this 
agreement by signing and returning a copy of this letter for our files. 

Thank you for this opportunity and we look forward to working with you in the future if our services are 
requested. If you have any questions. or if we can be of any further assistance. please do not hesitate to 
contact me or Ashley Ramsay at the CrowderGulf Disaster Administration Offic~ 800-992-6207. 

Best regards, 

APPROVED BY: City of Edgewood, FL 

Signature: 

Name/Title: 

Date: 

12 



Disaster Recovery & D~bris Management 

Contact Information 
DISASTER ADMINISTRATION OFFICE (DAO) 

5435 BUSINESS PARKWAY 
THEODORE, ALABAMA 36582 

24 Hours I 7 Days a Week 
800-992-6207 Phone 

251-459-7433 Fax 

In the event of activation please contact the Disaster 
Administration Office {DAO) first 800-992-6207 

Please ask for Ashley Ramsay-Naile. 

Official Notices should be sent to 
DAO address, DAO fax or jramsay@crowdergulf.com 

John Ramsay 
President - Director 
251-402-3677 Cell 

jramsay@crowdergulf.com 

John Campbell 
Regional Director 
859-963-8672 Cell 

jcampbell@crowdergulf.com 

Ashley Ramsay-Naile 
Chief Operating Officer 

646-872-1548 Cell 
aramsay@crowdergulf.com 

Buddy Young 
Regional Director 
940-597-4252 Cell 

byoung@crowdergulf.com 

Margaret R. Wright, Ph. D. 
Senior Manager 

251-604-6346 Cell 
mwriqht@crowdergulf.com 

13 



Contract# Y15·1 022-C 

This contract is made as of the 41
h dav of June, 2015 by and between Orange County,· 

a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida, by and through its Board of County 
Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the COUNTY, and CrowderGulf J.oint 
Venture, Inc., a corporation authorized to do business in the. State of Florida, 
hereinafter referred to as the CONTRACTOR, whose Federal J.D. number is 
010626019. 

In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the COUNTY and the 
CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 ·SERVICES 

The CONTRACTOR'S . responsibility under this contract is to provide 
professional/consultation services in the area of Disaster Recovery and Debris 
Removal, as more specifically set forth in the Scope of Services detailed in Exhibit "A". 

The COUNTY'S representativefliaison during the performance of this contract shall be 
Ralphetta Aker, telephone no. 407-836-8011. 

ARTICLE 2 • SCHEDULE 

The CONTRACTOR shall commence services on June 1, 2015 and complete all 
services by May 31. 2018. 

Reports and other items shall be delivered or completed in accordance with the detailed 
schedule set forth in Attachment "A". 

This contract may be renewed, by mutual agreement, for additional periods up to a 
cumulative total of five (5) years at the same prices, terms and conditions. Any change 
in price, terms or conditions shall be accomplished by written amendment to this 
contract. 

Any order issued during the effective date of this contract, but not completed within that 
period, shall be completed by the CONTRACTOR within the time specified in the order. 
The contract shall govern the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY'S rights and obligations 
with respect to the extent as if the order were completed during the contract's 
performance period. 

ARTICLE 3 ·PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR 

A. The CONTRACTOR will bill the COUNTY on a monthly basis, or as otherwise 
provided, at the amounts set forth in Attachment "B" for services rendered toward 
the completion of the Scope of Services. 

1 

14 



Where· incremental billing for partially completed items is permitted, the total 
incremental billings shall not exceed the percentage of estimated completion as 
of the billing date. 

B. Invoices received from the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this contract will be 
reviewed and approved by the initiating COUNTY Department, indicating that 
services have been rendered in conformity with the contract and then will be sent 
to the Finance Department for payment. Invoices must reference this contract 
number. Invoices will be paid in accordance with the State of Florida Prompt 
Payment Act. 

C. Final Invoice: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, 
the. CONTRACTOR will clearly state "final invoice" on the CONTRACTOR'S 
final/last billing to the COUNTY. This certifies that all services have been 
properly performed and all charges and costs have been .invoiced to Orange 
County. Since this account will thereupon be closed, any and other further 
charges if not properly included on this final invoice are waived by the 
CONTRACTOR. . 

ARTICLE 4 ·TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE 

Signature of this contract by the CONTRACTOR shall act as the execution of the truth
in-negotiation certificate certifying that the wage rates and costs used to determine the 
compensation provided for in this contract are accurate, complete and current as of the 
date of the contract and no higher than those ~harged the CONTRACTOR'S most 
favored customer for the same or substantially similar service. 

The said rates and costs shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums should the 
COUNTY determine that the rates and costs were increased due to inaccurate, 
incomplete or non-current wage rates or due to inaccurate representations of fees paid 
to outside consultants. The COUNTY shall exercise its right under this "Certificate" 
within one ( 1) year following final payment. 

ARTICLE 5 • TERMINATION. 

A. Termination for Default: 

The COUNTY may, by written notice to the CONTRACTOR, terminate this 
contract for default in whole or in part (delivery orders, if applicable) if the 
CONTRACTOR fails to: 

1. Provide products or services that comply with the specifications herein or 
fails to meet the COUNTY'S performance standards 

2. Deliver the supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in 
this contract or any extension. 

3. Make progress so as to endanger performance of this contract 

4. Perform any of the other provisions of this contract. 

2 

15 



Prior to termination for default, the COUNTY will provide adequate written notice 
to the CONTRACTOR through the Manager, Procurement Division, affording 
him/her the opportunity to cure the deficiencies or to submit a specific plan to 

·resolve the deficiencies within ten (1 0) days (or the period specified in the notice) 
after receipt of the notice. Failure to adequately cure the deficiency shall result in 
termination action. Such termination may also result in suspension or debarment 
of the CONTRACTOR in accordance with the County's Procurement Ordinance. 
The CONTRACTOR and its sureties (if any) shall be liable for any damage to the 
COUNTY resulting from the CONTRACTOR'S default of the contract. This 
liability includes any increased costs incurred by the COUNTY in completing 
contract performance. 

In the event of termination by the COUNTY for any cause, . the CONTRACTOR 
will have, in no event, any claim against the COUNTY for lost profits or 
compensation for lost opportunities. After a receipt of a Termination Notice and 
except as otherwise directed by the COUNTY the CONTRACTOR shall: 

1. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified. 

2. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the 
performance of the terminated work. 

3. Transfer all work in process, .completed work, and other materials related 
to the terminated work as directed by the COUNTY. 

4. Continue and complete all parts of that work that have not been 
terminated. 

Neither CONTRACTOR nor COUNTY shall be liable, nor may cancel this 
contract for default, when delays arise out of causes beyond the control of 
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY. Such causes may include but are not restricted to 
acts of God, acts of COUNTY in sovereign capacHy, fires, floods, lightning 
strikes, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, wars, civil 
disturbances, work stoppage, power failures, laws, regulations, ordinances, acts 
or orders of any governmental agency or official thereof, and unusually severe 
weather. In every case, the delay must be beyond the control of the claiming 
party. If CONTRACTOR is delayed in its performance as a result of the above 
causes, COUNTY, shall upon written request of CONTRACTOR, agree to 
equitably adjust the provisions of this contract, including price and delivery, as 
may be affected by such delay. However, this provision shall not be interpreted 
to limit COUNTY'S right to terminate for convenience. 

3 

16 



B. Termination for Convenience 

The COUNTY, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, 
when it is in the COUNTY'S interest. If this contract is terminated, the COUNTY 
shall be liable only for goods or services delivered and accepted. 

The COUNTY Notice of Termination shall provide the CONTRACTOR thirty (30) 
days prior notice before it becomes effective. A termination for convenience 
may apply to individual delivery orde!'§. purchase orde!'§ or to the contract 
in its entirety. 

ARTICLE 6.- PERSONNEL 

The CONTRACTOR represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 
necessary personnel required to perform the services under this contract. Such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the 
COUNTY. 

All of the services required hereafter shall be performed by the CONTRACTOR or under 
its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully 
qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform· 
such services. 

Any changes or substitutions in the CONTRACTOR'S key personnel, as may be listed 
in Exhibit "A", must be made known to the COUNTY'S representative and written 
approval must be granted by the COUNTY before said change or substitution can 
become effective. 

The CONTRACTOR warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and 
competent personnel to the highest professional standards in the field. The COUNTY 
may require, in writing, that the CONTRACTOR remove from this contract any 
employee the COUNTY deems incompetent, careless, or otherwise objectionable. 

ARTICLE 7- FEDERAL AND STATE TAX 

The COUNTY is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The 
COUNTY will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the CONTRACTOR. The 
CONTRACTOR shall not be exempted from paying sales tax to its suppliers for 
materials used to fulfill contractual obligations with the COUNTY, nor is the 
CONTRACTOR authorized to use the COUNTY'S Tax Exemption Number in securing 
such materials. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for payment of its own and its share of its 
employee FICA and Social Security benefits with respect to this contract. 

ARTICLE 8 -AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS 

The COUNTY'S performance and obligation to pay under this contract is contingent 
upon an annual appropriation for its purpose by the Board of County Commissioners, or 
other specified funding source for this procurement. 

4 

17 



ARTICLE 9 -INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain on a primary basis and at its sole expense, at all 
times throughout the . duration of this contract the following types of insurance 
coverage with limits and on forms (including endorsements) as described herein. 

These requirements, as well as the COUNTY'S review or acceptance of insurance 
maintained by CONTRACTOR is not intended to and shall not in any manner lim.it or 
qualify the liabilities assumed by CONTRACTOR under this contract. CONTRACTOR 
is required to maintain any coverage required by federal and state workers' 
compensation or financial responsibility. laws including but not limited to Chapter 324 
and 440, Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time to time. 

The CONTRACTOR shall require and ensure that each of its subcontractors providing 
services hereunder (If any) procures and maintains until the completion of their 
respective services, insurance of the types and to the limits specified herein. 

Insurance carriers providing coverage required herein must be licensed to conduct 
business in the State of Florida and must possess a current A.M. Besfs Financial 
Strength Rating of A- Class VIII or better. 
(Note: State licenses can be checked via www.floir.com/companvsaarchl and A.M. 
Best Ratings are available at www.ambest.coml 

Required Coverage: 

181 Commercial General Liability - The CONTRACTOR shall maintain 
coverage issued on the most recent version of the ISO form as filed for use 
in Florida or its equivalent, with a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence. CONTRACTOR further agrees coverage shall not contain 
any endorsement(s) excluding or limiting Product/Completed Operations, 
Contractual Liability, or Separation of Insureds. The General Aggregate 
Omit shall either apply separately to this contract or shall be at least twice 
the required occurrence limit. 

Required Endorsements: 

1Z1 Additional Insured- CG 20 26 or CG 20 10/CG 20 37 or their 
equivalents. 
Note: CG 20 10 must be accompanied by CG 20 37 to include 
products/completed operations 

1Z1 Waiver of Transfer of Rights of Recovery- CG 24 04 or its 
equivalent. 
Note: If blanket endorsements are being submitted please include 
the entire endorsement and the applicable policy number. 

tZI Business Automobile . Liability - The CONTRACTOR shall maintain 
coverage for all owned; non-owned and hired vehicles issued on the most 
recent version of the ISO form as filed for use in Florida or its equivalent, 
with limits of not less than $500,000 (five hundred thousand dollars) per 
accident. In the event the CONTRACTOR does not own automobiles the 

5 

18 



CONTRACTOR shall maintain coverage for hired and non-owned auto 
liability, which may be satisfied by way of endorsement to the Commercial 
General Liability policy or separate Business Auto Liability policy. 

Required Endorsements: 

~ MCS-90- for operations governed by the Sections 29 & 30 of the 
Motor Carrier Act of 1980 

1Z1 Workers' Compensation - The CONTRACTOR shall maintain coverage for 
its employees with statutory workers' compensation limits,. and no less than 
$500,000 each Incident of bodily injury or disease for Employers' Liability. 
Elective exemptions as defined in Florida Statute 440 will be considered on 
a case-by-case basis. Any CONTRACTOR using an employee leasing 
company shall complete the Leased Employee Affidavit. 

Required Endorsements: 

~ Waiver of Subrogation- WC 00 03 13 or its equivalent 

~ Pollution Liability- with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence/claim 

When a self-insured retention or deductible exceeds $100,000 the COUNTY 
reserves the right to request a copy of CONTRACTOR most recent annual report 
or audited financial statement. For policies written on a "Claims-Made" basis the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain a retroactive date prior to or equal to the 
effective date of this contract. In the event the policy is canceled, non-renewed, 
switched to occurrence form, or any other event which triggers the right to 
purchase a Supplemental Extended Reporting Period (SERP) during the life of 
this co11tract the CONTRACTOR agrees to purchase the SERPwith a minimum 
reporting period of not less than two years. Purchase of the SERP shall not 
relieve the CONTRACTOR of the obligation to provide replacement coverage. 

By entering into this contract CONTRACTOR agrees to provide a waiver of 
subrogation or a waiver of transferofrights of recovery, in favor of the COUNTY 
for the workers' compensation and general liability policies as required herein. 
When required by the insurer or should a policy condition not permit ·the 
CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without 

· an endorsement, then CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and request 
the policy be endorsed with a Waiver of Subrogation or a Waiver of Transfer of 
Rights of Recovery Against Others endorsement. 

Prior to execution and commencement of any operations/services provided 
under this contract the CONTRACTOR shall provide the COUNTY with current 
certificates of insurance evidencing all required coverage. In addition to the 
certificate(s) of insurance the CONTRACTOR shall also provide endorsements 
for each policy as specified above. All specific policy endorsements shall be in 
the name of the Orange County Board of County Commissioners. 

For continuing service contracts renewal certificates shall be submitted 

6 

19 



immediately upon request by either the COUNTY or the COUNTY's contracted 
certificate compliance management firm. The certificates shall clearly indicate 
that the CONTRACTOR has obtained insurance of the type, amount .and 
classification as required for strict compliance with this insurance section. 

CONTRACTOR shall notify the COUNTY not Jess than thirty (30) business days 
(ten business days for non-payment of premium) of any material change in or 
cancellation/non-renewal of insurance coverage. The CONTRACTOR shall 
provide evidence of replacement coverage to maintain compliance with the 
aforementioned insurance requirements to the COUNTY . or its certificate 
management representative five (5) business days prior to the effective date of 
the replacement policy(ies). 

The certificate holder shall read: 

Orange County Board of County Commissioners 
c/o Procurement Division 
400 E. South Street, 2nd Floor 
Orlando, Florida 32801 

ARTICLE 10 -.INDEMNIFICATION 

To the fullest extent permitted by Jaw, the CONTRACTOR shall defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless the COUNTY, its officials, agents, and employees from and against any 
and all clalms, suits, judgments, demands, liabilities, damages, cost and expenses 
(including attorney's fees) of any kind or nature whatsoever arising directly or indirectly 
out of or caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the CONTRACTOR or its 
subcontractors (if any), anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyorie for 
whose acts any of them may be liable; excepting those acts or omissions arising out of 
the sole negligence oflhe COUNTY. 

ARTICLE 11 -SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

The COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR each binds itself and Hs partners, successors, 
executors, administrators and assigns to the other party of this contract and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in 
respect to all covenants of this contract. Except as above, neither the COUNTY nor the 
CONTRACTOR shall assign, sublet, convey .or transfer its interest in this contract 
without the written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating 
any personal liability on the· part of any officer or agent of the COUNTY which may be a 
party hereto, nor shall it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to 
anyone other than the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR. 

ARTICLE 12- REMEDIES 

This contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any 
litigation involving this contract shall be the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, 
Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any 
other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in 
addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or at 
equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, 

7 

20 



power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof. 

ARTICLE 13 ·CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The CONTRACTOR represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no 
interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any. manner with the 
pelformance or services required hereunder, as provided for in Florida Statutes 
112.311. The CONTRACTOR further represents that no person having any interest 
shall be employed for said performance. 

The CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the COUNTY in writing by certified mail of all 
potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other 
circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the CONTRACTOR'S 
judgment or quality of services being provided hereunder. Such written .notification shall 
identify the prospective business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of 
work that the CONTRACTOR may undertake and request an opinion of the COUNTY 
as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the 
COUNTY, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the CONTRACTOR. The 
COUNTY agrees to notify the CONTRACTOR of its opinion by certified mail within thirty 

· (30) days of receipt of the notification by the CONTRACTOR. If, in the opinion of the 
COUNTY, the prospective business association, interest or circumstance would not 
constitute a conflict of interest by the CONTRACTOR, the COUNTY shall so state in the 
notification and the CONTRACTOR shall, at its option, enter into said association, 
interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed. not in conflict of interest with respect to 
services provided to the COUNTY by the CONTRACTOR under the terms of this 
contract. 

ARTICLE 14 ·EXCUSABLE DELAYS 

The CONTRACTOR shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in 
performance if such failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the 
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. 

ARTICLE 15- PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS 

Payment and Performance Bonds: The CONTRACTOR shall execute and deliver to 
the County the Payment and Performance Bonds (see ATTACHMENTS H AND I) 
included herein as security for the faithful performance and completion of the Work and 
payment for all materials and labor furnished or supplied in connection with ail Work 
included in the Contract Documents. These Bonds shall be in amounts at least equal to 
the Contract Amount, shall name the County as obHgee and shall be in such form and 
by sureties of financial standing having a rating from A.M. Best Company (or other 
equivalent rating company) equal to or better than A- VI and must be included on the 
approved list of sureties issued by the United States Department of Treasury. Prior to 
execution of the Contract Documents the County may require the Contractor to furnish 
such other Bonds, in such form and with such sureties as it may require. If such Bonds 
are required by written instructions given prior to opening of Bids, the premium shall be 
paid by the Contractor. If the Contract Amount is increased by Change Order,· it shall 
be the Contractor's responsibility to insure that the Payment and Performance Bonds be 
amended accordingly and a copy of the amendment is forwarded to the County. 

8 

21 



If the Surety on any bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes 
insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any State where any part of the 
Work is located or it ceases to meet the requirements imposed by the Contract 
Documents, the Contractor shall within five (5) days thereafter substitute another Bond 
with another Surety both of which shall be acceptable to the County. 

ARTICLE 16- ARREARS 

The CONTRACTOR shall not pledge the COUNTY'S credit or make it a guarantor of 
payment or surety for any contract, debt, obfigation, judgment, lien, or any form of 
indebtedness. The CONTRACTOR further warrants and represents that it has no 
obligation or indebtedness that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this contract. 

ARTICLE 17 ·DISCLOSURE AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

The CONTRACTOR shall deliver to the COUNTY for approval and acceptance, and 
before being eligible for final payment or any amounts due, all documents and materials 
prepared by and for the COUNTY under this contract. 

All oral and written information not in the public domain or not previously known, and all 
information and data obtained, developed or supplied by the COUNTY, or at its 
expense, will be kept confidential by the CONTRACTOR and will not be disclosed to 
any other party, directly or indirectly, without the COUNTY'S prior written consent 
unless required by a lawful order. All drawings, maps, sketches, programs, data base, 
reports and other data developed, or purchased, under this contract for or at the 
COUNTY'S expense shall be and remain the COUNTY'S property and may be 
reproduced at the discretion of the COUNTY. 

The COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes (Public Records Law). 

All covenants, agreements, representations and warranties made herein, or otherwise 
made in writing by any party pursuant hereto, including but not limited to any 
representations made herein relating to disclosure or ownership of documents, shall 
survive the execution and delivery of this contract and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

ARTICLE 18 ·INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP 

The CONTRACTOR is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and 
activities under this contract, an Independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent or 
servant of the COUNTY. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed 
pursuant to this contract shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the 
CONTRACTOR'S sole direction, supervision, and control. 

The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and 
its employees perform the work, and in all respects the CONTRACTOR'S relationship 
and the relationship· of its employees to the COUNTY shall be that of an Independent 
Contractor and not as employees or agents of the COUNTY. 

9 

22 



The CONTRACTOR does not have the power or authority to bind the COUNTY in any 
promise, agreement or representation other than as specifically provided for in this 
contract. · 

ARTICLE 19- CONTINGENT FEES 

The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CONTRACTOR to solicit 
or secure this contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, 
corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 
CONTRACTOR, any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration 
contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this contract. 

ARTICLE 20 -ACCESS AND AUDITS 

The CONTRACTOR shall establish and maintain a reasonable accounting system, 
which enables ready identification of CONTRACTOR'S cost of goods and use of funds. 
Such accounting system shall also include adequate records and documents to justify 
all prices for all items Invoiced as well as all charges, expenses and costs incurred in 
providing the goods for at least five (5) years after completion of this contract. The 
COUNTY or its designee shall have access to such books, records, sub-contract(s), 
financial operations; and documents of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors as 
required to comply with this section for the purpose of inspection or audit anytime during 
normal business hours at the CONTRACTOR'S place of b1,1siness. This right to audit 
shall include the CONTRACTOR'S subcontractors used to procure goods or services 
under the contract with the COUNTY. CONTRACTOR shall ensure the COUNTY has 
these same rights with subcontractor(s) and suppliers. 

ARTICLE 21 -EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

It is hereby declared that equal opportunity and nondiscrimination shall be the 
COUNTY'S policy intended to assure equal opportunities to every person, regardless of 
race, religion, sex, sexual orientation and gender expression/identity, color, age, 
disability or national origin, in securing or holding employment in a field of work or labor 
for which the person is qualified, as provided by Section 17-314 of the Orange County 
Code and the County Administrative Regulations. 

Further, the CONTRACTOR shall abide by. the following provisions: 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall represent that the CONTRACTOR has adopted and 
maintains a policy of nondiscrimination as defined by applicable COUNTY 
ordinance throughout the term ofthis contract. 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall allow reasonable access to all business and 
employment records for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with the non
discrimination provision of the contract. 

C. The provisions of the prime contract shall be incorporate by the CONTRACTOR 
into the contracts of any applicable subcontractors. 

10 

23 



ARTICLE 22 ·ENTIRETY OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 

The COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR agree that this contract sets forth the entire 
agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other 
than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this 
contract may be added to, deleteq, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except 
by written instrument executed by the parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 23 ·ENFORCEMENT COSTS 

If any legal action or other proceeding is brought fcir the enforcement of this contract, or 
because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with 
any provisions of this contract; the successful or prevailing party or parties shall be 
entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees, court costs and all expenses (including 
taxes) even if not taxable as court costs (including, without limitation, all such fees, 
cpsts and expenses incident to appeals), incurred in that action or proceeding, in 
addition to any other relief to which such party or parties may be entitled. 

ARTICLE 24 ·AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE 

The CONTRACTOR hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to 
maintail) all licenses and approvals required to, conduct its business, and that it will at 
all times conduct its business activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses 
and approvals shall be submitted to the COUNTY upon request. 

ARTICLE 25 • SEVERABILITY 

If any term or provision of this contract, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 
this contract, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances 
other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, 
and every other term and provision of this contract shall be deemed valid and 
enforceable to the extent permitted by law. 

54ARTICLE 26 • MODIFICATIONS OF WORK 

The COUNTY reserves the right to make changes in the work, including alterations, 
reductions therein or additions thereto. Upon receipt by the CONTRACTOR of· the 
COUNTY'S notification of a contemplated change, the CONTRACTOR shall (1) if 
requested by COUNTY, provide an estimate for the increase or decrease in cost due to 
the contemplated change, (2) notify the COUNTY of any estimated change in the 
completion date, and (3) advise the COUNTY in writing if the contemplated change shall 
affect the CONTRACTOR'S ability to meet the completion dates or schedules of this 
contract. 

If the COUNTY so instructs in writing, the CONTRACTOR shall suspend work on that 
portion of the work affected by a contemplated change, pending the COUNTY'S 

·decision to proceed with the change. 

If the COUNTY elects to make the change, the COUNTY shall issue a contract 
Amendment or Change Order and the CONTRACTOR shall not commence work on any 

11 

24 



such change until such written amendment or change order has been issued · and 
signed by each of the parties. 

ARTICLE 27- CONTRACT CLAIMS 

"Claim" as used in this provision means a written demand orwritten assertion by one of 
the contracting parties seeking as a matter of right, the payment of a certain sum of 
money, the adjustment or lnterpretationof contract terms, or other relief arising under or 
relating to this contract. · 

Claims made by a CONTRACTOR against the COUNTY relating to a particular contract 
shall be submitted to the Procurement Division Manager in writing clearly labeled 
"Contract Claim" requesting a final decision. 

The CONTRACTOR also shall provide with the claim a certification as follows: "I certify 
that the claim is made In good faith; that the supporting data are accurate and complete 
to the best of my knowledge and belief; that the amount requested accurately reflects 
the contract adjustment for which the CONTRACTOR believes the COUNTY is liable; 
and that I am duly authorized to certify the claim on behalf of the CONTRACTOR." 

Failure to document a claim in this manner shall render the claim null and void. 
Moreover. no claim shall be accepted after final payment ofthe contract. 

The decision of the Procurement. Division Manager shall be issued in writing and shall 
be furnished to the CONTRACTOR. The decision shall state the reasons for the 
decision reached. The Procurement Division Manager shall render the final decision 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of Contractor's/Consultant's written request for a final 
decision. The Procurement Division Manager's decision shall be final and conclusive. 

The CONTRACTOR shall proceed diligently with performance of this contract pending 
final resolution of any request for relief, claim, appeal or action arising under the 
contract and shall comply with any final decision rendered by the Manager of 
Procurement Division. 

ARTICLE 28 ·TOBACCO FREE CAMPUS 

All Orange County operations under the Board of County Commissioners shall be 
tobacco free. This policy shall apply to parking Jots, parks, break areas and worksites. 
It is also applicable to CONTRACTORS and their personnel during contract 
performance on county-owned property. Tobacco is defined as tobacco products 
including, but not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, a-cigarettes, pipes, chewing tobacco and 
snuff. Failure to abide by this policy may result in civil penalties levied under Chapter 
386, Florida Statutes and/or contract enforcement remedies. 

ARTICbE29- VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

Prior to the employment of any person under this contract, the CONTRACTOR shall 
utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the 
employment eligibility of (a) all persons employed during the contract term by the 
CONTRACTOR to perform employment duties within Florida and (b) all persons, 
including subcontractors, assigned by the CONTRACTOR to perform work pursuant to 

12 

25 



the contract with Orange County. Please refer to USCIS.gov for more information on 
this process. 

Only those emplovees determined eligible to work within the United States shall 
be employed under the contract. 

Therefore, by submission of a bid or proposal . in response to this solicitation, the 
CONTRACTOR confirms that all employees in the above categories will undergo a
verification before placement on this contract~ The CONTRACTOR further confirms his 
commitment to comply with this requirement by completing the E- Verification 
certification. 

ARTICLE 30- LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

All applicable Federal and State laws, municipal and COUNTY ordinances shall apply to 
the solicitation and contract. 

ARTICLE 31 -ADDENDA 

All requirements contained in any addenda to the solicitation for this procurement are 
part of and hereby incorporated into this contract. 

ARTICLE 32- FEDERAL PROVISIONS 

Attachment K, Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 13.36 is hereby Incorporated 
Into the Contract 

13 

26 



ARTICLE 32 • NOTICE 

All notices required in this contract shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, and If sent to the COUNTY shall be mailed to: 

Johnnv M. Richardson. Manager, CPPO. CFCM 

Orange County Procurement Division 

400 E. South Street. 2"d Floor. Orlando. Florida 32801 

Phone: 407-836-5635 Fax: 407-836-5899 

and If sent to the CONTRACTOR shall be mailed to: 

Mr. John Ramsav 

CrowderGulf Joint Venture. Inc;. 

5435 Business Parkwav. Theodore AL 36582 

Telephone: 251-459-7430 or 800-992-6207 

Email: jramsav@crowdergulf.com 

14 

27 



c.-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of County Commissioners of Orange County, 
Florida has made and executed this contract on behalf of the COUNTY and 
CONSULTANT has hereunto set its hand the day and year above written. 

CONSULTANT: 0 / OUN LORI~ 
CrowderGulf Joint Ventur /) 
Company Name nny Ri a n, PO, CFC 

~l:l tJ BA M SAY 
Typed Name 

0RE£li)ENI 
title 

Date 

nt Division Manager 

V"Lf-?~ 
Date 

15 

28 



Point Clear Insurance Services LLC 
368 Commercial Park Drive 
Fairhope, AL 36532-1910 

CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. 
5435 s·usiness Parkway 
Theodore, AL 36582-1675 

co 
LTR 

A 0 
OWNER'S & CONTRACTOR'S PROT 

I 
ANY AUTO 
ALL OWNED AUTOS 
SCHEDULED AUTOS 

A HIRED AUTOS 
NON-OWNED AUTOS 

A 

XSGL-074127 

XSAL-075123 

GX5-042963 

A GWC-D70B43·FL 1 

primary 

contract #Y15- 1022-C, Disaster Recove':Y and Oebrls Removal 

Orange County Board of County COmmissioners 
Procurement Division 
400 E. Soulh St. 
O~ando, FL 32801 

Louisiana certificate form: 
LDI COl 280990 01 12 

I I 
CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOlDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND. EXTEND OR AlTER THE COVERAGE 

9/1/201.11 91112017 

9/1/2014 9/1/2017 

9/1/2014 91112015 

911/2014 9/1/2015 

a waiver of Subrogalion. all if req..~ired by wri!len.contract. The above msurance poliCieS $haU be 
required by written contracl. 

29 



CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE Page 2 

THE GRAY INSURANCE COMPANY 

The below coverages apply if the corresponding policy number is indicated on the previous page. 

A. Commercial General Liability 

Genera/liability Policy Includes: 
Blanket Waiver of Subrogation when required by written contract. 
Blanket Additional insured (CGL Form# CG 20 10 11 85) when required by written contract. 
Primary Insurance Wording Included when required by written contract. 
Broad Form Property Damage Liability including Explosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU). 
Premises/Operations 
Products/Completed Operations 
Contractual Liability 
Sudden and Accidental Pollution Liability 
Occurrence Form 
Personal injury 
"In Rem" Endorsement 
Cross Liability 
Severability of Interests Provision 
"Action Over" Claims 
Independent Contractors coverage for work sublet 
Vessel Liability -Watercraft exclusion has been modified by the vessels endorsement on scheduled 
equipment. 
General Aggregate applies per project or equivalent. 

Automobile Liability Policy Includes: 

Blanket Waiver of Subrogation when required by wr~ten contract. 
Blanket Additional Insured when required by written contract. 

C. Workers Compensation Policy Includes: 

Blanket Waiver of Subrogation when required by written contract. 
U.S. Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers Compensation Act Coverage 
Outer Continental Shelf Land Act 
Jones Act {including Transportation, Wages, Maintenance, and Cure). 
Death on the High Seas Act & General Maritime Law. 
Maritime Employers Liability Limit: $1,000,000 
Voluntary Compensation Endorsement 
Other States Insurance 
Alternate Employer/Borrowed Servant Endorsement 
"In Rem" Endorsement 
Gulf of Mexico Territorial Extension 

D. Excess Liability Policy Includes: 

Coverage is excess of the Auto Liability, General Liability, Employers Liability, & Maritime Employers 
Liability policies 
Blanket Waiver of Subrogation when required by written contract. 
Blanket Additional Insured when required by written contract. 

GCF 00 50 01 OJ 12 

30 



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE ~~~~;;~~~ 
,lOUCER (251) 990-9050 

~oint Clear Insurance Services LLC 
368 Commercial Park Drive 

FairhO'De AL 35532-
INSUREP 

CrowderGulf Joint venture/Crowder Gulf, LLC 
5435 Business Parkway 

Theodore AL 35582-

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION 
ONlY AND. CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE 
HOlDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR 
ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. 

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

INSURER A' Rockhill Ins. CO. 
INSURERS: 

INSURERC: 

INSURERO: 

INSURERE: 

I I I I I COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 
(Ea accident) 

1- MNAUTO 

~ ALLOWNEOAUTOS 

~ SCHEDULED AUTOS 

HIR€0AUTOS 

NON·O'A'NEb AUTOS 

poccuR -t:r CLAIMS MADE 

R OeOUCTIBLE • 

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND 
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY 
A'm PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE I ~FF!CERIMEMSER EXCLUDED? 

,,._ 
I A I OTHER Coverage 

I NOF 

RCPLE004702~00 

Contract Y15·l022·C; Disaster R•covery and. Deb:d.s Removal 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 
( ) 

Orange county Bd of county commissioners 
c/o Procurement Division 
400 E. south Street 

I Orlando 
ACORD 25 (2001/08) 
INS625I010SJ.06 

Flo 32801-0257 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

/ I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

I I I I 

1 os12212014 ., 

I I I ~ 

CANCELLATION 

BODILY INJURY 
(Per person) 

BODILY INJURY 
{Per ace1den1) 

PROPERTY DAMAGE 
(Perai:Cklanl) 

OTHER THAN 
AUTO ONLY 

I• 

I• 

I• 
I I• 

AGG Is 
Is 

Is 
Is 

~!41,----1 
I ' Is 

I 'UMIT 

15 General Aggregate 

oont.P~ll Cond limit 

IPoliov 

l,OOO,OOC 
1,000,000 
1,000,000 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE D&:SC:RIBfD POliCIES BE CANCEL.LED BEFORE THE 

EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, lHE ISSUING INSURER WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL 

1.Q._ DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT 

FAILURE TO DO SO. SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND UPON THE 

INSURER ITS AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

®ACORD CORPORATION 19ll8 
Page1of2 

31 



IMPORTANT 

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. A statement an this 
certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s}. 

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an 
endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such 
endarsement(s). 

DISCLAIMER 

The Certificate of Insurance on the reverse side of this form does nat constitute a contract between the issuing 
insurer(s), authorized representative or producer, and the certificate holder, nor does it affirmatively or negatively 
amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies listed thereon. 

'D 25 (2001108) 
1. ~5 10108).06 AMS 

32 



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED- OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS (FORM B) 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART. 

SCHEDULE 

Name of Person or Organization: 

When required by written contract, any person, firm or organization. 

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations 
as applicable to this endorsement.) 

WHO IS AN INSURED (Section II) is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in the 
Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of "your work" for that insured by or for you. 

CG20101185 Copyright, Insurance Services Qffice, Inc., 1984 

33 



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

WAIVER OF TRANSFER RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST 
OTHERS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART. 
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name of Person or Organization: 

When required by written contract, any person, firm or organization. 

(If no entry appears above, infonnation required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations 
as applicable to this endorsement.) 

We waive any right of racovery we may have against the person or organization shown in the Schedule because of payments 
we make for injury or damage arising out of "your work" done under a contract with that person or organization. The waiver 
applies only to the person or organization shown in the Schedule. 

CG 24 04 11 85 Copyright, Insurance §ervices Office, Inc., 1984 0 

34 



WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY _INSURANCE POLICY 

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT 

WC000313 
(Ed. 4-84) 

We have the right to recover our payments !nom anyone liable for an injury coverad bY this policy. We will not en
force our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agreement applies only to the 
extent that you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.} 

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit any one not named in the Schedule. 

Schedule 

When required by written contract, any person, firm or organization. 

we oo 0313 
(Ed. 4-84) 

Copyright 1983 National Council on Compensation Insurance. 

35 



OMB NO. 2126-0008 

ENDORSEMENT FOR MOTOR CARRIER POLICIES OF INSURANCE FOR 
PUBLIC LIABILITY UNDER SECTIONS 29 AND 30 OF THE MOTOR 

CARRIER ACT OF 1980 

. issUed. to Cro~derG.Uit Joint Venture · 

Dated at Metairie. Louisiana 

Amending Policy No. XSAl-075123 

of Theodore: Alabluna 

this 1" day of September, 2014 

Effective Date September 1 20141o September 1 2017 

Name of Insurance Company 

The policy to which this endorsement is attached provides primary or exc-4 insurance, as indicated by ''X", for the limits 
shown: l,l 
[x] This insurance is primary and the company shall not be liable for amo.unts in excess of l.1..M!!.: for each accident. 

0 This insurance Is excess and the company Shall not be liable for amounts in excess of$ ___ for each accident·in 
excess of the underlying limit of$ for each accident. 

Whenever required by the Federal Motor Carrier Safely Administration (FMCSA), the company agrees to furnish the FMC SA 
a duplicate of said policy and all its endorsements. The company also agrees. upon telephone request by an authorized 
representative of the FMCSA. to verify that the policy is in force as of a particular date. The telephone number to call is: 
251-990-9050. 

Cancellation of this endorsement may be effected by the company or the insured by giving (1) thirty-five (35) days notice in 
writing to the other party (said 35 days notice to commence from the date the notice is mailed, proof of mailing shall be 
sufficient proof of notice), and (2) if the insured is subject to the FMCSA's registration requirements under 49 U.S.C. 13901. 
by providing thirty (30) days notice to the FMCSA (said 30 days notice to commence from the date notice is received by the 
FMCSA at its office in Washington, D.C.) · 

DEFINITIONS AS USED IN THIS ENDORSEMENT 

ACCIDENT includes continuous or repeated exposure to 
conditions, which results in bodily injury, property damage, or 
environmental damage which the insured neither expected 
nor intended. 

MOTOR VEHICLE means a land vehicle, machine, truck, 
tractor, trailer, or semitrailer propelled or drawn by 
mechanical power and used on a highway for transporting 
property or any combination thereof. 

BODILY INJURY means injury to the body, sickness, or 
disease to any person, including death resulting from any of 
these. 

FORM MCS 90 

PROPERTY DAMAGE means damage to or loss of use of 
tangible property. 

ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION means restitution for the 
foss, damage or destruction of natural resources arising out 
of the accidental discharge, dispersal, retease or escape into 
or upon the land, atmosphere, Watercourse, or body of water, 
of any commodity transported by a motor carrier. This shall 
include the cost of removal and the cost of necessary 
measures taken to minimize or mitigate damage to human 
health, the natural environment, fish, sllellfish and wildlife. 

PUBLIC LIABILITY means liability for bodily injury, property 
damage, and environmental restoration. 

Page 1 of 2 

36 



The insurance policy to which this endorsement is attached 
provides automobile liability insurance and is amended to 
assure compliance by the insured, wi!hin the limits stated 
herein, as a motor carrier of property, with Secf1ons 29 and 
30 of the Motor Carrier Act of 1980 and the rules and 
regulations of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration 
(FMC SA) 

In consideration of the premium stated in the policy to which 
this endorsement is attached, the insurer (the company} 
agrees to pay, within the limits of liability described herein, 
any final judgment recovered against th~ insured for public 
liability resulting from negligence in the operation, 
maintenance or use of motor vehicles subject to the financial 
responsibiny requirements of Sections 29 and 30 of Motor 
Carrier Act of 1960 regardless of whether or not each motor 
vehicle is specifically described in the policy and whether or 
not such negligence occurs on any route or in any territory 
authorized to be served by the irisured or elsewhere. Such 
insurance as is afforded for public liability, does not apply to 
injwy to or death of the insured's employees while engaged 
in the course of their employment, or property transported by 
the insured, designated as cargo. It is understood and 
agreed that no condition, provision, stipulation, or limitation 
contained in the policy, this endorsement, or any other 

endorsement thereon, or violation thereof, shall relieve the 
company from liability or from the payment of any final 
judgment, within the limits of liability herein described. 
irrespective of the financial condition, insolvency or 
bankruptcy of the insured. However, all terms, conditions. 
and limitations -in the policy to which the endorsement is 
attached shall remain in full force and effect as binding 
between the insured and the company. The insured agrees 
to reimburse the company for any payment made by the 
company on account of any accident, claim, or suit involving 
a breach of the terms of the policy, and for any payment that 
the company would not have been obligated to make under 
the provisions of the policy except for the agreement 
contained in this endorsement. 

II is further understood and agreed thai, upon failure of the 
company to pay any final judgment recovered against the 
insured as provided herein, the judgment creditor may 
maintain an action in any court of compet~nt jurisdiction 
against the company to compel such payment. 

The limits of the company's liability for the amounts 
prescribed in this endorsement apply separately to each 
accident and any payment under the policy because of any 
one accident shall not operate to reduce the liability of the 
company for the payment of final judgments resulting from 
an other accident. 

THE SCHEDULE OF LIMITS SHOWN BELOW DOES NOT PROVIDE COVERAGE. The nmils shown in this schedule are for Information 
p~rposes only. 

SCHEDULE OF LIMITS PUBLIC LIABILITY 

I Tvpe of Carriage Commodity Transported 

(1) For-hire Property (non-hazardous) 
(In interstate or foreign 
commerce. with a gross 
vehicle weight rating of 
10,000 or more pounds) 

(2) For-hire and Private 
(In interstate, foreig·n or 
intrastate commerce 
with a gross vehicle 
weight rating of 10,000 
or more pounds) 

(3) For-hire and Private 
(In interstate, or foreign 
commerce, in any 
quantity or in intrastate 
commerce, in bulk only; 
with a gross vehicle 
weight rating of 10,000 
or more pounds 

(4) For-hire and Private 
·(In interstate"' foreign 
commerce, with a gross 
vehicle weight rating of 
less tha,n 10,000.. 
pounds) · 

FORM MCS 90 

Hazardous substances as defined in 49 CFR 171 .6, transported in 
cargo tanks, portable tanks, or hopper-type vehicles with capacities in 
excess of 3,500 water gallons; or in bulk Division 1.1 ., 1.2 and 1.3 
materials. Division 2.3, Hazard Zone A, or Division 6.1, Packing 
Group r, Hazard Zone A material; in bulk Division 2.1 or 2.2, or 
highway route controlled quantities of a Class 7 material as defined in 
49 CFR 173.403 

Oil listed In 49 CFR 172.101; hazardous waste, hazardous materials, 
and hazardous substances defined in 49 CFR 171 .6 and listed in 49 
CFR 172.101, but not mentioned in (2) above or (4) below. 

Any quantity of Division 1.1, 1 .2, or 1.3 material; any quantity of a 
·Division 2.3, Hazard· Zone A or Division 6:1· Packing Group··1, Hazard · 
Zone A material; or highway route controlled quantities of a Class 7 
material as defined in 49 CFR 173.403. 

Jan.1,1985 I 
$ 750,000 

$5,000,000 

$1,000,000 

$5,000,000 

Page 2 of 2 

37 



The Gray Insurance Company - Company Profile -Best's Credit Rating Center Page I of2 

Ratings & Criteria Center t/iJ WEIICOI'Ill! Bacl< Carol H11wilt /t!.I'..Mglli!cr Celli"! I J.ml . .Q.'L! 

Regional Centets: Asia·Paclnc 1 Canada 1 Ellrope, Middle East and Africa I Latin Americ!. 1 MENA & SCA Home i About Us 1 Contact Us I Sitentap 

Ratings & Criteria .. 

"Home 
• Cre!1il Ra~ng Releases 
" Me!hOdology 
» BesU Credit Ra~ngs + 

h Financial Strength Rating 
11ISSUef Credl! RaMg 
" Debt Rating 
• Nalional Scale Ra~~g 
» Aovanced Search 

» Aflout Best's Creail Ratmgs + 
• Get a Credit Ralir\(1 .. 
»Burs Spe.:ial Reports 
"Aad Be5l'SCredi1 Rat1ngs Search 

ToYQIJ!SII& 
~ BestM&Ic for Secure-Rated 

Insurers 
» ContaCIIIn Analyst 
»Award$ and Recognitions 

News & Analysis .. 

Products & Sel'lllces 

tnclustry Information 
Corporate ., 
Regulatory Affairs u: 

Support & Resources " 

conferences and Events 

:"·' ··········-----·-··-·····-, 

' :·,:) 

e;( A.M. Best Rating Services 'W Contart Information ~ 

Rating Search; ... .... ... ( Searell I »Advanced Search 

The Gray Insurance Company m 
A.M. Best~: 002621 · NAtC II: 3630'1' FEIN II: '1'20824211 

Mailing Address YiewA<ttli!lonal Address lnfqrrna!ion 
P.O. Box 6202 
Metairie, LA 70009·6202 
Un)led States 

Web: \W{I,V g@yinsco com 
Phone:·S0-4·888·7790 
Fax: 504·454-6122 

!if: Add tO aestA1ert 
~Print !hiS page 

Assigned to A!!MC11Uiftap R~~~t~u 
companies. ~ : 
that have. rn ~ 
our opinion, 
an excellent abiFJiy to meet their 
ongoing insurance Obligations. 

-·--------·---·---------·----------·--
eased On A.M. Best's analysts, 051888. Gray & Company Inc is the AMB Ultimate Parent and idenlifie1:1 the topmost entity of the 
corporate. structure. View a list of oneraling insurance entities in tl)is structure. 

t~-~-~~~-~~~~~-~~~-·~-.~:~.=~:===:·.~~=--·=::=:~:==~-~-=-~-~~·-=:=::~-~--=:~~.~=~~=--~~:~~; 
f!:!~~i!!ciitii RatL'!Q-w:::~~:~-~~~=--.-~---~=J ~~!~~~~~:;'~,-~~~~-;.·-··=~~~-=~~.·~~-~ 
] Firlanclal Size Vlll($100 Mil~on to $250 I Senior Financial Analyst: Brian O'Lane 
\ Category: MiNion) ~~~~~nt ~e Preside.~t: Jenni~S.~.~.!~~~E:~!.~~! AR~. 
~ Outlook: Stable 

i Action: Affirmea no~t~oog>o~•!<"~"t'~"~"ili•go~ll~ojin==============J 
j ~~ectiVf Date: November07. 2014 f ~Jiiii~ 
~Ia I Ratin.~ Date: -······-'~u~~~:S-'--·-·----- .. --~ lL:::I View AM. Best's Rating Disclnsure Statement 

[
~!!!mT~uerp.r!.~.!!B.~l!9: View Dijtfuwen.::=::=:=-_-:=_] 
Long.Tenn: a· . 
Outlook: Stable 

1

: 

Action: Affirmed 
. Effective Oat&: November 07, 2014 i 
!Initial Rating Date: June 19. 2007 1 

!.....·-·--·--·-----~·--·--------~ 

AMP Credit Reoort • Includes Best's Financial Strenglfl Rating and rationale along with comprehensive analytical 
commentary, detailed business overview and key financial data. 
Repon Revision Date· 12/112014 {represents the latest significant change). 

Historical Reports are available in AMB Ctedil &port Archive. 

Besl's Executive Summary. Reports (Financial OvervieW)· available in three versions, these presentation style reports 
feature balance sheet. income statement k~y financial petform~nce tests Including profitability. liquidily and reserve analysiE. 
Data Status: 2015 Best's Statement File. PIC, US Contains data compUell as or 512812015 auatity Cress Ch~~llecJ. 
smote Company· frve years of financial data specifically on this company. 
Comparison 
• stde-by-side finanCial analysts of this oompany with a peer group of up to live olher companies you setecl. 

·~ 

,) 
• evaluate this company's linandats agaiost a peer group composite. Report ctisptays both the average and tolal composite or 
your Selected peer group. 

Best's Key Rating Gt•irfl Presentation Report· Includes Besrs Finarlcial Strength Ratfng and financial data as provided in 
the most current edition of Best's Key Rating Guide products. {Q11atily CrossCnetkf.IO). 

(Finan~ a~d-Ana~.~!' Pi-Od'uct$~==-==~=-.::_-~==-==.-=~~=-~===-=-~·~==~-=~=-~=-·.-:.-··-: ______ ,~ 
Resrs lnsuranqe Reoor1s . On!jne- pre us & Canada 

§est's Key Rating Gujde. PIC US & Canatla 

Rest's Statement fj!e ·PIC US 

B§S)'s EXfJCU!jiiE! Summarv Rennrt • Composlle • PrcpertWCasuall\! 

Bep!'s ExeC!.!Iive Summarv Report. Compa~son • Pmpei!y/Casuattv 

http://www3.ambest.com/ratings/entities/SearchResults.aspx?URatingld=2389135&bl=O& ... 6/3/2015 

38 



Rockhill Insurance Company - Company Profile - Best's Credit Rating Center Page I of2 

Ratings & Criteria Center IIJ Welcome Back C~rol Howitt [l_t; ~or. Cent~r \.imt..o!.!l 

Home l About Us 1 Conlact Us 1 .Sitema!l Regional Centers: Asia-Pacific I Canada I Europe, Middlt! East and Africa !latin Ainerica 1 MENA & SCA 

Ratings & Criteria ,. 

"Home 
» Cret!tt Rating Releases 
» MethodOlOgy 
" Best's Cretlit Ratongs + 

»Financial Strenglh Rating 
"lssuerCred~ Rat.ng 
»Debt Ra~ng 
~ Nafil)l'lal Seata Rating 
» AciVancad Search 

" All out Bear'.$ Crellit Rabngs ~ 
tf Get a credit Rarmg + 
• Besrs Spacial Report& 
D Add Best's Credit Ratings Search 

To Your Site 
" BestMan< for Secure· Rated 
ln~urers 

» Contact an Analyst 
» Awards Snd Recogn~Hons 

News & Analysis , 

Products & Services 

Industry lniOi'mation 

Corporate " 

Regula!ory Affairs .. 

SupPort & Resources 

Conferences and Events ~ 

~~·-,;'·-··-·····--·-· --:··-·· ·-·-···--·-·-~ 

-- ··--·-··------~ 

Rating Search: ... ___ [ search f ~ Adyanced Sea«:h 

Rockhill Insurance Company 111 
A.M. B&sl il; 013023 NAte il; 280~3 FEIN II: 061149841' 

Administrative Office 
518 East Broad Street 
Columbus, OH 43215 
United Stalin 

Web: 'WAY stateauto.oom 
Phone: 816412-1800 
Fa~~:: 877·742-8762 

View AQdj!ignal Address lntcrroat!on 

~ dd to esiA crt 
Prjnl lhis page 

Assigned to PilleM~·-·· hAd~; 
compan1es ~&EST 

that have, in A- t 
our opinion, 
an excellent ability to meet their 
ongoing insurance obligations. 

Based on A.M. Best's analysis, 000855 • State. Autwpbile MUWaltmmr;mce-£p Is the AMB Ulrfmate Parent and identifies the 
topmost entity oJthe corporEite·structure. View a list of operabng insurance en@eB in this structure: 

c~~~.r~~~l!I~t~.~~s=::=.:==:~=~~~~-~~~---=~-----·-------.::~--=~==-~---·--=.~~~~=~-~~::~~:=~- ! 
fFiA&rlcla"t Sk~flithRiiinQVjBWQifiilltiOn - - ---- - -- , 
j Rating: A- (Excellent) -~··--------~ 

! Affillation·Code: r (Reinsured) I 
i Financial Size Category: XU ($1 Bl!llon to $1.25 Billion) 

1 1 
Outlook: Stable ' I Actle~:n: Downgracfe(J ] 

J Effective _Dale: April28. 2015 ~ 

~i~~~~lng Date_' ---N~~~~!_~~=~~----J 
~_i-Timitasufr Credjl Rat!!!a:JliWPHiiiiTtiOii--·=~:, 

Long-Term: a· 1 

I OuUook: Stable ! 
, Action: Downgraded i 
I Effective Date: Aprit 28. 2015 l 
; Initial Rating Date: December 19. 2007 j 
l.~-·---·--···-- --·----·--'····----------- ··----' 
U Denotes' !Nlffl al"''""' !lrsri Rolmg 

~~~~i=~~a;~~~~!~~~~~~~~n:~-~~:~~~~~~~---~-~-~--~-~i 
\Senior Financial Analyst: Kenneth E. Tappen 

~!~~tant Vlce_~~sid.!~=-~~s.:eph -~~~~~~~--- ···-~---·-·--., 

Dlacloaure Information 

View A.M. Best's Rating Disc to sure Statement 

A.M. Rrut Downgrades Ra!IM.!! Qf $late Autgmobi!a 
Mutual lnsuranre Coinpany and Its Opa[§ltjng 

~ 
Apri\28, 2015 

f Repofts a·nd~~!_··--------==-~~~----~~---·-···----·-·-=~~=-=-~·=====~~=~--~-~~~~--·-·--· 
Visit Best's News ana Analysis site for the latest news and press release!! for !his company and its A.M. Best Group. 

AMP Cwdlt Report • includes Best's Fioanctal Strength Rating ana rallonate along wilh comprehensive analytical 
comm~i1tary, detalled busmess overview ana key fir~anciat data. 
Report Revision Date· 511412015 (represents the latest significant Change). 

Historical Reports are available in AMB Cmdil Bepod Archiye. 'I"""'· 
\. r 

Best's e~~:ecutive Summary Reports {Financial Overview)- ava~able tn three versions, these presentation style reports 
feature balance sheet, fncome statement, key fmancial performance teSt$ in~;l~ding profilab!ll!y. liquidity and reserve analysis. 
Data Status: 2015 Best's Statement File- PIC, US Contains data compiled as of 512812015 au~t,ty cross cneclcea. 
S!na(t Commmy. five years olflnanclat data specifically on this company. 
ComParison 
- s!de-by-s!de financial analysis of this company with a peer groop of up to five other companies you select. 

·~ 
- evaluate this company's financlals against a peer group composne. Report displays both the average ana total composite of 
your selected peer group. 

Nii. Bgt's Key Baling Guide Presentation Rengrt ·includes Best's Financial Strength Bating and financial data as provided in 
~- }" the most currenl edition of Best's KeY Raling Guide products. (Oua!~yCrosi Chetke~). 

~~jij~~~~i~i!!!YS~IProduCis-·.~~:~-=--===~==::===~~-==-~:~~=---==---=~=~--~=-~~~-~~~:.~; 
Best's lnsuranse Beppn:;. Online - F'/C US & Cana[la 

Bes('s Key Baling Guida. PIC US & Canada 

Besrs Stateme~t File. PIC us 

Best's fXE!!j!!liya SummaN Report . Compgsile • pmne!1WCesuattv 

Bey!'§ fxecutive Summa01 Bepolt. Comparison • Proper1Y!CMually 

eru;rs Statement Flte. ('"9bal 

Basrs Stale Line· PIC US 

Best's Regu!a!my Center Market snare BeppOs 

Best's CO!parate ChaMes and Re!tremer\ts · PIC US/CN 

Best's Insurance EXRense Exhjbit /!EEl -PIC US 

Besrs Sclledutep II g!!§Be;;erv!"ffl)- f!C \JS 

Best's Regula)QN Center 

Besrs Schedule 0 rcorporate Bondsj - us 

http ://www3 .am best .com/ratings/entities/SearchResults.aspx?URatingld~23 8913 5&bl~O& ... 6/3/2015 

39 



PERFORMANCE BOND 

BONDNUMBER~S~U~11~2~M~7~2~--~-----------

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that 

Name of Contractor CrowdetGulf Joint Venture. Inc, 

Address 5535 Business Parkway Theoc!ore AL 3§582 

PhoneNumber~B~0~0-~99~2~~~20~7~--------------------------------

Corporatlon, Partnership or lndividuai_C:;;o=::rp"'o"'ra,;:t;::;lo=::n:....._~------------

herelnafter referred to as the Contractor, as Principal, and 

Name of Surety Arch Insurance Company 

Address 300 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311 

Phone Number 201-743:4000 

hereinafter called SURETY, as SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto Orange County, 400 East South 
Street, Orlando, Fl 32801, (407)836-5635 a Political Subdivision of the Slate of Florida as Obligee, 
hereinafter referred to as· Owner, In the full and just sum of $500,000. lawful money of the United States of 
America, to the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, the Contractor and SURETY bind 
themselves, their representatives, and each of their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and 
assigns, Jointly and severely, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has entered into Contract No. Y15-1022 with the "County'', also referred to 
herein as the OWNER, for the project entitled: DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 

Various locations throughOilt Orange County, Florida wnh condnions and provisions as are further 
described in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract is by reference made a part hereof for the 
purpose of explaining this bond. 

General description of the Work: The disaster and debris removal Contractorfsl shall Qrovlde 
professional technical saNices in the prepared-:-KS· response, rasoverv and mitigation phases of 
anv natural or manmade disaster or ernergencv situatiOn. as reaulred by the County. 

NOW, ·THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation Is such that If Contractor shall fully, promptly and fatthfuliy 
perform said Contract and all obligations thereunder, including all obligations imposed by the Contract documents 
(which includes the Notice to Bidders, Instruction to Bidders, Proposal and Bid Form, General and Supplementary 
Condttions, Detail Specifications, Form(s) of Contract Bond(s), Plans and Specifications and such amendments 
thereof as may be made as provided for therein), then this obligation shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full 
foroe and effect. 

1. The undersigned shall indemnify and save harmless said OWner against and from all costs, 
expenses and damages, including litigation costs and attorney's fees arising out of, or in connection 
with the neglect, default or want of care or skill, Including patent infringement on the part of said 
Contractor, his agents, servants or employees in the execution or performance of said Contract 

The applicable provisions of Section 255.05 and 713.01 Florida Statutes apply to this bond. 

Revieecl 5/9/06 

40 



2 . Whenever Contractor shall be, and declared by Owner to be in default under the Contract, the 
0\\lner having performed Owner's obligations thereunder, the SURETY may prompUy remedy the 
defauk or shall prompUy: 

A Complete the Contract in accordance wnh its terms and conditions; or 

B. Obtain a bid or bids for completing the Contract in accordance with Its terms and conditions, 
· and upon determination by SURETY of the lowest responslbie bidder, or, if the Owner 
elects, upon determination bY the 0\\lner and the SURETY joinlly of the lowest responsible 
bidder, arrange for a Contract between such bidder and the Owner. SURETY shall make 
available as the work progresses (even though there should be a default or a succession of 
defaults under the Contract or Contracts of completion arranged under this Paragraph) 
suffiCient funds to pay the costs of completion, including other costs and damages for which 
the SURETY may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. 

3. Any changes In or under the contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any 
formaltties connected with the Contract or the changes shall not affect SURETY'S obligation 
under this bond. Any increase in the total Contract amount as authorized by the Owner shall 
accordingly increase the SURETY'S obligation by the same dollar amount of said increase. The 
Principal shall be responsible for notification to SURETY of all such changes. 

4. The undersigned expressly acknowledges its obligations and liabilities for liquidated damages 
suffered by the Owner under the provisions of the Contract Documents. 

5. The undersigned, covenant and agree that no change, extension of time, exercise of options for 
Contract renewals, changes to Contract amounts, aneratlons or additions to the terms of the 
Contract or the work to be performed thereunder, or the specifications accompanying the same 
shall in any way affect their obligation on this bond, and the SURETY does hereby expressly 
waive notice of any such change, extension of time, change to Contract amount, alteration, or 
addition. Moreover, no alterations or additions to this bond form shall be binding unless 
specifically agreed to In writing by the parties. 

6. The Contractcr shall save the Owner harmless from any and all damages, expenses and costs 
which may arise by virtue of any defects in said work or materials within a period of one (1) year 
from the date of Final Completion of the Project. 

Signed and sealed this the ___ _,2._,2n...,_d ____ '- day of ___ _,M,!IY,._ ___ ~, 20..!!1 

CONTRACTOR, AS PRINCIPAL 

WITNESS: CrowderGulf Joint Venture, tnc. 

M..tey- A),; L .Q FirmN~ BY.~ c 

1\~tcm TY Name and Title 

Arch Insurance Compan 

SURET 

~1;;~4~Q'-'~:L.l.~I:--:-----'AGENCY ADDRESS: Bowen, Miclette & Britt of Florida, LLC 
ames C. ongelio, Attorney-In- act 

SURETY ADDRESS: .:!30!!!0!.JP!:!I•!!!Z!!i!UI.ehre!!!!!: _____ _ 1715 N. Westshore Blvd. Suite 9201 Tampa, FL 33607 

~erseY City, N~ 07311 PHONE 813-282·1938 

41 



Licensed Florida Insurance Agent? Yes _.....;.;x ___ No-----

License Number:_,&~o,.s16zz!l"z.;"~------'------------

STATE OF _. F:..:t,on"-'·d,a _____ ___,) 

COUNTY OF Hillsborough )SS 

CITY OF .....;;T.;;am=P•::..-------' 

Before me, a Notary PubliC duly commissioned, quafifled and acting personally, appeared: 
James c. Conpelio 

to me well known, who being by me first duly sworn upon oath says that he is Attorney-in-Fact lor 
Arch Insurance Comaany 

as Surety, and that he has been authorized by said Surety to execute the foregoing Performance Bond on 
behalf of the Principal (Contractor) named therein in favor of the owner. 

suQrib!tdi?wli}om to b!lfore me this the 22nd day of --......!!M,a~~.x ___ ,, 20 111 
~~~st d)d 

Notary PubliC 
Anita waters 
(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public) ,.._ · A Waters · ?J Notal')' PubUc state of FlOrida 

\: ~ i MyComm!Uion FF 155231 

Personally Known --"x'---or Produced Identification _____ ...J_!!/~/!!.A __ ~.,. .. ...,"'_..,Ex..,.p,.;,.,..'..,08
.,'
2
11
712

.,.
0
,
18""""""""'.S 

Type of 
ldentificaUon: __________ _...,A.,__ ____________ _ 

In a~cordance with Part C, Section 19 and Part F Article 8 of the Contract, if applicable, Jist the 
Lead Surety. 

da Resident Agent 

BY: .lamos c. Congelio, Attorney-In-Fact AGENCY ADRESS: 1715 N. Westshore BlvH. Suite 820 

SURETY ADDRESS: 300 Plaza Ihr«• Tampa, FL 33&07 

.lersev City. NJ 07311 PHONE -'8"-1"'3"'·2,.8,..2-'"'1"'"93,8,_ ________ _ 

42 



PAYMENT BOND 

BONDNUMBERASMVxtt~z~u~z~z~---------

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that 

Name of Contractor _ __,c .. ro,.w"'d..,e,.,rG,.,.ulf._J..,o .. ln..,t,_,lJ"'e"'ntu....,re .... ,.tn..,c._. ----

Address 6&35 Business Parkway Theodore AL 35582 

Phone Number 800·992-8207 

Corporation, Partnership or lndlvldua._l :Co::rp.o:::o::ra:t:::io:::n._ ____ _ 

Thereinafter called Contractor, as Principal, ·and 
Name and Address of Surety Arch Insurance COmpany. 300 Plaza Th!!!t Jersey City, NJ 0731 t 
hereinafter called SURETY, as SURETY, are held and firmly bound unto Orange County, 400 East South 
Street, Orlando, Fl 32801, (407) 836·5635 a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida as Obligee, in 
the full and just sum of SSOO.OOO. lawful money of the United States of America, to the payment of which 
sum, well and truly to be made, the Contractor and SURETY bind themselves, their representatives, and 
each of their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, joindy and severally, firmly by 
these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has entered into Contract No. Y15-1022 with the 'County'', also referred to 
herein as the OWNER, for the project entitled: DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL, 
Various locations throughout Orangs County, Florida with conditions and provisions as are further 
described In the aforementioned Contract, which Contract is by reference made a part hereof for the 
purpose of explaining this bond. 

General description of the Work: The crosamr and d&hris removal Contractorlal sbaU provide 
professional technical services in the preparedneas. response. recovetv and ml!laat!on phases of 
any natural or manma!le disaster or emergency s!!uation. as reauifed by the County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS such that if Contractor shall promptly 
make payments to all claimants for any and all labor and material used or reasonably required for use or 
furnished in connection with the performance of said Contract, and shall perform all other covenants and 
obligations of this bond, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

1. The undersigned shall promptly make payment to all persons supplying services, labor, material 
or supplies used directly or indirectly by said Contractor, or any subcontractor(s) or sub
subcontractor(s), in the prosecution ollhe work provided for in said Contract. 

2. Subject to the Owner's priority, claimants covered by Section 713.01 of the Florida Statutes shall 
have a direct right of action against the Principal and SURETY under this obRgation, after written 
notice of the performance of labor or delivery of materials or supplies, and non-payment 
therefore.. Any claimant who seeks to recover against the Principal or SURETY under this 
obligation must also satisfy the notice requirement and lime fimitations of Section 255.05 of the 
Florida Statutes, as amended. 

3. The undersigned, covenant and agree that no change, extension of time, exercise of options for 
Contract renewals, change to Contract amounts, alterations or additions to terms of the Contract 
or the work to be performed thereunder, or the specincations accompanying the same shall in any 
way affect their obligation on this bond and the SURETY does hereby expressly waive notice Of 
any such change, extension of time, exercise of options for Contract renewal, changes to 
Contract amount, alternations or additions. Moreover, no alterations or additions to this bond 
form shall be binding unless specifically agreed to in writing by the parties. 

The applicable provisions of Sections 255.05 and Florlda Statutes apply to this bond , 

Revised 5/9/06 

43 



4. Any changes In or under the Contract Documents and compliance or noncompliance with any 
formalities connected with the Contract or the changes shalf not affect SURETY'S obligation 
under this bond. Any increase in the total Contract amount as authorized by the Owner shall 
accordingly increase the SURETY'S obligation by the same dollar amount of said increase. 
The Principal shall be responsible for notification to SURETY of all such changes. 

Signed and sealed this the -~22~n!!!d ___ day of ____ .....;M::::•:.z...------··20 15 

CONTRACTOR, AS PRINCIPAL: 

WITNESS: Cro_wderGulf JoJ,.t Venture, Inc. 

Signature 

Arch Insurance Company 
SURETY: 

SURETY ADDRESS 300 Plua Three . .Jersey City. NJ 07311 

PHONENO. ~H~1~~~4~~~o~o~o ___________________ __ 

Licensed Florida Insurance Agent? Yes __ _..x __ '-No -----

License Number:,_.A,o.,s.,zT..,e,3'----------------

STATEOF~F~Io=n:~~·---------J 

COUNTY OF _,H.,i::::ll•,.bo=ro.,uplllh:!.--------ll SS 

CITY OF ""'Ta.,miiJPII.!'L--"'--------J 

Before me, a Notary Public duly commissioned, qualified and acting personally, appeared: 
James C. ConaeUo 

to me well known, who being by me first duly sworn upon oath says that he is Attorney-in-Fact for 
Arch ln•urans• Company 
as Surety, and that he has been authorized by said Surety to execute the foregoing Payment Bond on 
behalf of the Principal (Contractor) named therein favor of the owner. 

_,.z..,zn .. d,___ day of May 

Anita Waters 
(Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public) 

Personally Known _x_ or Produced Identification (Type) N/A 

?J
~ Notarv Pu~~ State or FloOda 

• • AWaters 
flC , .8 .M~CommiaslonFF155231 
.... .,,..,- ElqHID 08127/2018 

44 



In accordance with Part C, Section 19 and Part F Article 8 of the Contract, If applicable, list the 
Lead Surety. 

BY: Jlames c. Conlell~, AttOmeY·In·Fact 

SURETY ADDRESS: 300 Plaza Three Tampa. FL 33807 

..:":::•::.••:o•,.vc:C"'I"'tvu•..::N::J'-'0"'7-"3.:.11._ ________ PHONE 813-212·1938 

45 



46 



Arch Insurance Company - Company Profile - Best's Credit Rating Center Page 1 of2 

Ratings & Criteria Center uJ Wolco~>e Back Carol Hewitt Mtif.!Jlll'flr Cen!er Ji.QaQu! 

Regional Centers: Asia-Pac:ific I Canada 1 Europe, Middle East and Africa jl11tln America 1 MENA & SCA Home I About Us 1 Conti\Ct lis ISitemil/l 

Ratings & Criteria •. 

"Home 
" Creclil Rating Releases 
" Melhodology 
» E3esrs Creitit Ratings • 

~ Fin~nc4al Strength Ra!lng 
~ Issuer Cred.t Rating 
» Oebt Retirig 
J> N~oonal Scale Rating 
11 Advanced Search 

~ Atwm Best's Credit Racngs • 
" Get a Cred1l Raling • 
~ Besrs Spec:iaJ Reports 
, Add Best's Credtl Ratings Search 

ToYourS1te 
" BesrMark for Secure-Rated 

Insurers 
" Contact an Analyst 
" Awards a11d Recognibcns 

News & Analysis ~ 

Products & Services 

Industry Information 

Corporate ,. 

Regulatory Affairs '* 
St~pport a. Resources v 

conferences and Events ~> 

tf.::i(A.M. Best Rating Services 
~ Con!3ct lnformatioll )I 

Rating Search: I Search I •1 AdvanGfld search 

Arch Insurance Company c11 
A.M. But#: 003185 NA!C t: 11150 FEIN li: 43G990710 
Mailing Address View Addillona! Address tnrorrnatioo 
300 Plaza Three, 3rd Floor 
Jersey City. NJ 07311 
United Statqs 

Web: www Sffihio5!!r,qnc~ com 
Phone: 212·651-6500 
Fall:: 212-651·6499 

~Add to BesiA!fltl 
&tJ Printllljs oage 

Assigned to A~~aheidlkin;!h lblfht 
cornpanie!l ~ 
thai have. in A:'ru;iiii'Or 
our opinion. 
a superior ability to meet their 
ongclnelnsuranc:e obligations. 

Basect on A.M. Best's analySis, OS84S9 · Arch Gapjtat Grouo uq.ts the AMB Ultimate Parent and itlentilies the topmosl er)lity of the 
corporate structure. VIew a Us! of operating instJrance entities in this structure. 

~;:~~~~~I~.~~~=~~-~~=~~:~-~~~==~-~-=~-~-~-~=-~~---=:~=~:~~-==-~===-===~:-=:~.~=··-~-~-·~:~-~~-~ 
~~~:;' st'r!!!ath~~!i:vr::~:::::J·~=~-=-~-=-·-~=1 ~~~~ ~;9~;~~~~!~i~~;;p;~y~n~~~=-·~~:==-~-~~- ··--: 
i Affiliation Code: g (Group) i Managing Senior Financial Analyst: Greg Reisner 

; Financial Site Category. XV ($2 BUrton or greater) ~~~~tant Vice.!'~!.~~~M~~eter ~?~~-·-------·-
/ Outlook: Stable 
j Action: Affinned Disclosure lnr(lr alton 
; Effective Date: March 20,2014 

i Initial Rating Date: June 30, 1977 
1--·--· ~------··-·---~-~--·-·~"'···~ 
l0ri9.~ifuJ!!~~giiidff~iiii9···-·vrew·Q£iiiiiiiOri~~ ·-·:~=.-~] 

Long-Term: as-
Outlook: Stable 

Action: Affirmed 
, Effective Date: MarCh 20, 2014 i 
; Initial Rating Date: October 26, 2004 \ 

'----·---~-----···--·---~----·---··..J 
~· Ollnotac 'r!!!l•• Qcw•w !brst'< !=lat'"P 

View A.M. Best's Ra[j!lQ Qis.closure Statamenl 

AM Best Afflfms Ba\lnas of All:h Capital Group Lid and 
Us Subsidiaries 
March 20.2014 

1 Repo~!. anti News ---·----~=-~=--=-~~:~==-~-=-==:~:.::~.~=:~:~---·---:-.~.= _·_:, 
Visit Best's News and Analysis site for the latest news and press releares fm this company and its A.M. 8!!St Group. 

AMB Credl! Report • includes 8asrs Financial Stren~th RaUn~ and rational!! along wilh comprehensive analytical 
commentary, ctetailed llusiness Ovef'ltew and key financial data. 
Report Revision Date: 4/14/2014 (represents the latest significant change). 

Historical Reporls are available in AMR Credb Reoort Archjve. 

Best's Execuuve Summary Reports {Financial Overview)- available in three versions, these presentation sty!!! repons 
feature- balance sheet. income staleme11t. key financial perfmmance tests !nt:luding prontabllil}'.liquldily and reserve analysis. 
Data Status: 2015 Best's S!atemenl File- PIC, US Contains data compKed as of 5128/2015 Quarrty cross Ch!tked. 
SiMla Company- filte years of financial data specifically on this con1pany. 
Cpmpartson 
- side·by·side financial a11alysis ol this company wilh a pear group of up to nw oth!!r companies you select 

·~ 
• evaluate this company's flnanclals againsl a peer group composite Report displays both the average and total composite of 
your selected peer group. 

BAst's Key Rating Guide Pmsentatlon Report· includee Best's FinanCial Strength Rating anct Onal"lciat data as provided in 
the most current edition of Best's Key Raling Guide products. (Q.,ality CrossCheellall). 

[FinanCiai"iin<i-Anai'Yt"iCiliProdu·cts ---~===-=-=~.-.=:.-:~~---=--=--=:~~~~=:=--~~~~~~~~:=._-:_-~=._-=~=~·:.·~ ~-~~-=~~-
Best's Insurance Repprls. Online. PIC US & CarJadg 

Best's Key Bating Guide • pre I IS & Cunada 

Be§1'5 Stateman! file· PIC US 

Bests fl!ecu!ive Suromarv Report· Comparjspn • property/Casualty 

Best's Executive Summary Report- Compo@e • PropertyJCas,fal!v 

Best's Statement File • Global 

BW's Bwula\cN Center Markel §fla!t:; Brmpr1s 

Be§;t's Sfale line. PJC US 

Best's Corporale Chanaes and Retirements· PIC !!SIGN 

Besrs Jns!1rance Emense Ekhjbil <tE.E:J· PIC US 

Besj'!! Schedule P flo!!S Reserye(!- PIC liS 

Best's R!t9lllatorv "Center 

Best's Schedyle D <Corporate Bo[Jdsl • us 

http://www 3 .ambest.com/ratings/entities/Company Profile.aspx?ambnum~3I86& URatingld... 6/2/2015 
47 



Surety Bonds - Certified Companies 

Arch Insurance Company (NAJC #11160) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 300 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311 - 1107. PHONE: (201) 743-4000. 
UNOER\1\RITING LIMITATION b/: $73.663,000. SURETY LICENSES c,f/: Al, AK. AZ. AR, CA. CO, CT, OE, 
DC, FL, GA, GU, HI. 10, ll, IN, lA, KS. KY, LA, ME. MD, MA, Ml, MN. MS. MO, MT, NE. NV. NH. NJ. NM, NY, 
NC. NO, OH, OK, OR, PA. PR, RI,SC, SO, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, VI, WA. WV, WI. WY.INCORPORATED IN: 
Missouri 

Arch Reinsurance Company (NAIC #10348) 
BU&INESS ADDRES$:445 ~outh Street, Suite 220, P.O. Box 1988, Morristown, NJ 07962 -1988. PHONE: 
(973) 898-9575. UNDERWRITING LIMITATION b/: $32,017,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: Al, AK, I>J., AR, 
CA, CO. CT, DE. DC, Fl, GA. HI, 10, ll, IN. lA, KS. KY, LA, MD, MA, Ml, MN, MS. MO. MT, NE, NV, NH. NJ, 
NM, NY. NO, OH, OK, OR, PA, Rl. SC, SO, TN, TX, UT, VT. VA, WA, 'NV. INCORPORATED IN: Delaware. 

Argonaut Insurance Company (NAIC #18801) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 469011, SAN ANTONIO, TX 78248. PHONE: (BOO) 470-7958. 
UNDERWRITING LIMITATION b/: $40,938,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: Al, AK, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, 
DC. FL. GA, GU, HI, ID, ll, IN, lA, KS, KY, LA, ME, MD, MA. MI. MN. MS, MO, MT, NE. NV, NH. NJ, NM, NY. 
NC. NO, OH, OK, OR, PA, PR. Ri, SC, SO, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, VI, WA, WV. WI, WY.INCORPORATED IN: 
Illinois. 

ASPEN AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY (NAIC 043460) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 175 Capttal Bculevard, Suite300, Rocky Hill, CT 06067. PHONE: (860) 258-3500. 
UNDER\1\RITING LIMITATION bl: $25.752,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: Al, AK, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, 
DC, Fl, GA. HI, 10, IL. IN, lA, KS. KY. LA, ME, MD. MA, Ml, MN, MS. MO. MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM. NY, NC, 
NO, OH, OK, OR, PA, Rl, SC, SO, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, VI, WA, WV, WI, WY. INCORPORATED IN: Texas. 

Associated Indemnity Corporation (NAIC #21.865) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 777 San Marin Drive, NovaiO, CA 94998. PHONE: (415) 899-2000. UNDERWRITING 
liMITATION b/: $8,231,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: AL,AK, AZ.AR, CA, CO. CT, DE. DC, Fl, GA,HI, 10, 
ll, IN, lA. KS. KY. LA, ME. MD, MA, MI. MN, MS, MO, MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM, NY, NC. OH, OK, OR, PA, Rl, 
SC. SD, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, WA, WV, WY. INCORPORATED IN: California. 

Atlantic Specialty Insurance Company (NAIC #27154) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 601 Carlson Parkway, Sulle 700, Minnetonka; MN 55305. PHONE: (781) 332-7000. 
UNDERII\RITING.liMITATION b/: $6M81 ,OOO.SURETY liCENSES c,f/:Al, AK. AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, 
DC. Fl. GA, HI, 10, ll, IN. lA, KS. KY. LA, ME, MD, MA. Ml, MN, MS, MO. MT, NE. NV, NH, NJ, NM, NY. NC, 
NO, OH, OK, OR, PA, PR, Rl, SC, SO, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, VI, WA, WV. WI, WY.INCORPORATED IN: New 
York. 

Auto-Owners Insurance Company (NAIC #18988) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 30660,lANSING, Ml48909 -8160. PHONE·. (517) 323-1200. 
UNDER\1\RITING liMITATION b/: $751,176.000 SURETY liCENSES c,f/: Al, AZ. AR, CO, Fl, GA, 10, ll, IN, 
~-U~M~~-~~W-~.~~~~E.~m~~MM 
INCORPORATED IN: Michigan. 

AXIS Insurance Company (NAIC #37273) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 11680 Great Oaks Way, Ste. 500, Alpharella, GA 30022. PHONE: (678) 746-9400. 
UNDER\1\RITING liMITATION bl: $52,622,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: AL, AK, AS, AZ, AR, CA, CO. CT, 
DE. DC, Fl, GA, HI, 10, IL, IN. lA, KS, KY, LA, ME, MD. MA, MI. MN, MS, MO. MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM, NY, 
NC. NO, OH. OK, OR, PA, Rl, SC, SO, TN. TX, UT, VT. VA, WA, WV. WI, WY.INCDRPORATED IN: Illinois. 

AXIS Reinsurance Company (NAIC #20370) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 11680 Great Oaks Way, Suite 500, Alpharella, GA 30022. PHONE: (678) 746-9400. 
UNDER\1\RITING liMITATION b/: $82,269,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: Al. AK, AS, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT. 
DE. DC, Fl. GA, HI,ID, ll, IN,IA. KS, KY. LA, ME, MD, MA, Ml, MN, MS, MO, MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM, NY, 
NC, NO, OH, OK, OR, PA, PR, Rl. SC, SO. TN, TX, UT, VT. VA, WA. WV, WI, WY. INCORPORATED IN New 
York. 

~- Back To Top 

B 

Bankers Insurance Company (NAIC #33162) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: P.O. BOX 15707, ST. PETERSBURG. Fl33733. PHONE: (727) 823-4000. 
UNDERWRITING liMITATION bi: $5.632,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: Al, AK, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, 
DC, Fl, GA, HI.ID, il.IN,IA, KS, KY,LA, ME, MD, MA, MI,MN, MS, MO,MT, NE, NV, NH. NJ.NM, NY, NC, 
NO, OH, OK, OR, PA, SC, SO, TN, TX, UT, VT. VA, WA, WV, WI, WY.INCORPORATED IN: Florida. 

Banker& Standard Insurance Company (NAIC #18279) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 436 WALNUT STREET, P.O. Box 1000, Philadelphia, PA 19106. PHONE: (215) 640-
1000. UNDERWRITING liMITATION b/: $13,206,000. SURETY LICENSES c,f/: Al, AK. AZ, AR. CA, CD, CT. 
DE, DC, FL, GA, HI, ID, ll, IN, lA, KS, KY. MD, MA. MI. MN, MS. MO, MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM. NY, NC. NO, 
OH, OK, OR, PA, Rl, SD. TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, WA, WI, WY. INCORPORATED IN: Pennsylvania. 

Beazley Insurance Company,lnc. (NAIC #37640) 
BUSINESS ADDRESS: 30 Batterson Park Road, Farmington, CT 06032. PHONE: (860) 677-3700, 
UNDER\1\RITING LIMITATION b/: $12,193,000. SURETY liCENSES c,f/: Al, AK, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, 
DC. Fl, GA, HI, ID,Il, IN, lA, KS, KY, LA. ME, MD, MA, MI. MN,MS, MO. MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM, NY, NC, 
NO, OH, OK, DR, PA, Rl, SC, SO, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, WA, WV. WI. WY INCORPORATED IN: Conneclicut. 

https:/ /wv.,w. fiscal. treasury .gov/fsreports/ref/surety Bnd/c570 _ a-z.htm 

Page I of 19 

6/2/2015 
48 



LICENSEE DETAILS 

8
,,, ............. ,.,., .. -.: .. ,,,\''/' ,. •. •'· ''·'>.·•· •·.·,·· ''':••' · .. ·, :·:'·• .... •:·:[.C•: ::·.::.!.C·.,•:,;:•·, :•·••:• • 

JEFF ATWATER, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 

Licensee 
Search 

Licensee 
Address 
Download 

Licensee 
AI!Pointment 
Download 

Tenninated 
Appointment 
Download 

Navigator 
Download 

Licensee Details 

5/31/2015 

Demographic Information 

Name of Licensee: CONGELIO, JAMES CARMEN 
License#: A052793 

Business Location: MAITLAND,F!"OR!DA 

Types and Classes of Valid Licenses 

Type !original Issue DateiiQua!ifying Appointment! 

GENERAL LINES (PROP & CAS)(0220) 13/30/1982 I!YES 

---·-----
Types and Classes of Active Appointments 

GENERAL LINES (PROP & CAS)(0220) 

Company Name Original Issue ExpDate Type County Date 

MERCHANTS NATIONAL BONDING INC 15/20/2015 16/30/2017 STATE !orange I 
MERCHANTS BONDING COMPANY 5/20/2015 6/30/2017 JsT A TEl/orange / (MUTUAL) 

DEVELOPERS SURETY AND 12/1/2014 6/30/2017 STATE /orange / INDEMNITY COMPANY 

UNITED STATES SURETY COMPANY 7/28/2014 0/2017 1sT A TEIIDuva1 I 
AMERICAN CONTRACTORS 7/28/2014 16/30/2017 STATE Jouva1 I INDEMNITY COMPANY 

U.S. SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY 7/28/2014 6/30/2017 lriiliJiouval I 
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF 

6/30/2017,STATE/Jouval / MARYLAND 

COLONIAL AMERICAN CASUALTY AND 7110/2014 6/3 0120 17/sTA TE//nuval /· SURETY COMPANY 

PROGRESSNE EXPRESS INSURANCE 12/31/2003 6/30/2016/sTATEJ/ouval J COMPANY 

PROGRESSIVE AMERICAN INSURANCE 12/31/2003 6/3012016/sTA TEJ/nuval I COMPANY 

INDEMNITY INSURANCE COMPANY OF 
12116/2012 /6/30/2016/sTATE/Inuval I NORTH AMERICA 

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE 
15/2112008 /613 0120 16/sT A TEJJnuva1 I COMPANY 

LM INSURANCE CORPORATION 15/2!12008 ll6i30/2016!1STA TE!Inuval I 

htto://www.myfloridacfo.com/Data/ AAR ALIS 1/LicenseeDetaiJ.asp 

Page 1 of3 

611/2015 
49 



LICENSEE DETAILS Page 2 of3 

LIBERTY MUTUAL FIRE INSURANCE 
5/21/2008 6130120 I61ST A TEIIouval I COMPANY 

AMERICAN HOME ASSURANCE 
1/28/2002 16/30120 1611sTA TEIIouval I COMPANY 

INSURANCE COMPANY OF THE STATE 2/28/2002 6130120 161sT A TEl Duval OF PENNSYLVANIA 

NATIONAL UNION FIRE INSURANCE 
12128/2002 116/30120161JsTATEjJouval I CO. OF PITTSBURGH, PA 

!GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE 
1110/81200 I 161301201 61sT A TEIIouval I COMPANY 

PACIFIC INDEMNITY COMPANY .,81!3/2009 116/30/20 16llsT A TEI!Duval I 
CAPITOL INDEMNITY CORPORATION 16/29/1992 116/30/20 16IIST A TEI!Duval I 
STANDARD FIRE INSURANCE 

19/8/2009 16130/2016 JsrArEIIDuval I COMPANY (THE) 

TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY 7/5/201 I 6130/2016 STATE Duval COMPANY OF AMERICA 
AMERICAN ZURICH INSURANCE 11/26/ 12016 STATE IDuval I COMPANY 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE I 1126/2013 613012016 lsTATEIIDuval I COMPANY 
ZURICH AMERICAN INSURANCE 

013 6/3012016 lsTATEIIDuval I COMPANY OF ILLINOIS 
AMERICAN GUARANTEE AND 11/26/2013 . 6/30/2016 lsTATEIIDuval I LIABILITY INSURANCE COMPANY 
HANOVER AMERICAN INSURANCE 8/5/2013 16/30/2016 STATE IDuval I COMPANY (THE) 

: BERKLEY INSURANCE COMPANY 7/212013 TATE !Duval I 
ACE AMERICAN INSURANCE 13/812007 6/3~~~TATE Duval COMPANY 
!WESTERN SURETY COMPANY 17/15/1998 16/30/ STATE Duval 

AMERISURE MUTUAL INSURANCE 7/30/1992 ~"~ Duval 
COMPANY 
AMERISURE INSURANCE COMPA 7/30!1992 STATE Duval 

AMERISURE PARTNERS INSURANCE 81112010 . STATE Duval 
COMPANY 
FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY /30/1982 1613012015 Duval 
HARTFORD FIRE INSURANCE 7/16/1984 16/30/2015 STATE Duval 
COMPANY 
VIGILANT INSURANCE COMPANY 417/1989 6/30/2015 STATE Duval 

CONTINENTAL CASUALTY COMPANY 9/1112008 6/3012015 STATE Duval 

SAFECO INSURANCE COMPANY OF 7/19/1988 6/30/2015 1sT A TEIIouval I AMERICA 

FIRST NATIONAL INSURANCE 2/9/1995 6/3012015 lsT A TEIIDuvai I COMPANY OF AMERICA 

'AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE 
COMPANY 14/1511999 6/30/2015 '"'"' "' uuval· 

ARCH INSURANCE COMPANY 6/18/2003 6/3012015 STATE Duval 

MASSACHUSETTS BAY INSURANCE 4/3/2009 6/30/2015 uval 
COMPANY 
AMERICAN FIRE AND CASUALTY 

15/2/20 II 16/30/20151sTATEIIDuval I COMPANY 

http://www.myfloridacfo.com/Datal AAR ALIS 1/LicenseeDetail.asp 611/2015 
50 



LICENSEE DETAILS 

HANOVER INSURANCE COMPANY 
(THE) 

413/2009 

• 2011 ©Florida Department offinaocial Services 

htto://www .mvfloridacfo.corn!Data/ AAR ALIS I /LicenseeDetail.asp 

Page 3 of3 

6/1/2015 

51 



ATTACHMENT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Orange County is located in Central Florida, USA and has a population of 1,225,267 
citizens based upon current (2013) County records. The County encompasses 
approximately 988.82 square miles or 639,863.67 acres of which 505,289.95 acres are 
unincorporated and 133,928.19 are incorporated (municipalities). The County has 
approximately 5,113 miles of improved and maintained roadway which includes all 
County, State, Expressway and Municipality roadways. 

The disaster and debris removal Contractor shall provide professional technical services 
in the preparedness, response, recovery, and mitigation phases of any natural or 
manmade disaster or emergency situation, as required by the County. The Contractor 
shall perform all of the requirements of this scope of services as ordered by the County. 
Response time shall be deemed as having a Contractor's representative physically 
present at the Orange County Emergency Operations Center within six (6) hours after 
notification of need. Performance shall be deemed as the commencement of services 
within twenty-four (24) hours of issuance of Notice to Proceed. 

The Contractor shall provide the designated services, including operations and 
management, logistical support, construction and technical assistance before, during, or 
after any potential or actual disaster situations including, but not limited to: 

· Tornados, hurricanes, severe weather events or any other natural or manmade disaster 
or emergency. 

The Contractor shall provide for the provision of personnel, equipment, plans, 
procedures, and other materials and capabilities necessary for both pre-disaster and 
post disaster situations, as ordered on an as needed basis. The Contractor shall have 
available a wide variety of emergency preparedness, response, recovery, and mitigation 
resources. 

A. DEFINITIONS 

BCC. The Orange County Board of County Commissioners, the duly elected governing 
board of the County. 

C&D . Construction and Demolition debris including, but not limited to concrete block, 
steel, glass, brick. 

Eligible Debris • All debris resulting from the incident required to be removed.· hauled 
and disposed of including, but not limited to, the requirements listed in this Scope of 
Services. 

EOC - Emergency Operations Center, located at the Orange County Fire Rescue 
Headquarters building, 6590 Amory Ct., Winter Park, Florida 32792. 

1 

52 



FEMA- Federal Emergency Management Agency, tasked with responding to, planning 
tor, recovering from and mitigating against disasters. 

Government Debris Management Sites - Any site approved by the County for debris 
collection and/or reduction, including TDSRS and Citizen Disposal Sites. 

HTW- Hazardous and/or Toxic Waste including, but not limited to, mercury containing 
devices, soil contaminated with fuel, hydraulic oil or other hazardous materials, 
batteries, bio-hazardous material, any oil or fuel not intended to be used or recycled. 

Incident - Each disaster for which a NTP is issued. In the event of multiple incidents 
occurring during ongoing recovery operations, the Contractor will not be paid for 
mobilization unless additional TDSRS are required due to the subsequent incident. 

LSA - Logistical Staging Area, County designated location for the staging of disaster 
recovery resources including, but not limited to, trucks, cranes, trailers, heavy 
equipment. 

Monitoring Consultant - The Consultant under contract with the County to provide 
oversight and management of disaster recovery and debris removal contractor. 

Mulch - The end product of the chipping or grinding of wood products. 

NTP - Notice to Proceed, official written notice from an authorized County official 
instructing the Contractor to proceed with disaster recovery and debris removal 
activities as specified. 

Project Manager - The individual with the overall responsibility of directing and 
managing the Contractor's disaster recovery and debris removal activities. 

ROW- Right of Way, the land which the County has title to, or right of use, for the road 
and its structures and appurtenances. 

TDSRS - Temporary Debris Storage and Reduction Site(s), including citizen site(s), 
located at various points within the County for the gathering, storage and reduction of 
debris related to a severe weather event or any other natural or manmade disaster or 
emergency. 

White Goods - Including, but not limited to, refrigerators, air conditioners, washing 
machines, electric or gas clothes dryers, electric or gas water heaters. 

Work Sites -Any location at which the Contractor is delivering contract services under 
the contract, including debris pickup sites and ali approved Government Debris 
Management Sites. 

Mileage Radius- TDSRS within a radius of the mileage ranges indicated. 

7 

53 



B. DEBRIS COLLECTION 

The Contractor shall be responsible for debris collection activities including, but 
not limited to, furnishing all labor, materials and equipment to accomplish the 
following tasks: 

1. Clearing, removing and transporting debris from the public right-of-way, all 
County owned property, streets and roads or privately owned property, as 
required to secure the public safety. This includes the removal of 
damaged sidewalks and other damaged improvements from the public 
ROW. Areas from which damaged sidewalks and other damaged 
improvements are removed by the Contractor shall be brought back to 
grade. 

2. Establishment, management and operation of approved County 
Government debris management · sites (TDSRS), to accept, process, 
reduce, incinerate, and dispose of event related debris including all related 
permits and/or approvals. All sites shall be approved by the County prior 
to the commencement of operations. 

3. Demolition and removal of condemned structures and buildings that pose 
a threat to public safety. 

4. The removal of fallen trees that originate from within the ROW and those 
which extend onto the ROW from private property, at the point where it 
enters the ROW, and that part of the eligible debris which lies within the 
ROW, tree trimming, tree topping, tree removal, stump grinding, grubbing, 
clearing, hauling, and disposal. · · 

5. Providing all permits and services necessary for the containment, clean 
up, removal, transport, storage, testing, treatment and/or disposal of 
hazardous and industrial materials, including white goods, resulting from 
the event. 

6. Removal of sand, earthen and foreign materials from roads, streets, 
bridges and rights-of-way, canal!!, retention ponds, drain wells, pump 
stations, control structures and associated drainage structures; screening 
sand and returning clean sand to beaches or other designated sites. 

7. Cleaning and opening of enclosed drainage systems including, but not 
limited to, canals, ditches, retention ponds and streams. 

8. Return areas throughout the County where debris removal is 
accomplished and there is damage due to the Contractor's operations, to 

· their original condition. All damages to. pavement, sidewalk,· curbs or any 
other infrastructure shall be repaired or restored to the satisfaction of the 
County. 

54 



c. LOGISTICS ACTIVITIES 

Upon request from the County, the Contractor shall be responsible for 
management. staff augmentation and support capabilities including, but not 
limited to consumables, temporary facilities, transportation support (trucking and 
static support assets), power generation, portable lights, deployable personnel, 
and .major end items and Development of Operational Procedures for logistical 
Staging Areas, Base Camps, Comfort Stations, food and lodging .. 

D. DOCUMENTATION MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT 

1. Assist the County in preparation of FEMA and State reports for 
reimbursement, including training of Agency/Department employees and 
review of documentation prior to submittal: . 

2. Work closely with State Emergency Management, FEMA, and other 
agencies to insure that debris collection, debris disposition, and all 
supporting data meet each agency's requirements for reimbursement 
eligibility. 

3. Complete and submit County provided disposal tickets, field inspection 
reports, and other data sufficient to provide substantiation for FEMA and 
State reimbursement. 

E. MANAGEMENT. PROCESSING AND LOADING OF ALl ELIGIBLE DEBRIS 
AND/OR RESIDUE AT THE TDSRS . 

Preparation and layout of site; management, maintenance and operation of the 
TDSRS, including but not limited to, the sorting, segregation, processing and 
reduction (chipping, grinding or incinerating);groundwater and soil testing; 
furnishing materials, supplies, labor, tools and equipment necessary to perform 
services; providing traffic control, dust control, erosion control, inspection 
tower(s), utilities services, lighting, ash and HTW containment areas, fire 
protection, permits, environmental monitoring, and safety measures; loading 
reduced/stored and initiating load tickets for final disposition; and closure and 
remediation of the TDSRS. 

Responsible for the establishment, management, maintenance, processing and 
loading of all eligible debris and/or residue at all Citizen Disposal Sites. 

Responsible for constructing and maintaining an all-weather road for access to 
the TDSRS and other debris collection sites. The County's responsibility for any 
road maintenance and support ends at the right-of-way line. 

4 

55 



Responsible for constructing an inspection tower. The tower shall be constructed 
using pressure treated wood. The floor elevation of the tower shall be fifteen (15) 
feet above the existing ground elevation. The floor area shall be 8' X 8', 
constructed .of 2" X 8" joists, 16" on center with Y." plywood supported by four 6" 

. X 6'' posts. The perimeter of the floor area shall be protected by a four (4) foot 
high wall constructed of 2" X 4" studs and W' plywood. The floor area shall be 
covered by a corrugated tin roof. The roof shall provide a minimum of 6'6" of 
headroom below the support beams. Wooden steps shall provide access with a 
handrail. Construction of towers shall comply with all applicable County building 
codes. 

All TDSRS and other debris collection sites shall be maintained in full 
accordance with all applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances, 
regulations and· standards. The Contractor shall segregate operations within 
each site. 

All equipment used in the performance of this contract shall be in good operating 
condition and in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, regulations and standards. All equipment including, but not limited 
to, grinding equipment, generators; light towers, etc., shall be equipped with a 
properly functioning and accurate hour meter. 

Each TDSRS shall be equipped with portable toilets with hand washing 
aceessories, a working office trailer and a debris inspection/observation tower. 

F. SPECIFIC SERVICES 

As directed by the County, the Contractor shall perform the following services: 

(1) Private Property Demolition and. Debris Removal - The Contractor shall 
operate beyond the public Right Of way only as identified and directed by 
the County. 

(2) Marine Debris Removal - The Contractor shall clear canals and 
waterways of marine debris. Marine debris is defined as any material 
obstructing a canal or waterway, including lake debris. 

(3) Hazardous and/or Toxic Waste Disposal - The Contractor shall collect, 
transport and dispose of HTW in accordance with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws, standards and regulations as directed by the County. 
The coordination for HTW removal and disposal at a lawfully permitted 
disposal facility shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

(4) Fallen Trees. Hazardous Leaning Trees and Hanging Limbs - The 
Contractor shall remove fallen trees, leaning trees or hanging limbs that 
originate from within the ROW and those which extend over the ROW 
from private property, at the point where it enters the ROW. 

5 

56 



(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

(10) 

(11) 

Fallen or leaning trees or hanging limbs which originate from private 
property and extend onto or into the ROW shall be cut at the point where 
they enter the ROW. The fallen or leaning trees and hanging limbs, and 
that part of the eligible debris which lies within the ROW shall be.removed 
from the ROW and be properly disposed of by the Contractor. 

Hazardous Stumps - The Contractor shall measure each stump two {2) 
feet above normal ground level to determine the diameter of the trunk. All 
stumps with a diameter of 24" or less removed or excavated from public 
rights of way and stumps placed on public rights of way but not excavated 
by the Contractor shall be paid under Fee Schedule .Item 1A, Removal. 
loading. hauli119. of all eligible debris and/or residue from designated work 
zones to the TDSRS. as specified. All stumps larger than 24" shall be 
paid under Fee Schedule Item 2A (Page B-2), Hazardous Stumps. 

Fill Dirt -As identified and directed by the County, the Contractor shall 
place compatible clean fill. dirt, approved by the County or its 
representative, in ruts created by equipment and vehicles, h.oles created 
by removal of hazardous stumps and other areas that pose an imminent 
and significant threat to public health and safety. 

Soil Screening - The Contractor shall screen all soil to remove Eligible 
Debris deposited as a result of a natural or manmade disaster. Soil 
screening shall include the collection of debris-laden soil, hauling to the 
processing screen; processing the soil through the screen and returning to 
a location designated by the County. Eligible debris removed from the soil 

·shall be collected, hauled and processed at the TDSRS. · 

White Goods - The Contractor shall recycle all eligible white goods 
including, but not limited to, refrigerators, freezers and air conditioners in 
accordance with all federal, state and local rules, regulations and laws. 

Freon Recoverv - The Contractor shall remove and recover Freon from 
any white goods at the TDSRS or final disposition site in accordance with 
all federal, state and local rules, regulations and laws. 

Mobilization and Demobilization -All arrangements necessary to mobilize 
and demobilize the Contractor's labor force and equipment needed to 
perform the Scope of Services contained herein shall be made by the 
Contractor. 

Closure and Remediation of the TDSRS - Within thirty (30) days after 
notice by the County, the Contractor shall cease debris collection activities 
and remove all Contractor equipment and temporary structures and 
dispose of all residual debris from the TDSRS at an approved, final 
disposition site. Ash piles shall be tested for parameters as directed by 
the County using the Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure, and ash 
shall be disposed of in a Class I landfill if contamination is not found. 

57 



The County reserves the right to split samples or to obtain its own. If 
unacceptable levels of contamination are detected, the ash shall be 
disposed of in a hazardous material landfill as approved by the County. 
Once stockpiled debris is removed from the site, the ·Contractor shall test 
soil and groundwater,. and the test results shall be compared to baseline 
test results to determine if contaminants are present. The Contractor is 
responsible for the reclamation and remediation of the TDSRS to its 
original state, subject to the County's final acceptance. Payment retainage 
will not be released until all debris sites have been closed alid remediated. 

(12) Storm Sewer Cleaning - The contactor shall provide all labor, equipment 
and materials necessary to remove debris, silt, dirt, or any other foreign 
obstruction in order to restore maximum flow within the storm water 
conveyance systems. 

G. ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY OF DEBRIS MONITORING CONSULTANT 

The County may employ the services of a debris monitoring consultant to provide 
oversight of the Contractor's operations. In this capacity, the consultant acts as 
the County's agent and has authority to act on its behalf, including direction to 
the Contractor on all operational, reporting and administrative matters. 

H. PRODUCTION RATES 

The CONTRACTOR cammits to the following minimum production rates for 
debris removal: 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 
(4) 

Up to two hundred fifty thousand (250,000) cubic yards -.15 calendar 
days from NTP. · 
Up to five hundred thousand (500,000) cubic yards - 30 calendar days 
frorri NTP. . 
Up to one million (1 ,000,000) cubic yards- 60 calendar days from NTP. 
Greater than one mUiion ( 1 ,000,000) cubic yards .,. 15 calendar days for 
every two hundred fifty thousand (250,000) cubic yards thereafter from 
NTP. 

Debris removal is defined as the removal of debris from public ROW'S and other 
County owned property and transport to the applicable TDSDS. 

1. CREW/EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

A crew shall consist of the following minimum resources: 

(1) One (1) self loader or a combination of three hauling units that can 
be mechanically· loaded by a front-end loader or other appropriate 
equipment and; 

(2) One ( 1) sawman and two (2) laborers with all pertinent equipment 
and; 

(3) Two (2) flagmen 

7 
58 



J. HOT SPOT CREW 

The Contractor shall have at least. one hot spot crew. The crew shall consist of 
one (1) self loader plus the minimum crew specified in paragraph I of this Scope 
of Services. The crew will respond to urgent requirements as directed by the 
County and shall begin operation within twenty-four (24) hours after NTP. 

K. CLAIMS RESOLUTION 

The Contractor shall respond in writing to each claimant within fourteen (14) 
calendar days after claim is lodged with a copy to the County's designated 
representative. All claims shall be resolved by the Contractor within thirty (30) 
calendar days after submission. 

However if the Contractor has the capability to provide this information to the 
County electronically, the County will review this process and determine if its 
acceptable. 

The Contractor shall submit all resolved claims to the County's designated 
representative. The Contractor shall attest to the following: 

• To the best of the Contractor's knowledge, all data offered by the claimant 
shall support that the claim is accurate and complete. 

• The claims amount .accurately reflects the claimant's actual incurred costs. 

• All records and claims of records shall be put into a spread sheet and 
submitted every thirty · (30) days, which shall include all paid and 
outstanding claims and if any claim is over thirty (30) days a reason for its 
delay. 

• No claims will be paid unless a valid claim was submitted to the County's 
designated representative. 

L. LOAD TICKETS AND TRUCK CERTIFICATIONS 

The County will· issue the CONTRACTOR standard load tickets and standard 
truck certification documents for use during the performance of the contract (see 
Attachments D and E). However, if the Contractor has the capability to provide 
this information to the County electronically, the County will review this process 
and determine if it is acceptable. 

M. DUMP/TIPPING FEES 

All dump/lipping fees shall be reimbursed at their actual cost with proper 
documentation. 

8 

59 



N. DISPOSAL OF REDUCED DEBRIS 

When the County requires chipping/grinding as a method of debris reduction, it is 
the Contractor's responsibility to acceptably dispose of the chips or mulch, at no 
additional cost to the County. For disposal, the chips or mulch shall be put to 
some beneficial use. 

The Contractor may provide or sell the chips or mulch to be recycled for use in 
agricultural mulch, fuel or wood products consistent with State, federal and local 
requirements. 

0. FEE SCHEDULE 

Unless otherwise indicated in this scope of services, all services performed under 
this contract shall be paid in accordance with Line Items 1A, 18, 1C, 10, 2A, 28, 
and 3. 

P. OVERTIME LABOR RATES 

Overtime labor rates shall be paid in accordance with U.S. Department of Labor 
standards. 

Q. PRIVATE WORK 

The Contractor and any subcontractors shall be prohibited from performing 
private work in Orange County while actively engaged in delivering services 
under this contract, nor shall they perform work for private citizens after normal 
operational hours during the course of their work under the contract. Exceptions 
are any existing private work contracts the Prime or subcontractor may already 
have in place at the time of the Notice to Proceed. 

R. TEMPORARY DEBRIS STORAGE AND REDUCTION SITES 

Temporary Debris Storage and Reduction Sites (TDSRS} identified by the 
County may change from year to year. For this reason, it shall be the 
Contractor's responsibility to visit the County identified TDSRS no later than the 
month of May of each contract year to fully gauge all conditions that may impact 
contract performance. The Contractor may select their own sites subject to 
County approval and at no cost to the County. 

60 



2015 CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. Pricing for Orange County, FL 

ATTACHMENT B-REVISED FEE SCHEDULE FOR 

Y15-1022-CH; DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 

The • Proposer shall provide all labor, tools, equipment, mobilization, 
demobilization and other resources required to complete the requirements of the 
scope of aervlces for the unit prices llstad which shall include bonds, lneurance, 
overhead and Profltl: · . 

1A. Removal, loading, hauling, of all eligible debris and/or residue from 
designated work zonas to the TDSRS as specified 

Mileage Radius Estimated Unit Unit Price TOTAl. PRICE 
Q_ty_ 

0-15 miles 1 700,000 Cubic Yard $7.90 $13,430,000.00 

16.30 miles 500000 Cubic Yard $8.70 $ 4,350 000.00 

31 • 60 miles 100,000 Cubic Yard $9.50 $ 950 000.00 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEM 1A: 

$ 18,730,000.00 

1 B. Remove, LOi!do !:fl!ul rmm Citil;!!l SIS! all st!brit. s!Qrau •nsf amcessina !!t 
msB, FI!J!I Dltll2!i!l 

Estimated Unit Unit Price 
QTY 

20,000 Cubic Yard $8.50 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEM 1B: 

$ 170,00.00 

Y15-1 022-CH 
Addendum#1 
March 6, 2015 

REVISEDB-1 

TOTAL PRICE 

$170 000.00 

61 



ATTACHMENT B- REVISED FEE SCHEDULE FOR 

Y15-1022-CH; DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 

1C. Management and Processing of all eligible debris and/or residue at the 
TDSRS 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST IT.EM 1C: 

$ 12,075;000.00 

1D. Remove, load, haul and final disposal. of all eligible debris and/or 
residue to a designated and authorized landfill or recycling facility from ·the 

$14.00 

$24.00 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEM 10: 

$ 4,788,000,000 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEMS 1A, 18, 1C, AND 10: 

Y16-1022·CH 
Addendumfll1 
March 8, 2015 

$ 35,763,000.00 ·--------

REVISED B-2 

62 



ATTACHMENT B- REVISEO FEE SCHEDULE FOR 

Y15·1022-CH; DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 

2A. Ha~ardoua Stumpe, as specified (To include any fill dirt and seeding required 
to level and restore the removal area) · . 

Diameter Estimated Qty Unit Unit Price TOTAL PRICE 

25"to48" 1,000 Each $350.00 I $350,000.00 

Greater than 1,000 Each $450.00 $450,000.00 
48" 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEM 2A: 

$ $800,000.00 

28. HAZARDOUS LIMBS 
Diameter Estimated Qty Unit Unit Price TOTAL PRICE 

Removal and 1,500 Each 
disposal of 

$70.00 hazardous $105,000.00 
hanging limbs 

· greater than 2 
inches In 
diameter. 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEM 28: 

$ 105,000.00 

TOTAL ESTIMATED FOR COST ITEMS 2A AND 28: 

Y16·1022·CH 
Addendum#1 
March 6, 2015 

$ 905,000.00 

REVISEDB·3 

63 



ATTACHMENT 8- REVISED FEE SCHEDULE FOR 

Y15-1022-CH; DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 

3. Demolition of structures and processing of structural construction debris and 
materials (fo inc.lude all manpower, equipment, materials, environmental 
mltlaation. etc .. as specified) . 

Description Estimated Qty Unit 
Demolish/Dispose 10,000 Cubic Yarcls 
of Predominately 
Concrete Block 
Structure 
Demofish/Dispose 10,000 Cubfc·Yards 
of Predominately 
Wood Frame 
Structure 
Demolish/Dispose 10,000 Cubic Yards 
of Predominately 
Metal/Steel 
Structure 
Demolish/Dispose 10,000 Cubic Yards 
of Surface 
lmprovemel'lts 
(Pool Deck, 
DrivewaY$, 
Sidewalks Slabsl 
$eplic Tank 4 Each 
Abandonment 
and Removal 
Demolish and 1,500 Square Feel 
Remove Above-
Ground Pool, 
Empty or Filled 
with Water 
Excavate Dirt, 30,000 Square Feet 
DemoUshand 
Remove In· 
Ground Concrete 
Pool Filled with 
Dirt 
Excavate Dirt, 30,000 Square Feet 
Demolish and 
Remove In-
Ground 
Fiberglass Pool 
Filled with Dirt 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEM 3: 

$ 746,575.00 

Y15·1022·CH 
Addendum#1 
March 6, 2015 

REVISEDB-4 

Unit Price TOTAL PRICE 

$14.00 $140,000.00 

$16.00 $160.00 
. 

$12.00 $120,000.00 

$14.00 $140,000.00 

$800.00 $3,200.00 

$2.25 $3,375.00 . 

$3.00 $90,000.00 

$3.00 $90,000.00 

64 



ATTACHMENT B- REVISED FEE SCHEDULE FOR. 

Y15-1022·CH; DISASTER RECOVERY AND DEBRIS REMOVAL 

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST ITEMS 1A, 18, 1C,1D, 2A, 28 AND 3: 

$ 37,414,575.00 

THE FEES IN PAGES BEVISED !!:§ THROUGH REVISED ~ OF THI FEE SCHEDULE 
ARE FOR FUTURE USE IF NECESSARY BY THE COUNTY. THEY WILL NOT BE A 
FACTOR IN THE EVALUATION OF COST. 

Y15·1 022·CH 
Addendum#1 
March 6, 2015 

Date: 03/1312015 

REVISEDB·6 

65 



Y15·1022·CH 
Addendum #1 
March 6. 201 s 

Proposer. CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. 

REVISED 8·6 

63.00 

67.00 

72.00 

82.00 

560.00 

66 



Y15·1022·CH 
Addendum #1 
March 6, 2015 

Proposer: CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. 

REVISEDB-7 

20.00 

.30.00 

30.QO 

30.00 

14.00 

43.00 

50.00 

NA 
20.00 

20.00 

15.00 

240.00 

135.00 

NA 
40.00 

160.00 

240.00 

240.00 

240.00 

96.00 

160.00 

240.00 

185.00 

160.00 

160.00 

150.00 

1,920.00 

1,350.00 

500.00. 

260.00 

67 



DuPont TK555T, or 

Y15·1022·CH 
Addendum #1 
March 6, 2015 

Proposer: CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. 

REVISED B.IJ 

10.00 

5.00 

3.00 

15.00 

150.00 

40.00 

20.00 I kit 

40.00 

24.00 

120.00 

40.00 I kit 

68 



or 

or 

or 

Type 1 

Proposer: CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. 

Y15·1 022.CH 
Addendum #1 
March 6, 2015 

REVISEDB-9 

15.00 

30.00 

14.00 

32.00 

1.00 

1.50 

2.00 

2.25 

1.00 

2.50 

5.00 

12.00 

25.00 

3.00 

240.00 

112.00 

141.00 

8.00 

12.00 

16.00 

111.25/wk 

16.00 

20.00 

40.00 

96.00 

69 



Proposer: CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. 

Y15·1022·CH 
Addendum 111 
March 6, 2015 

REVISED B-10 

2.00 

5.00 

3..00 

35.00 

2.00 

2.00 

2.00 

20.00 

5.00 

2.00 

4.00 

280.00 

16.00 

16.00 

16.00 

160.00 

40.00 

8.00 

24.00 

16.00 

32.00 

70 



. Proposer: CrowderGulf Joint Venture. Inc. 

Y15·1022·CH 
Addendum #1 
March 6, 2015 

REVISED 8·11 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 
15.00 

80.00 

NA 

2.00 

NA 
4.00 

7.00 pair 

10.00 pair 

10.00 pair 

28.00 

32.00 

71 



NA 

NA 

2.00 

1.00 8.00 

3.00 25.00 

Proposer: CrowderGulf Joint Venture. Inc. 
· YlS-1022-CH REVISED 8·12 
ADDENDUM tl 1 72 



14 per pound 

4.50 each 

Proposer: CrowderGulf Joint Venture. Inc. 

Yl5-1022-CH 
ADDENDUM h 1 
M41U"U t:. ")/'\1 ~ 

REVISED 8·13 

90.00 

65.00 

48.00 

36.00 . 

30.00 

30.00 

40.00 

54.00 

28.00 

70.00 

125.00 

70.00 

50.00 

75.00 

40.00 

55.00 

45.00 

50.00 

55.00 

384.00 . 

288.00 

240.00 

240.00 

320.00 

432.00 

224.00 

560.00 

1,000.00 

560.00 

400.00 

600.00 

320.00 

440.00 

360.00 

400.00 

440.00 

73 



Dead Animal Removal and Pound 

Proposer: CrowderGulf J.oint venture, Inc. 

Y15-1 022·CH 
Addendum #1 
March 6, 2015 

REVISED B-14 

70.00 

65.00 

130.00 

40.00 

55.00 

45.00 

50.00 

35.00 

45.00 

35.00 

$ 

560.00 

520.00 

1,040.00 

320.00 

440.00 

360.00 

400.00 

280.00 

360.00 

280.00 

1.00 

74 



EMERGENCY CONTACT 

Emergency Contact Person: :....:A:....:sh:....:le~y_;Ra:....:m_sa..:.y_~---------

Telephone Number: (SOOJ 992-6207 Cell Phone Number: (646} 872-1548 

Residence Telephone Number: (251 J 459·7430 

Email Address: aramsay@crowdergulf.com 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF AQDENQA 

The Proposer shall acknowledge receipt of any addenda lssul)d to this solicitation by 
completing the blocks below or by completion of the applicable information on the 
addendum and returning It not later than the date and time for receipt of the proposal. 
Failure to acknowledge an addendum that has a material impact on this solicitation may 
negatively impact the responsiveness of your proposal. . Material impacts Include but 
are not limited to changes to specifications, scope of services, delivery time, 
performance period, quantities, bonds, letters of credit, insurance, or qualifications. 

Addendum No. 1 Date 03/06/2015 Addendum No._, Date ___ __,. 

Addendum No. , Date ____ _ Addendum No._, Date ___ _ 

PROPOSAL RESPONSE DOCUMENTS SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Qualifications of Firm (Refer to Page 12, Paragraph 1) 
2. Qualifications of Staff (Refer to Page 13, Paragraph 2) 
3. Technical Approach (Refer to Page 13, Paragraph 3) 
4. Fee Schedule (Pages REVISED B-fthrough REVISED B·15) 
5. Schedule of Subcontracting (Page B·16) 
6. Conflict/Non·Conflict of Interest Statement (Page 8·17) 
7. Authorized Signatories/Negotiators (Page B·18) 
8. Drug-Free Worl<place Form (Page 8·19) 
9. E Verification Certification (Page 8·20) 
10.RelatlonshipDisclosure Form (OC CE Form2P) 
11 • Orange County Specific Project Expenditure Report 
12.Agent Authorization Form . · 
13.Performance Bond (Attachment H) 
14. Payment Bond (Attachment I) 
15. References (Attachment J) 

Y15·1022·CH 
Addendum #1 
March 6, 2015 

REVISED B·15 

75 



FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGSNCY, OHS 
Required Federal Provisions 

Title 44 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 13.36 
Y15·1022 

Disaster Recovery and Debris Removal 

1. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT 

Background and Appllcallon 
The Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act Is codified at 40 USC 3701, et 
seq. The Ad •. applies to grantee contracts and suboontracta "financed at least rn· part 
by loans or grants from ... the (Federal) Government.• 40 USC 3701(b)(1)(B)(ill) and 
(b)(2), 29 CFR U(h), 49. OFR 18.36(1)(6). Although the original Act required Its 
appUcatlon In any construction contract ovar $2,000 or non-construction contract to 
vmlcll the Act app.»ed over $2,500 {and language to !hat effect Is stil! found In 49 CFR 
18.36(0(6)), the Act no lonser appOe.s to any "contract In. an amount that Is not greater 
than $100,000." 40 USC 3701{b)(SXA)(IH) . 

.contract Work.Hours and Safety Standards 
· 1, Overtime requirements • No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of 

. the contract work which may requlre.or Involve the emploYtnent of laborers or 
mechanics shaH require or permit any such laborer or mechanic In any W<irkwaek 
In which he or she Is employed oh such work to work In excess of forty hours In 
such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate 
not less then one and one-half limes the basic rate of pay for a~ holir& worked In · 
exoes's of forty hours In such workweek. 

2. Violation; llabiiRy for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. • In the event of any 
violation of the clause set forth In paragraph (1) of thla section the contractor and 
aey s~bcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wases. In 
aildlt!on, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United Slates for 
Uquldaied damages. Such Uqu~ted damages shall be computed with reSpect to 
each Individual laborer or mechanic, Including watchmen and guards·, employed In 
violation of tha clause set forth In paragraP.h (1) of lhla section, In the sum Of $10 
for each calendar day on which suoh Individual was required or permKted to work 
In exctss of tli& standard workweek of· forty hours without payment of the 
overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section. 

3. W«hholdfn; for unpaid wages and liquidated damages • The (write In the name of 
the grantee) shaD upon Its own action or upon wrl~n request of an authorlzed 
representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld,. from 
any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or 
suboontraclor under any such contrect or- any other Federal contrect with the 

· same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the 
contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which Is held by the same prime 
ccnlractor, such . sums as may be determined to be necessary to satrs.fy any 
llabHIUes of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wegss and Hquldated 
damages as provided In the clause set forth In paragraph (2) of this section. 

'5-1022 Page 1 of4 

.• tachment K 

( 

76 



Subcontracts • The contractor or subcontractor shall Insert in any subcontracts the 
clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause 
requiring the subcontractors to Include these clauses In any lower tier subcontracts. 
The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subo(!litractor or 
lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth In paragraphs (1) through (4) of 
this section. 

2. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POI.LUTION 
CONTROL ACT 

By submission of this blr:l or the execution of this contract, or subcontract, as 
appropriate, tile bidder, Federal-aid construction contractor; or ~Ubconlractor, as 
appropriate, wiH be deemed to have stipulated as follows: 

1. That any facllltv that Is or will be ullll%ed ln lhe ·performance of lhls contract, uriless 
8llCh contract Is exempt under the Clean Air Aot, ee amended (42 U.S.C. 1657 §! 
Dll·· as ·amended by Pub.l. 91·604), and under the Federal Water fioUutlon 
Control Act, as amended (33 u.s.c. 1251 §Jug., as amended by Pub.L. 9Z..500), 
Executive Order11736, and regulations In lmpfementallon thereof (40 CFR 15) is 
not listed, on the date of contract award, on the U.S. Environmental Protection 

· Agency (EPA) List ofVIola1ing Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20. 

2. That the firm. agrees to c:omply and remain In oompliBllCe wllh ali the requirements 
of Section 114 of t11e Cleen PJr Act and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act and all regulations and guidelines listed there(!nder. 

3. That .the firm shall promptly notify the SHA of the receipt of any communieation 
from the Director, Office of Federal Aotlvltl~s. EPA, Indicating that a facUlty lllat Is 
or will be utiUed for the contract'' under oonsraerallon 19 be listed on the EPA List 

· of Vlolatlng Faclfllies. 

4. Tl!at the firm agrees to include or cause to ·be ·Included the requlremehts of 
paragraph 1 through 4 of this Section X In every nonexempt subcontract, and 
fUrther agrees to take such aellon as !he government may direct as a means of 
enlorckig such requirements. 

3, IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ENERGY POLICY AND C9NSERVATION ACT 
. (PUB. L. 94·183, 89 Stat.. 871) 

sY submlss.lon of this bid or lhe execution of this contract, or subcontract, es 
appropriate, the bidder, Federal-aid construction contractor, or subcontractor, as 
appropriate, wiU be deemed to have stipulated as follows: 

Thatth& firm agrees tG comply and remain In compliance wtth all the mpndatory . 
stand8rds and poUcles relating to energy efficiency which ara contained !n the state 
energy conservation pla.n Issued In compUance with the Energy Polley and 
coneervatlon Act {Pub. t. 94-163, 89 Stat871). 

Y!s-1021 
'chmentK 

Page 2 of 4 

77 



4. AUDITING: 

The Contractor shall retain all books, records, and other documents to this Contract 
tor five (5) years after final payment 44 CFR; 13.36, Procurement, provides the 
U:S. ComptrcUer General and his representatives With the aUthority to; 

(a) Examine any records of the Contractor or any of Its subcontraclors, or any 
State or local agency administering such contract, that directly pertain to, 
and Involve tra~aoUons relating to, the contrect or any subcontract; and 

(b) Interview any offk:er or empl()fee of the Conl!aotor or any of Its 
sUbcontraclors, or or· any State or looal government agency administering 
the contract, regarding such transactions. 

Accordingly, the Comptroller General and his rap~entalives ahall have· the 
authority and rlphts as provided under 44 CFR, 13.36, Procuremenl with respect 
to this Contract, which ·Is funded with funds made avaPable under the Federal 
emergency Relief Program, further states. that nothing In this section shall be 
lnterproted to lln!ll or restrlct In any way any existing authority of the Comptroller 
G~neral. · · · 

· . The Comptroller General, or designee ahall have the authorlly to examine any 
record and Interview any employee or officer of the Contractor, Its subcontractors 
or other firms working on this Contract. This right of examination shall also 
Include Inspection at all reasonable times of the Contractor's plants, or parts of 
them, engaged In pertormin(l the Contr11ct. . · 

The County's representatives shall have, In addition to any other audit or 
Inspection right in this Contract, aH the audl.t and lnspectiqn rights contained In 
this section. 

· 4. EQUAL EMPlOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE 

During the performance of this contract, lhe CONTRACTOR agrees as follows: 

1. The CONTRACTOR will not d[acrlminale against any employee or applk:ant for 
amploymenl becauee of race, color, rellgton, sex or national origin. The CONTRACTOR 
will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated durlng employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or 

. naHonal origin. Such acllon ahalllnolucle, but not be llmHed to 'the.lollowlng: 

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recrullmenl or rscrultment·sdvertlslng; 
layoff or·termlnatlon, rates ol pay or other forma of compensation; and seleotlon for 
training, lnclucllng apprenticeship.· The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in consp!ouous 
·places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided 
· setHng forth lha provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

2. The CONTRACTOR will, In allaollcltatlons or advertl&emantslor employees placed by 
. or on behaU of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants wiU receive 
conslderati~n for employment without regard to racs, color, religion, sex, or natlo.nal 
origin. 

V1HD2Z 
:hmentK 

Page 3 ot4 

··-·· ..... 

78 



3. The CONTRACTOR will send .to each l;lbor union or repraeentaUye of workers with 
wl)ich he hau collectiVe bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a 
notice to· be provided advising the said labor urylon or workers' rapresentatlvae o(the 
coNrRACTOR'a commltmenlil under this ~~ectlon, and shall post copies of the notice in 
conspicuous places available io employee• and appiloante for employment. 

4. The CONTRACTOR will comply· wllh all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of 
Sep\ember . 24, 1985, entitled 'Equal Employment Opportunity", as amended by 
!:xecullve Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, end as supj)lemented In Department of 
L;abor regulation& (41 CFR chapter 60) ancl of the rules, reaulillons, ancl relevant orders 
of the ~ecretary of Labor. · 

5. The CONTRACTOR wiH furnish all Information and· reports required by Execu6ve 
Order .11248 or September 24, 1966, and by rules, reaulatlons, and orders of the · 
Secretary of labor, or pursuant thereto, and·will pennlt ai:cess to hls books, records, 
and accounts by the administering agency and the Secr:etarv of labor for purpoaes of 
Investigation to ascertllln compUence with such lilieS, regulations, and order.. 

6. iri the event of the CONTRACTOR'S non·compllanoe with the non-dlecrlmtnatlon 
clauses o( !hit contract or with anyof the sa.ld rules, regulations, or orders, this contract 
may be canciled, termln~. or suspended In whole or In part and !he CONTRACTOR 
may· be declared lnaJiglbla for further Government contracts or federaHy aislsted 
construction contracts In acQ9rdance with proceduree. authorized In E~utlve Order 
11246 of September 24, 1985, or by rules, regulation, or Orde( of the Secretary of Labor, 
or as otheiwlse provided by law. · 

The CONTRACTOR wlil lnctucfe the portion ·of the sentence Immediately preceding 
paragraph (I) and the provisions of paragraphs {1) through (7)1n evary subcontract or 
purchate ordsr unless exempted by·rules, regulations, o( orders of the Secretary of 
Labor Issued pursuant to Setllfon 204 of Executive. Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
80 thalsucli proviSions will be binding upon each Subcontraetor or vendor. 

Tht CONTRACTOR will take suoh atlllon with resP,ect to any subcontract or purchase 
order ae the administering agelloy may dlreel aa a means of erifordng such provisions, 

· moludin9 sanollons for non~compllance: Provided, however, that In the eveAt a 
cONTRACTOR beoomae Involved In, or Is threatened wllh, litigation with a 
Suboonlractor or vendor as. a result of such direction by the administering agency, the 
cONTRACTOR may ~ues! the United Statae to enter Into such llllgatlon to protect the 

· Interests of the United Stales. 

V1S.1022 
·~chment K 

Page 4 of 4 

79 



TO: Municipal Key Official 

FROM: Michael Sittig, Executive Directo 

DATE: May 20, 2015 

SUBJECT: 89th Annual FLC Conference- Florida Cities: A Public Conversation 
VOTING DELEGATE INFORMATION 
August 13-15, 2015- World Center Marriott, Orlando 

As you know, the Florida League of Cities' Annual Conference will be held at the World 
Center Marriott, Orlando, Florida on August 13-15. This year the theme for this year's 
conference is Florida Cities: A Public Conversation, which will provide valuable 
educational opportunities to help Florida's municipal officials serve their citizenry more 
effectively. 

rit is ii:npottant that each municipality designaJe one official to be the v9ting delegat\0). 
Election of League leadership and adoption of resolutions are undertaken during the 
business meeting. Voting delegates will also adopt the FLC 2016 Legislative Action 
Agenda because the 2016 Legislative Session will begin early next year. One official 
from each municipality will make decisions that determine the direction of the League. 

In accordance with the League's by-laws, each municipality's vote is determined by 
population, and the League will use the Estimates of Population from the University of 
Florida for 2014. 

Conference registration materials will be sent to each municipality in the month of June. 
Materials will also be posted on-line. Call us if you need additional copies. 

If you have any questions on voting delegates, please call Gail Dennard at the League 
(850) 701-3619 or (800) 616-1513, extension 3619. Voting delegate forms must be 
received by the League no later than August 7, 2015. 

Attachments: Form Designating Voting Delegate 

PreSident Matthew D. Surrency, Mayor, Hawthorne 

First Vice President Susan Haynie. Mayor, Boca Raton • Second Vice President Vacancy 

ExeclDI:ive Director Michael SiHig • General Counsel Harry Morrison, Jr. 

80 



89th Annual Conference 
Florida League of Cities, Inc. 
August 13-15,2015 
Orlando, Florida 

It is important that each member municipality sending delegates to the Annual 
Conference of the Fiorida League of Cities, designate one of their officials to cast their 
votes at the Annual Business Session. League By-Laws requires that each municipality 
select one person to serve as the municipalities voting delegate. Municipalities do not 
need to adopt a resolution to designate a voting delegate. 

Please fill out this form and return it to the League office so that your voting delegate 
may be properly identified. 

Designation of Voting Delegate 

Name of Voting Delegate:---------------------

Title:----------------------'---------

Municipality of: __________ .;__ ____________ _ 

AUTHORIZED BY: 

Name 

Title 

Return this form to: 

Gail Dennard 
Florida League of Cities, Inc. 
Post Office Box 1757 
Tallahassee, FL 32302-1757 
Fax to Gail Dennard at (850) 222-3806 or email gdennard@jlcities.com 

81 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-05 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA FORMALLY 
RENAMING MAIN STREET (AKA MAGNOLIA STREET) AS MAGNOLIA 
STREET PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, Main Street, as shown on the Tropical Pines Subdivision plat recorded at 
Book J, Page in the Official Records of Orange County, Florida has been known and identified 
for many years as Magnolia Street; and 

WHEREAS, in order to avoid confusion, the City Council finds its necessary and 
appropriate to formally rename Main Street as identified in the above. referenced plat to Magnolia 
Street to conform the official records to common usage. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED, by the City Council of Edgewood, Florida as follows: 

Section 1. The name of the following street located within the Tropical Pines Subdivision plat as 
recorded in Book J, Page ll, Orange County, Florida is amended as follows: 

Present Street Name New Street Name 

Main Street Magnolia Street 

Section 2: The name change shall be effective upon submission and recording of the name 
change to the Orange County Comptroller. 

Section 3: The new street name shall be submitted to the 911 coordinator by the City. 

Section 4: The street sign shall be posted in a manner to comply with 911 requirements. 

Section 5: Conflicts. All ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith, are and the same are 
hereby repealed. 

Section 5: Severability. If any section, paragraph, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 
of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

Section 6: Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ day of _______ , 2015, by the City Council 
of the City of Edgewood, Florida. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING: June 16,2015 

PASSED ON SECOND READING: ________ _ 

ORDIN~E 2015-05 

82 



John Dowless, Council President 

A1TEST.· 

Bea L. Meeks, MMC 
City Clerk 

ORDIN~E 2015-05 

83 



Fr(TWI; ~ ~ of~ City CLe-rk-.... ~ 
13uv L. f\lfuk-s--, /111/lltC, CP/111, CI3TO 

TO: Mayor Bagshaw, Council President Dowless, Council 

Members, Powell, Henley and Drummond 

DATE: 

RE: 

July 14, 2015 

Request to set tentative ad valorem millage rate and establish public 
hearings on the proposed budget and millage for Fiscal Year 
2015/2016 

The purpose of this memorandum is to recommend that the Edgewood City Council set the 
proposed operating millage rate for Fiscal Year 2015/2016. The highest allowable millage rate 
for a taxing entity is ~en mills. 

• The millage rate for Fiscal Year 2014/2015 is 4.7000. 
• The rolled-back rate, based on the Property Appraiser's Certification of Taxable Value for 

the current Calendar Year is 4.559 mills. The rolled-back rate is that millage rate that 
will generate the same ad valorem tax proceeds as the prior year exclusive of any new 
construction. 

• That the rate requested be the maximum allowed by state law given the limitations of 
property tax reform legislation. The adoption of the highest allowable millage rate gives 
City Council the maximum flexibility in ultimately establishing the final millage rate 
after the budget workshop(s) in August and the two required public hearings in 
September. 

• Any modification of the tentative rate by City Council during the budget workshop(s) and 
the public hearings can only be a decrease from the proposed millage rate. 

In the June 16, 2015 City Council meeting, Council agreed to hold the first public hearing on the 
tentative budget and millage on Monday, September 7, 2015 in the Council Chamber of City 
Hall at 6:30 p.m. This date will need to be changed. as this is Labor Dav. For this reason, I 
am requesting that the public hearing/adoption of the tentative budget and proposed millage be 
Tuesday, September 8, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. This is a special meeting date. This first public 
hearing is advertised on the Notice of Proposed Property Taxes (TRIM Notice) and is mailed to 
taxpayers by the Orange County Property Appraiser. 

Within 15 days following the tentative budget hearing, the City must advertise its intent to adopt 
a final millage rate and budget in a newspaper of general paid circulation within the town. The 
second public hearing on the budget must be held within two to five days after the date the 
advertisement is published. Accordingly, I recommended that City Council set the second public 
hearing for Monday, September 21, 2015 at 6:30p.m. 

84 



Recommendation: 
I. Direct City staff to set the millage at the highest allowable rate given property tax 

reform. 
2. For alternative consideration and direction, Staff is providing Council with 

information showing three proposed millage rates. 
3. Advise the Orange County Property Appraiser's Office of the tentative ad valorem 

millage rate and public hearing date on the appropriate Form 420 in accordance with 
Truth in Millage (TRIM) requirements. 

Motion Language 

Millage 

I move to set the City of Edgewood's tentative millage rate for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 at 

Budget 

I move to schedule the first public hearing on the City of Edgewood's Fiscal Year 2015/2016 
tentative budget and millage rate, as a Special Council Meeting on Tuesday, September 8, 2015, 
at 6:30p.m. 

Millage History 

1998-2000 
2001 
2002-2007 
2008-2011 
2012-2015 

3.9000 
4.1000 
4.7000 
3.9500 
4.7000 

' The Florida Constitution caps the millage rate assessed against the value of the property at 10 mills per 
taxing entity. That is, taxing units are prohibited from levying more than $10 in taxes per $1.000 of taxable 
value on properties they tax, without obtaining voter approval at least every two years. 

85 



CERTIFICATION OF TAXABLE VALUE 

Year: 2015 County: Orange 

Principal Authority: Taxing Authority: 

City of Edgewood 
.- City of Edgewood 

SECTION I: COMPLETED BY PROPERTY APPRAISER 
1_. Current year taxable value of real property for operating purposes 

2. Current year taxable value of personal property for operating purposes 

3, Current year taxable value of centrally assessed property for operating purposes 

4. Current year gross taxable value for operating purposes (Line 1 plus Line2 plus Line 3) 

current year net new taxable value (Add new construction, additions, rehabilitativ~\ 
5. improvements increasing assessed value by at least 100%, annexations, and tangibl 

personal property value over 115% of the previous year's value. Subtract deletio\'i< 

6. Current year adjusted taxable value (Line 4 minus Line 5) 

"" ' 
7. Prior year FINAL gross taxable value from prior year applicable Form D~03 -~ 

8. Does the taxing authority include tax increment financing areas? I ~ymber 
of worksheets (DR-420TIF)attached, If none, enter 0 ... 
Does the taxing authority levy a voted debt service millage or 

?' . 
evotedfor 2 

9. years or less under s. 9(b), Article VII, State Constitution? 1 he number of 
DR-420DEBT, Certification of Voted Debt Millage forms none, enter 0 

$ 

$ 

DR-420 
R. S/12 

Rule 120-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 1 1112 

~ (1) 68 

~ ~509,399 (2) 

$ ""' " 339,866 (3) 

~,-
292,087,833 (4) 

1,765,598 (5) 

$ 290,322,235 (6) 

$ 274,297,965 (7) 

DYES IZI. NO Number (8) 

Number 
DYES IZI NO (9) 

Property Appraiser Certification 11 taxable values above are correct to the best of my knowledge . 

SIGN Signature of Property Appraiser: . ?.\ Date: 
HERE "% ,~~ 

SECTION II : COMPLETED BY GAUTHORITV 
If this portion of the for leted in FULL your taxing authority will be denied TRIM certification and 

possibly lose· ~livy privilege for the tax year. If any line Is not applicable, enter -0-. 
Prior year operating ' prior year millage was adjusted then use adjusted 10. 
m/llage from Form DR 

4.7000 per $1,000 (1 0) 

11. Prior year ad va ds (Line? multiplied by Line 10, divided by 1,000) $ 1,289,200 (11) 

Amount, if an 
. . 

12. lied in prior year as a consequence.of an obligation me~sured by a $ 0 (12) 
dedicate alue (Sum of either Lines 6c or Line 7a for all DR-420nF forms) 

13. Ad" ~gr year ad valorem proceeds (Line 11 minus Line 12) $ 1,289,200 (13) 

14. Qedic · crement value, if any (Suin of either Liile 6b:or Line 7e fora// DR-420TIF fofms) $ 0 (14) 

15. Adjusted current year taxable value (Line 6 minus Line 14) $ 290,322,235 (15) 

16. Current year rolled-back rate (Line 13 divided by Line 15,multiplied by 1,000) 4.4406 per$1000 (16) 

17. Current year proposed operating millage rate 4.7000 per$1000 (17) 

18. 
Total taxes to be levied at proposed millage rate (Line 17 multiplied by Line 4, divided 1,372,813 

(18) 
by 1,000) $ 

Continued on page 2 

I 

86 



' 

. 

TYPE of principal authority (check one) 
D County 

19. 

0 Municipality 

20. 
Applic<1ble taxing authority (check one) 0 Principal Authority 

0MSTU 
• 

21. Is millage levied in more than one county? .(check onE!) DYes 

D Independent Special District 

D Water Management District 

D Dependent Special District 

D Water Management District Basin 

0 No 

DR-420 
R. S/12 
Page2 

(19) 

(20) 

(21) 

' -:. 1 r 
-

l r! I r : ''' ' l ' ( .,~' 
-

~--:~: -- -- /''" ~1-f·:_ 'rl r•' ·:-~,---,u :; r'' -~ 
< I '' . ' 

- - - ---- -- - - ~ -~- - - ~ -- __ I L - - - ----~---~- - ---
22. Enter the total adjusted prior year-ad valorem proceeds ofth~:principal authority, all 

dependent special districts, and MSTUs levying a millage. (The sum ofLine 13 from all DR-420 $ 1,289,200 (22) 
forms) · · • 

23. Current year aggregate rolled-back rat.e (Line 22t;/ivlded by Line 15, multiplied by 1,QOoJ 4.4406 per $1,000 (23) 

24. Current year aggregate rolled-back taxes (Line4multiplied byLine23, qivided by 1,000) $ 1,297,045 (24) 

Enter total of all operating ad valorem taxes proposed to be levied by the principal 
25. taxing authority, all dependent districts, and MSTUs, if any. (The sum of Line T8from all $ 1,372,813 (25) 

DR-420 forms) 

26. Current year proposed aggregate millage rate (Line25 divided by Line 4,multiplied 
by 1,000) . 

4.7000 per $1,000 (26) 

27. Current year proposed rate as a percent change of rolled-back rate (Line 26 divided by 
5.84 o/o (27) 

Line23,minus 1 ,multiplied by TOO) 

-First public Date: Time: Place: 

budget hearing September 8, 2015 6:30p.m. Edgewood City Hall- Council Chamber 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, FL 32809 

I certify the millages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Taxing Authority Certification The millages comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of 

s either s. 200.071 or s. 200.081, F.S. 

I Signature of Chief Administrative Officer: Date: 

G 
N Title: Contact Name and Contact Title: 

H 
E Mailing Address : Physical Address: 

R 
E 

City, State, Zip: Phone Number : Fax Number: 

Instructions on page 3 

87 



2015 

MAXIMUM MILLAGE LEVY CALCULATION 
PRELIMINARY DISCLOSURE 

For municipal governments, counties, and special districts 

County: Orange 

Taxing AU1rnOI'llY: 

City of Edgewood 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

by 1;000) 

selection on Line 1 allows a maximum millage rate of 
indicated by choice on Line 16) 

year gross taxable value from Current Year Form DR-420, Line 4 $ 

Continued on page 2 

5.3251 

5.3251 

5.4295 

5.9725 

4.7000 

5.4295 

DR-420MM-P 
R.S/12 

Rule 120-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 11/12 

(2) 

1,545,998 (6) 

0 (7) 

1,545,998 (8) 

290,322,235 (9) 

per $1,000 (10) 

per $1,000 (11) 

(12) 

per $1,000 (13) 

per $1,000 (14) 

per $1,000 

per $1,000 (17) 

292,087;833 (18) 

88 



Taxing Authority: 

City of Edgewood 

taxes (Line 15 multiplied by Line 78, divided by 1,000) 

maximum millage rate (Line Line 

Total Maximum Taxes 

Total Maximum Versus Total Taxes Levied 

25. 
on 22 equa.l to or I than total taxes 

(Check one) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

YES D NO 

R. 
Page 

1,372,813 (19) 

1,585,891 (20) 

0 (21) 

1 ,3 72,813 (22) 

0 (23) 

1,585,891 

(25) 

I certify the mill ages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge. The mill ages 
comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of either s. 200.071 or s. 

s 
I 
G 
N 

H 
E 
R 
E 

[Si£;nalture of Chief Administrative Officer: 

Title: 

Mayor 

Mailing Address : 

405 Larue Avenue 

City, State, Zip: 

Edgewood, FL 32809 

Date: 

Contact Name and Contact Title: 

Bea L. Meeks, City Clerk 

Physical Address : 

405 Larue Avenue 

Phone Number: 

407-851-2920 

Fax Number: 

407-851-7362 

Complete and submit this form DR-420MM-P, Maximum Millage Levy Calculation-Preliminary Disclosure, to 
your property appraiser with the form DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value. 

Instructions on page 3 

89 



CERTIFICATION OF TAXABLE VALUE 

Year: 2015 County: Orange 

Principal Authority: Taxing Authority: 

City of Edgewood City of Edgewood 

SECTION I: COMPLETED BY PROPERTY APPRAISER 
1. Current year taxable value of real property for operating purposes 

2. Current year taxable value of personal property for operating purposes 

3. Current year taxable value of centrally assessed property for operating purposes 

4. Current year gross taxable value for operating purposes (Line 1 plus Line2 plus Line3) 

Cbrrent year net new taxable value. (Add new construction, additions, rehabilitative 
5. improvements increasing assessed value by at ieast 1 00%, annexations, and tangible 

personal property value over 1 15% of the previous year's value. Subtract deletions.) 

6. Current year adjusted taxable value (Line 4 minus Line 5) 

7. Prior year FINAL gross taxable value from prior year applicable Form DR-403 series 

8. Does the taxing authority include tax increment financing areas? If yes, enter number 
of worksheets (DR-420TIF) attached. If none, enter 0 

Does the taxing authority levy a voted debt service millage or a millage voted for 2 
9. years orless under s. 9(b), Arti.cle VII, State Constitution? If yes, enter the number of 

DR-420DEBT, Certification of Voted Debt Millage forms attached. If none, enter 0 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

DYES 

DYES 

[Z] 

.,::), (_,UVV 

DR-420 
R.S/12 

Rule 120-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 11/12 

. 

272,238,568 (1) 

19,509,399 (2) 

339,866 (3) 

292,087,833 (4) 

1,765,598 (5) 

290,322,235 (6) 

274,297,965 (7) 

NO Number (8) 

Number 
[Z] NO (9) 

Property Appraiser Certification 11 certify the taxable values above are correct to the best of my knowledge. 

SIGN Signature of P~perty Appraiser: Date: 
HERE 

SECTIONII : COMPLETED BY TAXING AUTHORITY 
If this portion of the form is not completed in FULL your taxing authority will be denied TRIM certification and 

possibly lose its millage levy privilege for the tax year. If any line Is not applicable, enter -0-. 

10. Prior year operating millage levy (If prior year millage was adjusted then use adjusted 
4.7000 per $1,000 (10) 

millage from Form DR-422) 

11. Prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line ?multiplied byLine 10, divided by 1,000) $ 1,289,200 (11) 

12. Amount, if any, paid or applied in prior year as a consequence of an obligation measured by a $ 0 (12) 
dedicated increment value (Sum-of either Lines 6c or Line'la for all DR-420TIF forms) 

13. Adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line 11 minus Line 12) $ 1,289,200 (13) 

14. Dedicated increment value, if any (Sum of either Line 6b:or Line 7elorall DR-420TIF forms) $ 0 (14) 

15. Adjusted current year taxable value (Line 6 minus Line 14) $ 290,322,235 (15) 

16. Current year rolled-back rate (Line 13 divided b)! Line 75, multiplied by 1,000) 4.4406 per $HiliO (16) 

17. Currentyear proposed operating millage rate 5.2000 per$1000 (1 7) 

18. 
Total taxes to be levied at proposed millage rate (Line 17 multiplied by Line 4, divided 1,518,857 

(1 8) 
by 1,000) $ 

Continued on page 2 

90 



I 

I 

TYPE of principal authority (check one} 
0 County 

19. 

0 Municipality 

20. 
Applicable taxing authority (check one} 0 Principal Authority 

0MSTU 

21. Is millage levied in more than one county? {check one) DYes 

0 Independent Special District 

0 Water Management District 

0 Dependent Special District 

0 Water Management District Basin 

0 No 

DR-420 
R. 5/12 
Page2 

(19) 

(20) 

(21) 

1 •, ., , -,-, 1 ,-, •1 ,, ,,-. ',, ,' -• .-,- ,-,, 1~ ~ --- .•c,c(T ,--;.;ccc- -
1
[ ,;-- •• ,,,, -~-,c,,,<";-- J 

l ' ' ' I ' l ( I \. I I' I I- \ ' ' ! I 

j i l 

- -- --- - ---- --- --- -- -- c_j I ______ - - -------- __ J 
22. n er e o a a J_us e pnor year a va ore_m procee so t e-pnnc1p_a aut- onty, a 

$ 1,289,200 (22) dependent special districts, and MSTUs levying a millage. (The sum of Line 13 from all DR-420 
fdrms) · 

Etthttldtd d I d I h h II 

23. Current year aggregate rolled-back rate (Line 22aivided by Line 15, multiplied by 7,000) 4.4406 per $1,000 (23) 

24. Current year aggregate rolled-back taxes (Line 4 multiplied by Line23, divided by 7,000) $ 1,297,045 (24) 

Enter total of all operating ad valorem taxes proposed to be levied bythe principal 
2_5. taxing authority, all dependent districts, and MSTUs, if any. (fhe sum of Line 7Bfrom all $ 1,518;857 (25) 

DR-420 forms) 

26. Current year proposed aggregate millage rate (Line25 divided byLine4, multiplied 5.2000 per $1,000 (26) 
by7,000) 

27. Current year proposed rate as a percent change of rolled-back rate (Line 26 divided by 17.10% (27) 
Line 23,minus 1, multiplied by 100) 

First public Date: Time: Place: 

budget hearing September 8, 2015 6:30p.m. Edgewood City Hall- Council Chamber 
40S Larue Avenue, Edgewood, FL 32809 

I certify the millages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Taxing Authority Certification The inillages comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of 

s either s. 200.071 or s. 200.081, F.S. 

I Signature of Chief Administrative Officer: Date: 

G 
N Title: Contact Name and Contact Title : 

H 
E Mailing Address: Physical Address: 

R 
E 

City, State, Zip: Phone Number: Fax Number: 

Instructions on page 3 

91 



Year: 2015 

1. 

Authority: 

of Edgewood 

MAXIMUM MILLAGE LEVY CALCULATION 
PRELIMINARY DISCLOSURE 

For municipal governments, counties, and special districts 

(ounty: Orange 

Authority: 

City of Edgewood 

or independent special district that has levied D Yes 

DR·420MM-P 
R.S/12 

RUle 120-1~.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 11/12 

(1) 

STOP HERE. SIGN AND SUBMIT. You are not subject to a millage limitation. 

4.4406 

5.6362 

year final gross taxabl.e value from Current Year Form DR-420, Line 7 $ 

vote 
$ 

$ 

vote (Line 6 minus Line 7) $ 

from Current Year form DR-420 Line 15 $ 

10. current year rate (Line 8 divided by Line 9, multiplied by 1,000) 5.3251 

5.3251 

5.4295 

5.9725 

5.2000 

c. Unanimous 
The maximum millage rate is equal to the 

d. Referendum: The maximum millage rate is equal to the proposed rate. Enter Line 15 on Line 17. 

selection on Line 16 allows a maximum 
(Enterrate indicated by choice on Line 16) 

rate of 

Continued on page 2 

5.4295 

$ 

per $1,000 (2) 

per $1,000 (3) 

290,322,235 

per $1,000 (10) 

per $1,000 (11) 

1o01 (12) 

per $1,000 (13) 

per $1,000 (14) 

per $1,000 

per $1,000 (17) 

292,087,833 (18) 

92 



Taxing Authority: 

City of Edgewood 

Total 

25. 

s 

all dependent special distri~ts & MSTUs 
from ea~h district's Form DR-420MM-P) 

plus Line 23) 

Versus Total Taxes Levied 
currentyear proposed 

millage rate on Line 24? 

Authority Certification 

I Signature of Chief Administrative Officer: 

G 
N 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

YES 

Date: 

R. 5/1 
Page 

1,518,857 (19) 

1,585,891 (20) 

0 (23) 

1,585,891 (24) 

D NO (25) 

Title: Contact Name and Contact Title: 

H 
E 
R 
E 

Mayor 

Mailing Address : 

405 Larue Avenue 

City, State, Zip: 

Edgewood, FL 32809 

Bea L. Meeks, City Clerk 

Physical Address: 

405 Larue Avenue 

Phone Number: 

407-851-2920 

Fax Number: 

1407'-851-7362 

Complete and submit this form DR-420MM•P, Maximum Millage Levy Calculation-Preliminary Disclosure, to 
your property appraiser with the form DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value. 

Instructions on page 3 

93 



II CERTIFICATION OF TAXABLE VALUE 
FLORIDA 

Year: 2015 County: Orange 

Principal Authority: Taxing Authority : 

City of Edgewood City of Edgewood 

SECTION I: COMPLETED BY PROPERTY APPRAISER 
1. Curreri! year taxable value of real property for operating purposes 

2. Current year taxable value of personal property far operating purposes 

3. Current year taxable value of centrally assessed property for operating purposes 

4. Current year gross taxable value for operating purposes (Line 1 plus Line 2 plus Line 3) 

Current year net new taxable value (Add new construction, additions, rehabilitative 
5. improvements increasing assessed value by at ieast 100%, annexations, and tangible 

personal property value over 11.5% of the previous year's value. Subtract deletions.) 

6. Current year adjusted taxable value (Line 4 minus Line 5) 

7. Prior year FINAL gross taxable value from prior year applicable Form DR-403 series 

8. 
Does the taxing authority include tax increment financing areas? If yes, enter number 
of worksheets (DR-420TIF) attached. If none, enter 0 

Does the taxing authority levy a voted debt service millage or a millage voted for 2 
9. years or less under s. 9(b), Article VII, State Constitution? If yes, enter the number of 

DR-420DEBT, Certification of Voted Debt Millage forms attached. If none, enter 0 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

DYES 

DYES 

0 

DR-420 
R.S/12 

Rule 120-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 11112 

272,238,568 (1) 

19,509,399 (2) 

339,866 (3) 

292,087,833 (4) 

1,765,598 (5) 

290,322,235 (6) 

274,297,965 (7) 

NO Number (8) 

Number 
0 NO (9) 

Property Appraiser Certification ,.1 certify the taxable values above are correct to the best of my knowledge. 

SIGN Signature of Property Appraiser: Date: 
HERE 

SECTION .II : COMPLETED BY TAXING AUTHORITY 
If this portion ofthe form is not completed in FULL your taxing authority will be denied TRIM certification and 

possibly lose its millage levy privilege for the tax year. If any line is not applicable, enter -0-. 

10. 
Prior year operating millage levy (If prior year millage was adjusted then use adjusted 

4.7000 per $1,000 (10) 
millage from Form DR-422) 

11. Prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line 7 multiplied by Line 10, divided by 1,000) $ 1,289,200 (11) 

12. 
Amount, if any, paid or applied in prior year as a consequence of an obligation measured by a 

$ 0 (12) 
dediCated increment value (Sum of either Lines 6c or Line lti far all DR-420T/F forms) 

,- Adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds (Line 11 minus Line 12) $ 1,289,200 (13) 
-

Dedicated increment value, if any (Sum of either Line ~b or Line lelor·all DR-420TIFforms) $ 0 (14) 
-

1 Adjusted current year taxable value (Line 6 minus Line 14) $ 290,322,235 (15) 
-

1t Current yearrolled-back rate (Line 13 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,000) 4.4406 per $1000 (16) 
-

1) :urrent year proposed operating millage rate 5.5000 per$1000 (17) 
--

18. 
Total taxes to be levied at proposed millage rate (Line 17 multiplied by Line 4, divided 

1,606,483 
(18) 

by 1,000) $ 

Continued on page 2 

94 



I 
I 

TYPE of principal authority {check one) 
D County 

19. 

[{] Municipality 

20. 
Applicable taxing authority {check one) [{] Principal Authority 

0MSTU 

21. Is millage levied in more than one county? (check one) DYes 

-

D Independent Special District 

D Water Management District 

D Dependent Special District 

D Water Management District Basin 

[{] No 

DR-420 
R. 5/12 
Page 2 

(19) 

(20) 

(21) 

I I •I' I ' . - -
•• -!~r~): ~ ---~ -__ · r ':~~ : t ~~~-. q;, -o1 r,-)111\'IIJ ~1 . I 

I . . I • II 
• I' " 

-" -- - --- - --- - - -- -- - -- I 
22; Enter the total adjusted prior year· ad valorem proceeds of the-principal authority, all 

dependent special districts, and MSTUs levying a millage. (The sum of Line 13 frotri all DR-420 $ 1,289,200 (22) 
forms) . 

23. Current year aggregate rplled-back rate (Line 22 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,0iJQ) 4.4406 per $1,000 (23) 

24. Current year aggregate rolled-back taxes (Line 4 multiplied by Line23, divided by 1,000) $ 1,297,045 (24) 

Enter total·of all operating ad valorem taxes proposed to be levied by the principal 
25. taxing authority, all dependent districts, and MSTUs, if any. (The sum of Line 18 from all $ 1,606,483 (25) 

DR-420 forms) 

26. Current year proposed aggregate millage rate (Line25 divided by Line 4, multiplied 
5.5000 per $1,000 (26) 

by 1,000) . 

27. 
Current year proposed rate as a percent change of rolled-back rate (Line 26 divided by 

23.86% (27) 
Line 23, minus 1, multiplied by 100) 

First P!-lblic Date: Time: Place: 

budget hearing September 8, 2015 6:30p.m. Edgewood City Hall- Council Chamber 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, FL 32809 

I certify the milla.ges and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Taxing Authority Certification The millages comply with. the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of 

s either s. 200.071 or s. 200.081, F.S. 

I Signature of Chief Administrative Officer: Date: 

G 
N Title: Contact Name and Contact Title: 

H 
E Mailing Address: Physical Address: 

R 
E 

City, State, Zip: Phone Number: Fax Number: 

Instructions on page 3 

95 



II 
FLORIDA 

Year: 2015 
Principal Authority: 

City of Edgewood 

1. 

MAXIMUM MILLAGE LEVY CALCULATION 
PRELIMINARY DISCLOSURE 

For municipal governments, counties, and special districts 

Orange 

Taxing Authority: 

City of Edgewood 

independent special district that has levied D 

r . v~J"'AY'~ ""J•-...Jv-v 

DR-420MM-P 
R. 5/12 

Rule 120~ 16.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 11/12 

Yes [{] No (1) 

STOP HERE. SIGN AND SUBMIT. • You are not subject to a millage limitation. 

4.4406 per $1,000 (2) 

5.6362 per $1,000 (3) 

$ 274,297,965 (5) 

$ 1,545,998 (6) 

paid or applied in prior year as a consequence an obligation 
$ 0 (7) 

increment value from Current Year Form DR-420 Line 12 

minus Line 7) $ 1,545,998 (8) 

current year taxable value from Current Year form DRA20 Line 15 $ 290,322,235 (9) 

8 divided by Line 9, multiplied by 1 ,000) 5.3251 per $1,000 (10) 

5.3251 per $1,000 (11) 

income (See Line 12 Instructions) 

13. rate allowed (Line 11 multiplied byLine 12) 5.4295 p_er $1,000 (13) 

14. allowed (Multiply Line 13 by 1.10) 5.9725 per $1.000 (14) 

15. 5.5000 per $1,000 (15) 

per $1,000 (17) 

18.,Lurr~l>tyear gross taxable value from Current Year Form DR-420, Line 4 $ 292,087,833 (18) 

Continued on page 2 

96 



year proposed taxes (Line 75 multiplied l>yLine 78, divided by 7,000) $ 

Total Maximum Taxes 
taxes at maximum millage of all dependent special districts & MSTUs 

a millage (Tf~e sum of all Lines 20lrom each district~ Form DR-4i6MM-P) 

millage 

Total Maximum Versus Tott:~l 
current year proppsed taxes on Line 22 

25
·1ma,xirr1um millage rate on Line 24? (Check one) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

IZJ YES 

1,744,495 (22) 

0 (23) 

1,606,483 (24) 

D NO (25) 

I certify the millages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge. The millages 
comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of either s. 200.071 or s. 

s 
I 
G 
N 

H 
E 
R 
E 

F.S. 

Mayor 

Mailing Address: 

405 Larue Avenue 

City, State, Zip: 

Edgewood, FL 32809 

Date: 

Contact Name and Contact Title: 

Bea L. Meeks, City Clerk 

Physical Address : 

405 Larue Avenue 

Phone Number: 

14U.I-H!>1-2920 

Fax Number: 

407-851-7362 

Complete and submit this form DR-420MM"P, Maximum Millage Levy Calculation-Preliminary Disclosure, to 
your property appraiser INith the form DR-420,Certification of Taxable Value. 

Instructions on page 3 

97 



"' co 

AD VALOREM 

MILLAGE TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE 
TOTAL REVENUES 

@95% 

4.7000 $ 272,238,568.00 $ 1,215,545.21 

5.2000 $ 272,238,568.00 $ 1,344,858.53 

5.5000 $ 272,238,568.00 $ 1,422,446.52 

Line 4/DR-420 

Each millage rate must include at least 95% ad valorem proceeds in the budget: Line 4 (DR420 x .95 x Tentative/Advertised 
Millage ~ Minimum Requirement 

TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE 
=Line 1 on DR 420 Amount* .95*MR/1 000 

TANGIBLE TAX 

4.7000 
$ 19,849,265.00 $ 88,626.97 

5.2000 
$ 19,849,265.00 $ 98,055.37 

5.5000 
$ 19,849,265.00 $ 103,712.41 

Tangible Tax = total of lines 2 & 3 on DR 420 



TO: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Mayor Bagshaw, Council President Dowless, Council 
Members, Powell, Henley and Drummond 

July 14,2015 

Planning.& Zoning Board Recommendations Regarding 
Two Applications for Variance s 

A Planning and Zoning Board meeting was held on July 13, 2015. The Board reviewed and considered 
two (2) applications for a variance. The Planning & Zoning Board's recommendations regarding these 
applications are as follows: 

I Variance Application for Susan Fortini at 5125 The Oaks Circle: Var#2015-02 

There were sixty-one Notices mailed regarding Susan Fortini's Application For Variance. There 

was one Notice ireturned to City Hall after the Planning & Zoning Board meeting was held. 

There were two written responses provided to staff. Tom Hansel, who indicated he has Power of 

Attorney for his father Ralph Hansel (adjacent property owner to applicant). Initially Mr. Hansel 
said he did not object to the boat dock however, objected to the roof. Subsequently, Mr. Hansel 

has provided a written statement stating he now has no objection to the proposed boat dock. 

Resident Copley, 5109 The Oaks Circle, provided a response indicating they have no objection 

without a plan to review. However, they questioned whether there is sufficient space, as the 

property tapers (narrow). The resident said they would object to "unsightly visual outcome of a 
cramped dock plan". Tina Demostene, made an email inquiry with questions however, provided 

no comments. Doug Langford, reviewed the plan however, he provided no written comments. 

There were no requests to speak at the Planning & Zoning Board meeting. 
,, 

Motion by Planning & Zoning Board Member Lomas to move forward to Council with a 
recommendation to approve the Fortini Variance request; Seconded by Planning & Zoning 
Board Member Rayburn. Unanimously approved 410. 

99 



I Variance Application for Jeff & Hayley Baker at 5566 Jessamine Lane: Var#2015-01 

There were thirty-three Notices mailed regarding the Application For Variance; one Notice was 
returned to City Hall prior to the Planning & Zoning Board meeting. Bonnie Burke sent an email 
request for information regarding the Variance; she was emailed a copy of the agenda documents 
that the Planning & Zoning Board received. Mike Teague requested a copy of the application 
and was emailed a copy of the agenda documents that were provided to the Planning & Zoning 
Board. 

There were six requests to speak at the Planning & Zoning Board meeting. Resident Paul 
Williamson was one of the speakers; he also provided a letter to the Board. With the exception 
of resident, Cedric Beemer and the contractor, David Konkol, the speakers and written comments 
provided listed their concerns and/or opposition to the Variance request. 

'· -'<- ·'~ '-"'-".''.·"V'- "./"'\_<'.". "./"\./'... "-A. tV'. A. A.-"v-'-.A./''-/\..''v"V"V"V',."'-/V'-./V'-·"-"'-A./'vVVV"v". -'V'vV'>."v"'. ', 'V'-· '.·"'v·'. ·'-".A.,-"''-·'\_''-'"'-''-~'- '"'v"'..''v".''-'"-~·"VvV'.. 

I) Variance in Section 134-483 to allow a detached garage and a tennis/basketball court, 

both viewed as accessory structures, in front of the proposed house. 

Motion by Planning & Zoning Board Member Rayburn to move forward to Council with a 
. recommendation to approve the detached garage; Seconded by Planning & Zoning Board 
Member Lomas. Unanimously approved 4/0. 

. 

Motion by Planning & Zoning Board Member Rader to move forward to Council with a 
recommendation to approve the tennis/basketball court with conditions; Seconded by 
Planning & Zoning Board Member Lomas. Unanimously approved 410. 

Condition 1: 

Condition 2: 

There shall be no lighting of the tennis/basketball court. Any 
requests in the future for lighting will not be approved unless an 
amendment to this variance for such is granted by City Council 

after review by the Planning & Zoning Board. 

Applicant shall install and maintain an opaque vegetation buffer 
that screens the chain link fence on the west side of the tennis 
court. The buffer shall run parallel to the fence to be installed 

along the property line. 

Plant material used to satisfY this condition must meet or exceed 
"Florida No. 1," to be at least 6 feet in height at planting and 
spaced no more than 30 inches apart at planting. A permanent 

100 



underground central irrigation system providing I 00 percent 
coverage of all landscape/buffer areas is required. 

2) Variance in Section 134-517 to allow the construction of a fence or wall greater than 4 

feet in height in front of the building line: requested 6 feet in height. 
. 

Motion by Planning & Zoning Board Chairperson Dunay to move forward to Council with a 
recommendation to approve a fence greater than 4 feet in height in front of the building line; 

Seconded by Planning & Zoning Board Member Rayburn. Unanimously approved 410. 

Condition I: 

Condition 2: 

Condition 3: 

' Returned from the Post Office 

If a security gate is to be used, the gate shall be setback at least 20 
feet from the edge of Jessamine Lane pavement to prevent 

blocking other vehicles use of Jessamine Lane. 

The fence shall not exceed 6 feet in height and shall be similar in 
architectural style as the fence on the neighboring property, 
including the use of stone colunms along the front property line. 
Stone colunms shall not exceed 7 feet 4 inches in height. 

Subject to site plan approval to ensure there is no impairment of 
sight lines in relationship to the right-of-way. 

101 



TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 

405 Larue Avenue- Edgewood, Florida 32809-3408 
(407) 851-2920 

MEMORANDUM 

MS. BEA MEEKS, CITY CLERK 
SAM J. SEBAALI, P.E., FLORIDA ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. -CITY ENGINEER 
JUNE 24, 2015 
VARIANCE FOR BOAT DOCK CONSTRUCTION -LAKE GATLIN 
5125 THE OAKS CIRCLE 
SUSAN FORTINI, OWNER 
FEG 11-081-TA-15-012 

Pursuant to your request, I have reviewed the additional information for the subject variance application 
submittal, which was received by FEG on June 15, 2015. The submittal Is for a proposed boat dock 
replacement on lake Gatlin at 5125 The Oaks Circle. The existing boat dock does not have a roof, and the 
replacement boat dock will add a roof. 

The variance application, which was submitted, indicates that the applicant is requesting a variance from 
Section 14-11(b){1), which is for Minimum Side Setbacks. 

Pursuant to Section 14-11(b){1) of the City Code, Minimum side setbacks-Lake and canal 
properties. Boat docks and associated structures shall have a minimum side setback of ten feet from the 
projected property line of abutting shoreline owners. If the side setback is less than 15 feet, then the 
applicant shall submit notarized, original, signed letters of no objection from the abutting shoreline 
property owners. The letter af no objection must identify the site plan and construction plan for the 
proposed dock, and a capy of the site plan and construction plan must be attached to the letter 
submitted to the city. For purposes of this determination, and in the absence of property lines that 
already project into the water body, the projected property line of abutting shoreline owners shall be 
construed to mean a line projecting from the shoreline Into the water 90 degrees from the abutting 
property owner's shoreline. 

The current boat dock has deficient side setbacks at the west and east abutting property lines. Specifically, 
on the west side, the existing boat dock encroaches 0.1 ft. over the abutting property line; and the setback 
on the east side of the existing boat dock is approximately 2ft. from the abutting property line. 

As per Section 1411(b)(1) of the City Code, the minimum required setback is 10 feet. However, if the side 
setback is less than 15 feet, then the applicant shall submit notarized, original, signed letters of no 
objection from the abutting shoreline property owners. 

FILE: FEG 11-081; TA-15-012 

102 



The applicant is requesting a reduction of the side setback from the minimum required 10ft. to 0 ft on the 
west and east property lines. 

The applicant has stated that the abutting shoreline property owner to the west has no objection to this 
request, and the abutting shoreline owner to the east objects. A letter of no objection was provided by 
the applicant from the abutting shoreline property owner to the west. 

Pursuant to Section 14-11(c)(4) of the City Code, Decision by city council. The city engineer is not 
authorized to approve any .applications where. there are ab)ectlans from any shoreline property owner 
within 300 feet of the property or other property owner entitled to notice under subsection (2) above, or 
where the city engineer or building official, in his or her discretion, believes the application should be 
decided by city council. When an applicatlan for a boat dock must be decided by city council, the 
applicant shall submit a total of nine site plans and thre.e sets of engineered construction plans to the city 
clerk's office. 

Based on the stated objection of the variance request, this application should be decided by City Council. 

As relates to the variance justifications, we offer the following input: 

Given that the new boat dock Is a replacement, which is similar in size to the existing boat dock and has 
relatively similar side setbacks to the existing side setbacks, we would support the setback variance 
request. However, the addition of a ·roof changes the character of the existing boat dock and appears to 
impair the lake view visibility from the abutting property owner on the east side given the orientation of 
the boat dock, which is to the northeast. Pursuant to Section 14-11(c)(4)a. of the City Code, in 
determining whether to approve, deny, or approve with conditions the application, city council shall 
determine whether the application has been satisfactorily completed and whether the minini.um criteria set 
forth above for Issuance of the dock permit have been met. In addition, city council shall apply the fallowing 
criteria: 

1. Possible obstruction to navigability; 
2. Unreasonable Impairment of lake view visibility from abutting properties; 

3. Hazardous or safety conditions; and 
4. Whether the proposed structure unreasonably interferes with the riparian 

or littoral rights of other property owners. "Unreasonable Interference" 

shall include but not be limited to: (a) proximity of docks of abutting 
property owners; (b) access for boaters and swimmers; and (c) any unusual 

configuration of the shoreline which would cause the proposed dock to 

restrict access to sections of the waterway. 

FILE: FEG 11-081; TA-15-012 

103 



In our opinion, the applicant has reasonably addressed Items 1, 3, and 4 as part of their justifications for 
granting a variance. 

The applicant has provided a variance justification as part of the application submittal, which .addressed 
the requirements for granting a variance as stated under Section14-11 d(2) of the City Code. These 
requirements are listed below: 

a. Average length of other docks in the surrounding 300-foot area; 

b. The reasonable use of the property by the owner; 

c. The effects the dock will have on navigation and safety of boaters; 

d. The overall general welfare of the neighborhood; 

e. Whether special conditions exist such that strict compliance with the provisions of 

this article would impose a unique and unnecessary hardship on the applicant; 

f. The effect of the proposed variance on abutting shoreline property owners; 

g. Whether the granting of the variance would be contrary to the Intent and purpose 

and this article; and 

h. A variance from the maximum length of 65 feet may be granted if it is necessary to 

reach a water depth suitable for boating, but in no event shall a dock be extended 

in length beyond where the water depth wlll exceed five feet as measured from 

the normal high water elevation. 

Based on the information provided in the application, it is our opinion that the applicant has adequately 

addressed the above items except for item f. 

As part of the submittal, the applicant has stated that the abutting neighbor on the eas! side would lose 
minimal amount of lakefront visibility and that there would be approximately 30 feet of unobstructed 
shoreline view fro·m the abutting the neighbor's property. Slides were included by the applicant in the 

submittal in support of this statement (slides 11 and 12). 

In order to evaluate this item, we have inspected the site to observe the existing conditions and visualize 
the proposed boat dock with a covered roof and its impact on the neighbor to the east. We have included 
two photographs, which were taken from the east abutting neighbor's front yard to illustrate the existing 
shoreline view from the neighbor's front entry area. As can be seen in the photographs, the abutting 
owner to the east has a boat dock, which is not covered presumably to not impair their lake view visibility. 

Based on our observations, the orientation of the new proposed dock will result in impairment of visibility 
from the neighbor's yard on the east side. It should be noted that the degree of Impairment of visibility 
will depend on the location of the view point within the neighbor's yard and residence. Therefore, in some 
cases the impairment of visibility would be more or less severe than illustrated in the photographs. 

Please contact me if you have any questions or would like to discuss. 

Thank you. 

END OF MEMORANDUM 

FILE: FEG 11·081; TA-15-012 

104 



Reference: City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Section 126-588 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

MAKE PAYMENTS TO: 
CITY OF EDGEWOOD 

FEE: $350 RESIDENTIAL 
$750 COMMERCIAL 

or print. Complete carefully, answering each question and attaching all necessary 
as 

IMPORTANT: FILE BY THE SECOND WEDNESDAY OF THE MONTH FOR FIRST HEARING ON THE 
SECOND MONDAY OF THE FOLLOWING MONTH 

Please note this fee is non refundable. 

NOTE: Notarized letter of authorization from Owner MUST be submitted 
if application is filed by anyone other than property owner 

Applicant's Name: 
Renea Anderson 

Owner's Name: Susan Fortini 
Address: 13936 Marine Drive Address: 5125 The Oaks Circle 

Telephone: 407-275-8954 Telephone: 407-925-4439 
Fax: 407-275-1508 Fax: 

Email: cichra@bellsouth.net Email: susan.fortini@icloud.com 
ParceiiD/Legal description: 

13-23-29-7456-00-570 
Zoned: R-1A 
Cite section of the Zoning Code from which 
variance is requested: Section 14-11 (b)(1) 

Existing on site: Existing dock 

Request: Replace existing dock and add a roof 

1 of 3 

MAY l 3 2015 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

105 



1. That special condition and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or building in the same 
zoning classification 

2. the special conditions and circumstances do no result from the action of the applicant 
3. literal interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would deprive the applicant 

of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning classification under the terms 
of the Ordinance 

4. the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford relief and will 
represent the least modification possible for the regulation at issue 

5. the variance sought will not authorize or extend any non conforming use or other non conformity 
with respect to the land or structures in questions 

6. the granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
Ordinance, will not be injurious to the area involved, or surrounding properties, and will no 
authorize a use of the property not permitted by its zoning classification 

7. the variance sought will be consistent with the Edgewood Comprehensive Plan 

must agree that: 

1. In granting any variance, the City may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
conformity with the Ordinances, and any regulations enacted under its authority. Violation of such 
conditions and safeguards, when made a pert of the terms under which the variance is granted 
shall be deemed a violation of Edgewood ordinances. 

I AGREE: X I DISAGREE: 

2.. The variance recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board and approved by the City Council 
shall expire in 12 months in accordance with Chapter 134-104 (3) (e). 

I AGREE: X I DISAGREE: 

3. Concerning Ex parte communications, the applicant shall not speak to members of the Planning 
and Zoning Board of the City Council prior to the public hearing related to said variance request in 
order that said board members shall no prejudice themselves prior to said variance request 
coming before the City in an open proceeding where the decision making process and 
determination will be in full view of the public, thereby providing due process involving a fair 
opportunity for the presentation of both sides of the case in ·an open proceeding where a record of 
the proceedings may be kept 

4. 
I AGREE: X I DISAGREE: 

The 
the 

Revised 4/27/15 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 

Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 
www .edgewood-fl.gov 

on 

05/05/2015 

2 of 3 

106 



Please submit your completed application to City Hall via email at il:!f!~~~~!:fu~, 
via facsimile to 407-851-7361, or hand deliver to City Hall located at 
additional questions, please contact City Hall at 407-851-2920\ 

Revised 04/27/2015 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 

Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 
www.edgewood-fl.gov 

3 of3 

107 



I 

Reference: City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Section 126-588· 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

MAKE PAYMENTS TO: 
CITY OF EDGEWOOD 

FEE: $350 RESIDENTIAL 
$750 COMMERCIAL 

Please type or print. Complete carefully, answering each question and attaching all necessary 
documentation and additional pages as necessary. 

[ PLANNING & ZONING MEETING DATE: 

r CITY COUNCIL DATE: 

Please note this fee is non-refundable 
NOTE: Notarized letter of authorization from Owner MUST be submitted if application is filed by anyone 
other than orooertv owner . 

Applicant's Name: ~SA-Nf:~rJ/ Applicant's Name: tJ; 1/ (I~ A~ Nlllti1 
Address: (Jt2 :s- "fflt. (}A-It.s ttve .. Address: .S~L 

Teleohone: iEon . q zs-J.Jtifii Teleohone: llloi.<?2~ 3s--30 
Fax: Fax: 
Email: S!A..SIW .r.:iilifl.J~ Jf!Af111iif. Email: 
ParceiiD/Legal 7~.: 

descriotion: I ~ -:;z 3 . 'J.IJ , -a. ;,o, ,r, u ·-0 O·· 'J,..i:i(! . 
Cite section of the Zoning Code from whic~( /~;ti-t~ ILJ-II-t6 )t~ )·· .... ) variance is requested \ 

\ 

Existing on site: f\'-i~hNl 6 l>o d--. ...._,,...r,..,.~..---.-,, «><······-, - ··-·· 

Request: (U. • G.AJIJL<,'t' 

Revised 5113115115 

i'J lb<.J.J J')oc h •{) { Coli 1! rL 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

' ··•· , ... 

--

1 of3 

f-. 

108 



1 To justify this variance, applicant must demonstrate the folfowln!J: 

1. That special condition and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
buifding involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or building in the same 
zoning classification 
2. the special conditions and circums~nces do no result from the action of the applicant 
3. IHeral interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would deprive the applicant 
of rights commonty enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning classification under the terms 
of the Ordinance 
4. the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford relief and will 
represent the least modification possible for the regulation at issue 
5. the variance sought will not authorize or extend any non-conforming use or other non-conformity 
with respect to the land or structures in questions 
6. the granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
Ordinance, will not be injurious to the area involved, or surrounding properties, and will no 
authorize a use of the property not permitted by its zoning classification 
7. the variance sought will be consistent with the Edgewood Comprehensive Plan 

Applicant must agree that: 

1. In granting any variance, the City may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
conformity with the Ordinances, and any regulations enacted under its authority. Violation of such 
conditions and safeguards, when made a part of the terms under which the variance is granted 
shall be deemed a violation of Edgewood ordinance.s. 

2. / 
I AGREE: I r I DISAGREE: I I 
3. The variance recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board and approved by the City Council 

shall expire in 12 months in accordance with Chapter 134-104 (3) (e). 
4. / 

r AGREE: I "' I DISAGREE: I I 
3. Concerning Ex parte communications, the applicant shall not speak to members of the Planning 

and Zoning Board of the City Council prior to the public hearing related to said variance nsquest in 
order that said board members shall no prejudice· themselves prior to said variance request 
coming before the City in an open proceeding where the decision making process and 
determination will be in full view of the public, thereby providing ·due process involving a fair 
opportunity for the presentation of both sides of the case in an open proceeding where a record of 
the proceedings may be kept 

I AGREE: I v " I DISAGREE: I I 
The applicant hereby states that the above request for Variance does not violate any deed nsstrictions on 
the property. 

Aoolicant's Sianature: 
Applicant's Printed 
Name: 
Owner's Sianature: 
Owner's Printed Name: 

Revised 0511512015 

" //Y 
~lf,uJJJ. ate: r -,;,,If./~ 
&'5"11-!V /1. hdtr./t 
~ !Date: I -67 "''h;fS 
Ul i tll&w~~ fe-t~~n.cr 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

2of3 

109 



Please submit your completed application to City Hall via email at bm£elq(iveJqewuocl:c_U,QQY., 
via facsimile to 407-851-7361, or hand deliver to City Hall located at 405 Larue Ave. For 
additional questions, please contact City Hall at 407-851-2920. 

Revised 0511512015 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

2 of3 

110 



June 15, 2015 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
From: Susan Fortini/William Penner 

Owners, 5125 The Oaks Circle 

Subj: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR VARIANCE REQUEST FOR BOAT DOCK 
CONSTRUCTION-LAKE GATLIN 

Ref: Memorandum from FEG{Sebaali-- FEGll-081-TA-15-012 

Attached please find two copies of a revised Boat Dock Variance Application. Based 
on comments from Mr. Sebaali, we have addressed, in more detail, his concerns. 
Specifically the following items are provided within the body of the attached power 
point presentation and attached documents: 

1. A new survey is attached showing the proposed setbacks on the site plan. 
This survey was conducted on June 3, 2015. 

2. The Normal High Water line and Normal High Water Elevation are shown on 
this new survey and are labeled as such. 

3. The average length of other docks in the surrounding 300' area is shown on 
Slide 10 

4. A letter of no objection, signed and notarized, from the adjacent property 
owner on the west side is attached. (Amy & Will Mims) 

In addition to the items listed above, we have also addressed every requirement, 
point-by-point, for City Code Section 14-11 d (2), a-h. Please refer to Slides 7-8. 

We hope that this information will be adequate to move this process forward so that 
we may present our case the P&Z Committee and City Council in July. 

Sincerely, 

~-P-
SUSAN FORTINI WILLIAM PENNER 

111 



To: The City of Edgewood, Florida 

and 

Orange County, Florida 

Date: May 28, 2015 

Re: Dock Plans for 5125 The Oaks Circle 

Dear Sir{Madam, 

1. R,,.btrtl w.IIA~tv~t 
• , residing at 71111116 dPr/4 t{fl(,IJf Edgewood, FL 32809, 

'have reviewed the attached site and construction plans for the proposed dock to be constructed on Lake 

Gatlin at S125 The Oaks Circle, Edgewood, FL 32809. I show no objection to these plans as presented in 

the attached pages. 

Sincerely, 

~'l!J.~ Signature 

· Printed Name 

...!6'f!J.(L-t1.f..1/t~S" ______ Date 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ~day of JV\JYL.l_ 2015 by 

ignature of Notary Public-State of Florida 

Personally know_iOR Produced Identification. __ _ 

_,

Shannon C. Tavrfdas 
NOTARYPUBUC 
8rATE OF FLORIDA 
Comm# FF035169 
Expires 81112017 

Type of Identification Produced•-----------------'----

112 



To: The City of Edgewood, Florida 

:md 
Orange County, Florida 

Date: May 28, 2015 

Re: Dock Plans for 5125 The Oaks Circle 

Dear Sir/M~dam, M . 
I, ttmy ~IYY\S • residing at S111Jhe DtJ.'(s Crde Edgewood, FL 32809, 

\;ave reviewed the attached site and construction plans for the proposed dock to be constructed on Lake 

.Satlin at 5125 The Oaks Circle, Edgewood, FL 32809. I show no objection to these plans as presented in 

the attached pages. 

goocere~, @ ~ 

~b. Mims 
Signature 

Printed Name 

_....,{,._o _· 7...._-_..1...._5.t.....-___ .Date 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this j-t'l\ay of ~'U._ 2015 by 

(Notary Seai)-J,~~~!\.&.\!!..~::J.."""''-.S::l~~~~L-
S' nature of Notary Public-State of Florida 

Personally know LoR Produced Identification, __ _ 
-

Shannllll C. Tavrldes 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
CGmm# FF085189 
Elcpires 81112017 

Type of Identification Produced ___________________ _ 

113 



TO: City of Edgewood, Orange County, Florida 

Date: July 16,2015 

RE: Dock Plans for 5125 The Oaks Circle 

I, Tom Hansel, on behalf of my father Ralph Hansel, and by the power given me in a Durable 
General Power of Attorney dated July 16, 2002, affirm that I have reviewed the site plan and 
constructions plans for the proposed dock to be constructed on Lake Gatlin at 5125 The Oaks 
Circle, Edgewood, FL 32809. I have no objection to these plans as presented. 

TomH~ 

Date: 01/lftj/S 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF 6\o-."\\.l~e 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this I ~~day o~ 20 _l_i_, by 

ToM 1-\v.vJ 

•\lli'ih BEA L. MEEKS 
f!~-~-~ Commisslon#EE876700 

f Expires February 20, 2017 
1 111 Bandld'rtluTrowFMIIIIIIIN88Q0.3116o70111 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

(Si~ature) ~ 

(Name of Notary Tvoed. Printed. or Stamped) 

Personally Known -~OR Produced Identification --., 

-
Type of Identification Produced ---:------'-~-

114 



115 



"' 

Horne purchased in Ju!y 2014 from the Hewlett Family with ex~sting dock 

Construction date for existing dock unknown 

Existing slip is too narrow h) accommodate a sman to rnediurn size (19') bow r1der 
boat 

Existing hoist not rated for anything heavier than a john boat 

Existing dock does not meet m~nimum setback requirements of 15' on either side 

·~ t d" . . r<eqtles e 1 vanance ~s: 
,,_, (l) to replace existing docf~. vu~th a nev~r, covered dock:. s~m~!ar in size and character to 

"''/'"'tin· g rio~~< \:.,.Ji.,....;,.L< 0 'I,.J...-t.....n 

{2! to reduce minimurn side setback from 1~5'to 0' 
' ' 

Two abutbng shoreline property owners; ne~ghbors to west have ~nd~cated no 
objection, neighbor to east has stated objection 

2'·· 



117 



11!1 
11'1 
'IIi 
'·h ~~·· i,d 

~ 
~ 

w 

,' 
~ 

' 
s 

~ 
~ 

~~ 
~I; 

.!.~ 

~ 

~. .'. 

118 



~~- __ ·.· 

119 



"" 0 

" 
~ -.' .· 

Under Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Sec. 11!-ll(b)(J), the proposed dock would not meet 
minimurn side setback requirernents. Given the configuration o-r the property, strict 
compliance wou!d be impossible. 

However, Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Sec. 14-l(d)(2) provides that applicants may request 
-nd •.,_, o·~:::.~'-"''"' "''la~'"'''CP t=.-.,c·•,vs 1'·o ho ·"'·On"'·ldeir<>a-' i•lCill-le· Chl\...~ t.h;;:;- bldt~l-...·\...-1 " ..... t• !1C!!~"' ....... > Cl ,t_..._ ... ,._ ~ v-...,. '...... .:> te:. ,~ U ~ 

Sec. l£~. l(d)(2)(a)- i·\verage length of oti1er ciocks in sw'Tounding 300-foot area: 

~3~-3c 1Li-·l(d)(2)(b)- The reasonab!e LISe of the property by the owner; 

Sec. J.4·1(d)(2Xc)- The effects the dock will have on navigation and s.crfety of boaters; 

Sec lL~ I(d)(2)(d)- The overall general weHare of the neighborhood; 

Sec . .t4-1(d)(2X~~)- VVhetller spec!ai conditions exist such that strict cornp!iance Vl!ith the provisions o·r this article would 
irnpo:se a unique <md unnecessary hardship on the applicant; 

sec. 14 J(d)(2)('f) ~-The effect ot the proposed variance on at;rutting shoreline property owners; 

Sec .. l4-l(d)(2)(g} -·Whether the granting of the variance would be contrary to the intent and purpose of t!iis article.: and 

Sec. l4-l(d)(2)(h)- A variance from the maximum length of 65 feet may be granted if necessary to reach a [suitablewater 
. depth]. 

6· 



N 

'I 
: 

i:! 

-.7.· 

·· ... /·· 

Sec. l4-l(d)(2)(a)- The proposed dock is of a character, scale, and type typical of other 
docks on Lake Gatlin and would not extend further than other docks in the immediate area. 
Currently, there are approximately 46 docks on Lake Gatlin; of those dod<s, 39 are covered. 
The average lengtr'< of other docks in UH:t surrounding 300 foot area is 63.85 'feet The 
proposed dock would be 56'. Several existing docks exceed the 65' maximum. (See slide 9) 

Sec. l4·1(d)(2)(b) · The proposed dod\ would provide the app!icants with reasonable use of 
their property- tl1e ability to store and :.;,sea boat. of the size and type typically used by 
other residents on Lake Gatlin . 

. Sec. l4-l(d)(2)(c)- The proposed dock would not interrere with the nav~gation or safety of 
other boaters because it would not extend beyond other docks !11 the immediate vicinity. 
Proposed new dock would not affect neighbor's access to ti1eir docks. (See slides 5 & 10) 

Sec 14-1(c1)(2)(d). The proposed variance would not change or compromise the genera! 
vveifare of the neighborhood. 

Sec. 14-l(d)(2)(e) ··Given the unique configuration of the property boundaries of 5125 The 
Oaks Circle, strict compliance with the Ordinance would render the property's lakefront 
essentially useless for recreational boating of the kind typical on Lake Gatlin. The peculiar 
shape of the lot does not allow enough space for a dock with required set-backs. This special 
condition is not due to the action of the applicants. 

'7· .. -.· .-· '• 



N 
N 

~; ,·? •·''\. ,,,, .. 
j; 

Sec. 14·1(d)(2)('f) ·The effect of the proposed variance on abutting shoreline property 
,.,,,~"'r"-' : .. rot U''~'"""'"On·ab'e· \.,;VI.\ It: ._.. 1:::, ,! t- .<11 ....... Ct.;;l .,.,. •. d • 

As proposed, the dock would sit essentially within the footprint of the existing dock, although it 
would include a cover and extend at most, 16.5' farther into the lake to access deepEH' water. 

The proposed dock will encroach no more on either the left or right property lines than the 
present, inadequate, structure. 

Basecl on a photograph that has been edited showing the position ol the proposed covered dock, 
we estimate that the objecting, abLitting neighbor would lose minimal amount of laketront 
visibility. There still would be approximately 30' feet of unobstructed shoreline/view from 
abutting neighbor's property. (See slides 11&12) 

Sec. 14·l(d)(2)(g)" Granting of the variance would be not be contrary to the intent and 
purpose of this article; it would enable applicants to enjoy access to the lake in a fashion 
s!miiar to their neighbors and would not interfere with others' enjoyment 

Sec. 14-l(d)(2)(h) . .App!lcants are not seeking a variance from the maximum allowable dock 
length of 65 feet. 



,./·---~ 

·~]) 
()/) 

L-~~ 

-
J 

r ..... 

) 

J .. 

·::··.; -:.:·~:·' 
:··· ., .. _ .. , .. ~. . .. _ 

::-::,.-;--·:·:-·.::.:.·.· 
,::\' 

123 



·.· .. Av~ra.ge Length of Othe.r Surrounding .Docks=63.85' . 
· · · ...• Based.otl measurem·ents·takenfrom·Google Earth ··.· ... · · 

· .. ···· ·· ... · .. · ·. ...... ..• . . . . . .. .· \ ·. ·•···•··••·····.· ... · .. ·· •..• TO 
-
~ 



·.·,-, 

125 



C\1 
....... 

126 



"" -.J 

1-\s rE:f!ect~d in the attached exhibits, the proposed do_d, represents i't)inimal changes from the 
ex.istmg swu.cture. The proposed dock would be no Wider than the ex1st111g dock, but would 
prov}de a slip of adequate width to accommodate a recreational bo•~t of the type common to 
Lake Gatlin and a lift to protect and preserve the boat. The extension into the lake would 
enab!e access to deeper water, but would still be well ·within a reasonable range relat!ve to 
.. "' .. q.,nN ·-.. ope·-"·le~ d,.~·o . .H,;,o, 5 1-J'f , t •,._,, 

T~'e proposed new dock. does not unrea::.onab!y impair lake view visibility from abutting east 
propertv. Although the protoosed dock will have a roof, the imgact on visibilitv is minimal and 
still ailo~'VS "for approximately 30' of unobstructed lake view. (See slide 11& 12) 

The intent and Pl!'P?~e of th~ Edgewood ~oat do9k r_egulat.ion is to (1) re~ulate construction of 
boat docks such 1:!1ai Ihe m:Mgatlon o·f w2ner bodies IS not lmpeded, and t2) to protect and 
enhan;;:;f? th'? city's water bodjes s9 that t~e public c:a~~ .continue t.o enjoy the traditional . 
recreanona1 uses such as sw1mmmg, boatmg, and f1snmg. As discussed above, the grantmg of 
this variance would be in harmonywith the general intent and pu~pose of this ordinance, in 
that it; 

Wouid enable tloe applicants to enjoy the full us,;, o-r their property for traditional recreational uses; 
wouid not impede navigation on the lake: and 
wouid not interfere V11ith the riparian or littoral rights of other property O\fVners . 

• 

1'3' -J,~-''-}. 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
PLEASE T •,.,.., NOTICE that t 'ts. Plannin & Z ' · '."'-'•''""'if';''v&aifi'~~~2o!$ the .......,. a 1 g onmg meeting on ~·~O!:I !!f• , , . y",_ . . . . , 
Plaol!!!!g aod Zoning Board of the City of Edgewood, will consider V'Wipnce Application No. 
VA~1$~ to allow a variance request for construction of a boat dock, located at 51:115 The 
Oaks Circle whiclt is currently in R-lAA zoning district, . (City of Edgewood Resolution 200S
Roo2 City Code of Ordinances, Reference Section 134-104 [Variaoce]) The application was submitted by 
Albert Cichra Builders aod owuer Susao Fortini. The meeting will be held in the Council Chambers of City 
Hall, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida beginning at 6:30p.m. 

The Plaoning aod Zoning Board's recommendation will be forwarded to City Council on July 21, 2015 at 
6:30 p.m. for final action. 

'f!!:e s~bJ!!_ct P~!IP~ for ~Jl.~.!'!.'EJ..P!!on ~.legf!lly_~!!.scn~~-~- RIV~!'\91\~_1(147 LOT 57 

Ui>!ltRii~l · ··~~ICGIII~ ~l;lll.lnO o•tf QRJb 

Pr.I~UI~I ~E~IIIR;!O Ull!ltl E]jarr:r" Er:]WIIIIlOll~ 

lfEl!ft: ~~::~'~ 

128 



This matter is subject to quasi-judicial rules of procedure. Interested parties should limit contact with the 
Planning and Zoning Board and City Council on this topic to properly noticed hearings or to written 
communication to the City Clerk's Office. 

Any person aggrieved by a recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board may file a notice of appeal 
to the City Council within seven days after such recommendation is filed with the city clerk. 

The City of Edge\vood desires to accommodate persons with disabilities. Accordingly, any physically 
handicapped person, pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, sh~uld, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting, submit a written request that the physically handicapped pers~n desires to attend the meeting to 
the City Clerk's Office. 

This public hearing may be continued to a future date or dates. Any interested party is advised that the 
date, time, and place of any continuation shall be announced during the public hearing and that no 
further notices regarding this matter will be published. 

Should you desire additional information, regarding this application, please feel free to contact the City 
Clerk's Office at 407-851-2920, or e-mail at bmeeks@;illg&wood:fLgov. 

Bea L, Meeks, City Clerk 
Dated: June 30, 2015 

129 



OCPAWebMap 

Florida 
turnpike 

Major Roads 

Public Roads 

Gated Roads 

/.;X Road Under 
"'"'6'= Construction 

6/29/2015 

;, ........ Proposed Roao 

liii!Jl; Brick Road 

-~~Rail Road 

llili!!l!llll Proposed 
SunRail 

Block Line 

Lot Line 

0 Residential 

r· ~;(_~,J Agriculture 

lo 

D Commercial/ 
· Institutional 

~ovemmenta!l 0 Institutional/ 
Mise 

. . - Commercial/ 

l~NJi1J :~'::t"(!nd 

DHydro 

(i;l::);,i_lJ Waste Land 

[.' Golf Course 

. >-~,~' Lakes and 
-~_,...<Rivers 

Building 

· .. ··-

I and is not a 

130 



CONFIDENTIAL 
CONFIDENTIAL 

BOYLAN SHIRLEY J 
5112 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

CONRAD LAURIE 
412 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

ARIKO JOHN G JR 
271 PRESCOTI DR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

RYAN JENNIFER L 
PO BOX 560249 
ORLANDO, FL. 32856 

11GUEZ JAMIE MARIE 
. THE OAKS CIR 

.LANDO, FL. 32809 

DEORIO NICHOLAS JOHN 
5122 LEEWARD WAY 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

MIMS RICHARD W 
5117THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

CRISLER PHILLIP I 
348 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

LANGFORD DOUGLAS W 
431 HARBOUR OAKS POINTE DR N 
(lD' ANDO, FL. 32809 

MICROULIS MARILYN 
5096 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

CAVIEZEL DIANE M 
5025 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

BISHOP JESSE DALE 
332 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

AMOS JOSEPH LACKEY JR 
5103 LEEWARD WAY 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

PRENTICE RONALD 
5060 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

PANTALEON CHRISTOPHER D 
364 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

ABANSES RAPHAEL 
3212 MOSSY ROCK RD SE 
OWENS CROSS ROADS, AL. 35763 

LAROUCHE LESLY 
469 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

SEBAALI SAMIR J 
5127 S ORANGE AVE STE 201 
ORLANDO, FL32809 

MUNOZ DANIEL 
5089 THE OAKS CIR 
EDGEWOOD, FL. 32809 

MUNOZ DANIEL 
5089 THE OAKS CIR 
EDGEWOOD, FL. 32809 

GOPAUL JOHN 
7210 SW 100TH AVE 
MIAMI, FL. 33173 

VITHA MAHESH 
8460 FRENCH OAK DR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32835 

LOPES PAUL 
517 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

ORLANDO CLINICAL RESEARCH 
5055 S ORANGE AVE 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

KOSTER DOUGLAS J 
5133 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

FIGUEROA FERDINAND 
5049 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

CAVIEZEL DIANE M 
5025 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

TAYLOR ANITA 
5145 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

EATON PAULINE D 
5104 THE OAKS CIR 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

131 



SCOTT HARRY S TR 
429 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

STEELE ELIZABETH L 
396 HARBOUR ISLAND RD 
ORLANDO, FL. 32809 

.~ 

132 



Application: __________ _ 

Owner/Applicant Name: 'Su-::D 0 )::" 0.-.±l· A j 

Public Hearing Date: 7// 'b/8.Dl$ 

This affidavit is to be presented at the public hearing before the Planning and Zoning Board. 

SIGN AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
ORANGE COUNTY 

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appearedSU.::.sa. lC) ~rt h ), 
to me well known and known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing affidavit, 
after being first duly sworn, says: 

1' 

2. 

3. 

4. 

That the affiant posted the notice provided by the City of Edgewood, which contains the time 
and date ofthe public hearings involved (i.e. Planning and Zoning Board and/or City Council). 

That said posted notice also contained the relevant facts pertaining to the application. 

That said notice was posted in a conspicuous and easily visible place ~~elAbj~ct proper:!Y 
not less than ten days prior to the date of public hearing. Date posted:~ ct:. ,Jf/5 . 

That the affiant understands that this affidavit is intended to be submitted as a prerequisite for 
a public hearing, and as such, will be officially filed with the City of Edgewood, Florida. 

(?ersonally Known~roduced Identification 

Type of I. D. Produced rp:r::oeq )\e ~t:JJ{) 

1/14/2007 

133 



134 



To: City Council 

405 Larue Avenue -Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 
(407) 851-2920 

From: Ellen Hardgrove, AICP, City Planning Consultant 

Date: July 14, 2015 

Re: Variance requests for house construction at 5566 Jessamine Lane (Baker Residence) 

135 



I. Requested Action by Board: 

Consideration of approval (with or without conditions) or denial of each of the requested 
variances: 

1) Variance in Section 134-483 to allow a detached garage and a tennis/basketball court, both 
viewed as accessory structures, in front ofthe proposed house. 

Section 134·483. ·Location of accessory buildings and uses in residential areas. 

(c) No detached accessory building shalf be located in front of the principal building. 

2) Variance in Section 134-517 to allow the construction of a fence or wall greater than 4 feet in 
height in front of the building line: requested 6 feet along the property line and 8 feet around 
the tennis/basketball. court. 

Section 134·517 ·Location of fences. 

Fences or walls beyond the front building line shalf be limited to a maximum heightoffourfeet. 

Per Section 134-1 04 (3)b. of the City's Code, approval of the requested variances requires the 
board to find: 

1. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, or 

building involved and which are not applicable to other. lands, structures or buildings in the same 
zoning district. 

2. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant. 

3. That approval of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that is 

denied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or structures in the same zoning district. 

4. That literal interpretation of the provisions contained in this chapter would deprive the applicant of 

rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under the terms of this 

chapter and would work unnecessary and undue hardship on the applicant. 

5. That the variance approved is the minimum variance that will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. 

6. That approval of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this chapter 

and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the 
public welfare. 

A variance can also be approved for the purpose of preserving historic or specimen trees. The 

following species are historic or specimen trees so long as they are healthy and are 18 or more 

inchesDBH: 

Bald cypress (Tax odium dlstichum); Southern red cedar (Juniperus silicicola); Eastern red cedar (J. virgin/ana); Winged 
elm (Eimus alata); Florida elm (Ulmus american tloridana); Wtllte oaks (Quercus alba); Bluff oak (Q. austrina.); Sand live oak (Q. 
gem/nata); Swamp chestnut/basket oak (Q. prlnus,); Live oak (Q.virginiana); Pecan (Carya ilinoensls,); Mockernut hickory (C. 
tomentosa); Pignut hickory (C. glabra,); Loblolly bay (Gordon/a- laslanthus); Longleaf plne(Pinus glabra); Southern 
magnolia (Magnolia grandifloris); Sweetbay magnolia (Magnolia virginiana); Red maple (Acer rebrum); Florida maple (A. 
barbatum); Tupelo (Nyssa sylvatica); White ash (Fraxinus americana). 

Page Z of 10 

136 



II. Relevant Facts 

Owner: Jeff and H;;~yley Baker 

Applicant: Dave Konkol 

Property Address: 5566 Jessamine Lane 

Tax Parcel#: 4-23-29-0000-00-030 

Parcel Size: 4.77 acres 

Zoning: R1AA, surrounded by R1AA 

Existing Land Use: Undeveloped, lakefront lot, with many large trees 

Approved land Use: With the exception of the tennis court and fence, the site plan on the next 
page has been approved. 

Page 3 oflO 

137 



Page4 of 10 

138 



Ill. Applicant's Rationale for Variance Approval 

It is incumbent upon the applicant to demonstrate that the criteria for variance approval have 
been met. 

Applicant's Rationale for Variance to allow a detached garage and tennis/basketball court in 
front of the principal building. 

The applicant has stated the house, garage and driveway were situated to have the least impact 
to the trees onsite. The applicant further states the face of the detached garage will be 222' from 
the edge of the road; thus, the. intent of the Code has been maintained by preserving the "front 
yard" and the aesthetic look of the residential neighborhood. 

In order to accommodate the desired house size, the garage, and a sports court on the 
property. the location for the tennis court was chosen where it would have the least impact to 
the onsite trees: front of the house. According to the applicant, the tennis court was narrowed 
from regulation size and a portion of the court has been carved-out to protecUsave a 42" oak. 
The tennis court is proposed to be situated 50± feet from the front property line. The R1M 
minimum front yard setback is 30 feet. 

Applicant's Rational for Variance to allow a fence higher than 8 feet in front of the building line. 

The proposed fence with stone columns is located and of a height to be consistent with the 
fence/stone column on the property immediately to the east of the subject property [see photo 
next page]. The applicant states, "It would look very peculiar to install the columns and fence 30' 
from the front property line or to reduce the height of the fence/columns to 4' when the adjacent 
fence and columns are 6 feet in height.'" 

IV. Staff Finding 

Staff recommends approval with conditions of the requested variances. Per code, variances can 
be approved where there are practical difficulties in complying with the strict letter of the code. 
Approval must ensure "the spirit" of the code will be observed; the public health, safety, good order 
and general welfare will be maintained; the rights of all parties will be equally protected. Per Section 
134-104 (3)b. of the City's Code, there are six criteria for approving a variance. Code allows the 
preservation of any historic or specimen tree to be considered as the basis for meeting the six 
criteria. The following provides an analysis of these six cr~eria as they relate to the proposed 
variances. 

Requested variance to allow a detached garage and tennis court in front of the principal 
building 

1. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, 
or building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in 

the same zoning district. 

The lot is filled with historic trees. According to the applicant. the proposed house has been 
situated on the portion of the lot that has the least number of trees. This location causes the need 

Page 5 oflO 

139 



to locate the accessory structures in front of the house. Had the house been placed at the 30-foot 
front setback line allowed by the zoning district, the proposed detached garage and the tennis 
court could have been situated behind the house negating the need for variances. If the house 
was placed at the permissible front setback line, the number of trees that would need to be 
removed significantly increases, including several historic/specimen trees. 

2. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the 
applicant. 

The trees were on the property when the lot was purchased. 

3. That approval of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 
privilege that is denied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or structures in the same 
zoning district. 

Had it not been for the trees, the proposed uses would have been allowed on the property as 
referenced under Criterion #1. 

4. That literal interpretation of the provisions contained in this chapter would deprive the 
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under 
the terms of this chapter and would work unnecessary and undue hardship on the 
applicant. 

The importance of tree preservation has led to the need for a variance. If there were no trees on 
the property, the property owner could have enjoyed the rights of other properties in the R1AA 
district. 

5. That the variance approved is the m1mmum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, building or structure. 

Based on the proposed construction plans, the requested variances are the minimum necessary to 
save the trees. 

6. That approval of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
chapter and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise 
detrimental to the public welfare. 

With the following condition, the proposed accessory structures place in front of the principal 
structure would be in harmony and not be injurious to the neighborhood or the public welfare. 

Condition #1: Lighting of the court shall be prohibited to ensure compatibility with property 
owners. 

Page 6of 10 

140 



Requested variance to allow the construction of a fence or wall greater than 4 feet in height in 
front of the building line: 

1. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure, 
or building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or buildings in 
the same zoning district. 

As stated by the applicant, the fence height variance is requested to provide uniformity with the 
established fence height in the neighborhood, particularly on the adjacent property to the east. 
See photos at the end of the report. 

2. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the 
applicant. 

The established fence height/location on the property to east already existed when the owners 
purchased the property. 

3. That approval of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 
privilege that is denied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or structures in the same 
zoning district. 

Other properties proximate the subject property enjoy the privilege of increased fence height. 

4. That literal interpretation of the provisions contained in this chapter would deprive the 
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under 
the terms of this chapter and would work unnecessary and undue hardship on the 
applicant. 

One of the reasons for fence height requirements is to protect property values by creating 
uniformity. The 6 feet fence height in the front yard is already established and enjoyed by others in 
the neighborhood. A 4 feet high fence connected to the existing fence on the adjacent property or 
setting a 6 feet high fence back 30 feet from the front property line would, as the applicant states, 
"look very peculiar." 

5. That the variance approved is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, building or structure. 

Yes, the proposed fence is consistent with others in the neighborhood. 

Page 7 of 10 

141 



6. That approval of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
chapter and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise 
detrimental to the public welfare. 

With the following conditions, the proposed fence would be in harmony and not be injurious to the 
neighborhood or the public welfare. 

Condition 1: If a security gate is to be used, the gate shall be setback at least 20 feet from 
the edge of Jessamine Lane pavement to prevent blocking other vehicles use 
of Jessamine Lane. 

Condition 2: The fence shall not exceed .6 feet in height and shall be similar in 
architectural style as the fence on the neighboring property, including the 
use of stone columns along the front property line. Stone columns shall not 
exceed 7 feet 4 inches in height 

Condition 3: Subject to site plan approval to ensure there is no impairment of sight lines 
in relationship to the right-of-way. 

Adjacent to east 

Page8of10 

142 



Two parcels to west: 5554 Jessamine Lane 

5501 Jessamine Lane 

Page 9 oflO 

143 



Looking North on Jessamine Lane 

ESH 

Page 10 of 10 

144 



P~~~ & ZONING BOARD Sec:tion 

MAKE PAYMENTS TO: 
CITY OF EDGEWOOD 

FEE: $350 RESIDENTIAL 
$750 COMMERCIAL 

IMPORT ANT: FILE BY THE SECOND WEDNESDAY OF THE MONTH FOR FIRST HEARING ON THE 
SECOND MONDAY OF THE FOLLOWING MONTH 

Please note this fee is non refundable. 

~: Notarized letter of authorization from Owner MUST be submitted 
if application is filed by anyone other than property owner 

Applicant's Name: Jeff & Hayley Baker Owner's Name: 

Address: 5515 Jessamine Lane Address: 
Orlando, FL 32839 

Telephone: 1 ~~~::~~:~~~~ ~~_r1ey Telephone: 

Fax: Fax: 

Email: jbaker@gonoble.com Email: 

ParceiiD/Legal description: 
#14-23-29-0000-00-030 See additional sheet for I gal description 
Zoned: R1AA 

Cite section of the Zoning Code from which 
variance Is requested: See additional sheet 

Existing on site: 

Request: See additional sheet 

Revised 4/1/08 

Same as applicant 

405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 
Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 

www.edgewood-fl.gov 

1 of 3 

145 



To justify this variance, applicant must demonstrate the following: 

1. That special condition and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, structure or 
building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, structures or building in the same 
zoning classification 

2. the special conditions and circumstances do no result from the action of the applicant 
3. literal interpretation or enforcement of the provisions of the Ordinance would deprive the applicant 

of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning classification under the terms 
of the Ordinance 

4. the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford relief and will 
represent the least modification possible for the regulation at issue 

5. the variance sought will not authorize or extend any non conforming use or other non conformity 
with respect to the land or structures in questions 

6. the granting of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose of this 
Ordinance, will not be injurious to the area involved, or surrounding properties, and will no 
authorize a use of the property not permitted by its zoning classification 

7. the variance sought will be consistent with the Edgewood Comprehensive Plan 

Applicant must agree that: 

1. In granting any variance, the City may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in 
conformity with the Ordinances, and any regulations enacted under its authority. Violation of such 
conditions and safeguards, when made a pert of the terms under which the variance is granted 
shall be deemed a violation of Edgewood ordinances. 

I AGREE: I I DISAGREE: I I 
2. The variance recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board and approved by the City Council 

shall expire in 12 months in accordance with Chapter 134-104 (3) (e). 

I AGREE: I I DISAGREE: I I 
3. Concerning Ex parte communications, the applicant shall not speak to members of the Planning 

and Zoning Board of the City Council prior to the public hearing related to said variance request in 
order that said board members shall no prejudice themselves prior to said variance request 
coming before the City in an open proceeding where the decision making process and 
determination will be in full view of the public, thereby providing due process involving a fair 
opportunity for the presentation of both sides of the case in an open proceeding where a record of 
the proceedings may be kept 

4. 
I AGREE: I I DISAGREE: I I 

The applicant hereby states that the above request for Variance does not violate any deed restrictions on 
the orooertv. 
Applicant's Signature: Date: 

Applicant's Printed 
Name: 
Owner's Signature: Date 

Owner's Printed 
Name: 

Revised 4/1/08 2 of 3 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 

Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 
www.edgewood-fl.gov 

146 



Please submit your completed application to City Hall via email at cityhallstaff@eqdewood
fi.gov, via facsimile to 407-851-7361, or hand deliver to City Hall located at 405 Larue Ave. 
For additional questions, please contact City Hall at 407-851-2920. 

Revised 4/1/08 
405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, 32809-3406 

Phone: 407-851-2920 I Fax: 407-851-7361 
w-.edgewood-fl.gov 

3 of3 

147 



Additional Information 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

BEGIN AT A POINT 41.43 FEET WEST OF THE CENTER OF SECTION 14. TOWNSHIP 23 
SOUTH, RANGE29 EAST, RUN SOUTH 1034.28 FEET TOA UNE400 FEET SOUTH 
OF THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 
112 OF THE SOUTHWESTOF SAID SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 23 SOUTH, RANGE 29 
EAST, THENCE RUN EAST 203.51 FEET, THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 23' 1 B• EAST 
1034.41FEETTO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 114 OF SAID SECTION 14, 
TOWNSHIP23 
SOUTH, RANGE29 EAST, THENCE WEST210.52 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, LESS, HOWEVER. A STRIP OF LAND ALONG THE FULL 
LENGTH OF THE NORTH BOUNDARY 30 FEET WIDE, WHICH STRIP IS RESERVED 
FOR ROAD PURPOSES, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

Variance Items 

The items for which a variance is requested are as follows: 
1. To construct the garage on the plan as shown, but to remove the breezeway 

structure connecting the two. This is in contradiction to Sec. 134-483 (b). 
which prohibits a detached accessory building, including garages, to be 
located in front of the principal building. 

2. To construct the tennis/basketball court on the plan as shown. This is also in 
contradiction to Sec. 134-483 (b). which prohibits an accessory use structure 
to be located in front of the principal building. 

3. To construct the 6' decorative entry fence with columns and the 
tennis/basketball court fence, which ranges from 4' to 8', to be built as 
shown on the plan. This is in contradiction to Sec. 134-517: which limits 
fences in residential districts to a maximum of 8 feet. And if the fence is 
between the principal building and the front property line, the fence cannot 
exceed 4 feet in height. 

Reason for Request 

The reason for the variance is that in excess of twenty trees on the site qualify 
for historic tree status, some in excess of 42" DBH. These trees are scattered 
over the buildable area in such a way as to prohibit moving the house forward on 
the lot in order to place these accessories behind it. In order to protect these 
trees the accessory elements have been placed to minimize any negative impact 
on them. 

148 



"/7 

u ~~ 

t-..) c: 
(,.. "' 

:{.-1 

()l • 
~ t).l 

~'1 

I 

\ 

···.• . (! },. 

··•. 
· •.. 

<-><<' -C-~~~~-·.ci-1[1--\"l'·:;• 
,f·r~, 

';,P·~· 
'·: • .:1•' 

149 



I 

~~-
1 -:= 

..'{ n, 
-·r . . !) ··:.t:;~ 

··-
Baker Residence 
Konkol CusTom Homes 

\""i\ 

::~ •• _! ... '.~ ~···· .•.; ¥ •• 

5.51!36 Jesso"""" Ln.. Orl~"<<o. FL 

b~ ""'- • 
!Kt~~~-
~ ·-= ... _.__,~ ~ 

~\ 

_,Jj!" 

' 

. ~i5~l~'::'.'~··r _ _. .. ., 

11 " .. 11 

IJ I 

150 



' ~ 

! ~ '. 'm c 

II 
fJ 
I 

' ! I 
J 

I ~ '-B-a-ke_r_Re-si-de_n_ce-----------' --~-U_!!_~_-."::_ .. -_·-_·__,i D .__-__ .. _~_-_·---" Kookol G'stom Homes .. !'!!!i!"~ I .._,.:.;;g 5566 Jessami"" Ln.. Or!<l'\da, FL LAN~!'.?,;~~_;.~~g."~c 

151 



·-

ll~c·,~3-~2""1··'-.· .. ·.·.,-~etcl·.-... :,;:_.~ T ·-\ ._~_"_"~-~-~-~_:_"~-id_H~-~-~e_. __________ ...J ... ~_r_i~_r_!i_r._~:__·-_· _i_, CJ .__~_._· _-;.__--~_cE_: ,_._·_· _·.;· - -·- I __ ....... . .... ~.':g't_-~_;·'··'--"!!._~.!;l"A~ : 55186 .Jeis~,;na Lt> .. Orlonda. Fl. _ _ _ 

152 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at its Planning & Zoning meeting on Mi)li~Yti':illl.Y~21:fl5i, the 
Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Edgewood, will consider Variance Annlication No. 
VAR!Qim1 to allow variance requests for house construction, located at 5566 Jessamine 
Lane which is currently in R-tAA zoning district. (City of Edgewood Resolution 2oos-Roo2 City 
Code of Ordinances, Reference Section 134-104 [Variance]) The application was submitted by Konkol 
Custom Homes & Remodeling, LLC on behalf of owners, Jeff and Hayley Baker. The meeting will be held 
in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 405 Larue Ave11ue, Edgewood, Florida beginning at 6:30p.m. 

The Planning and Zoning Board's recommendation will be forwarded to City Council on July 21, 2015 at 
6:30p.m. for final action. 

The sui)ject property for special exception is legally described as BEG 41.43 FT W CEN OF SEC S 1034.28 FT E 
203.51 FT N POB IN SEC 14-23-29 RD ON 

i 
I 
i 

. l 

' 

I 
.. 1..-·-~-

153 



This matter is subject to quasi-judicial rules of procedure. Interested parties should limit contact with the 
Planning and Zoning Board and City Council on this topic to properly noticed hearings or to written 
communication to the City Clerk's Office. 

Any person aggrieved by a recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board may ffie a notice of appeal 
to the City Council witbin seven days after such recommendation is ffied with the city clerk. 

The City of Edgewood desires to accommodate persons with disabilities. Accordingly, any physically 
handicapped person, pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, should, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting, submit a written request that the physically handicapped person desires to attend the meeting to 
the City Clerk's Office. 

This public hearing may be continued to a future date or dates. Any interested party is advised that the 
date, time, and place of any continuation shall be announced during the public hearing and that no 
further notices regarding this matter will be published. 

Should you desire additional information, regarding this application, please feel free to contact the City 
Clerk's Office at 407-851-2920, or e-mail at bmeeks@edgewood-fl.gov. 

Bea L. Meeks, City Clerk 
Dated: June 30, 2015 

154 



: Major Roads 

Public Roads 

Gated Roads 

~ RoadUnder 
=w= Construction 

...... , ...... Proposed Roa• Block Line 

~ Brick Road '"'~ ... -i'-:''. Lot Llna 

~ Rail Road CJ Reeldentfal 

~ ::':.::m r~:-~~-): A!lrlculture 

D . Commerclalf CJ 
• Institutional Hydro 

~:~ovemmentall 

I~J/]&\~IInstltutionalf I'. ·_:·.--.--.J waste Land 
Mise 

1111 
Commercial/ 

· Industrial 
vacant Land 

I 

::,'11:- Golf Course 

Lakes and 
'·- Rivers 

Building 

/ 
--~-,. -.-•- .-.. -c-·---

This 

I 
I I 
I ' 

• 
~ i 
1--Ji 
~ 

I ~t-"" 

"' I , -
is for reference 

155 



ARABITG WINSTON 
5408 KENMORE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

"·- MERRYTIME LLC 
5515 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

IRWIN FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 
C/0 DANN D IRWIN TRUSTEE 15158 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

BAKER JEFFREY A 
5515 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

HOWARD PEGGY T TR 
5554 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

65" ' '~RRYTIME LLC 
5E :SSAMINE LN 

1NDO, FL. 32839 

CRANES POINT HOMEOWNERS ASSN 
5157 CRANES POINT CT 
EDGEWOOD, FL. 32839 

HOWARD ROBERT M JR 
5554 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

KATZMAN SCOTTS 
677 HERMITAGE CIR 
PALM BEACH GARDENS, FL. 33410 

JOHNSON ROBERT A 
PO BOX 560907 
ORLANDO, FL. 32856 

:tiquettes faciles a peler 
Jtilisez le gabarit AVERY® 5160® 

I 
I 
~ 

HOWEJOHNW 
5583 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

ORANGE COUNTY BCC 
C/0 REAL ESTATE MNGT DEPT I PO 
ORLANDO, FL. 32802 

WILLIS DAVID C 
5157 CRANES POINT CT 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

ORANGE COUNTY BCC 
C/0 REAL ESTATE MNGT DEPT I PO 
ORLANDO, FL. 32!102 

BAKER JEFF 
5515 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

CONFIDENTIAL 
CONFIDENTIAL 

BEEMER C .BRITT 
5100 CRANES POINT CT 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

ECKERD COLLEGE INC 
4200 54TH AVE S 
SAINT PETERSBURG, FL. 33711 

HURST JAMES F II 
PO BOX 593776 
ORLANDO, FL. 32859 

GIBSON MARK I 
5573 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

& 
Sensde 

chargement 

I 
Repliez a Ia ha~hure afin de I 
reveler le rebard Pap-upTM J 

NUNNALLY LESTER C 
5538 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

BARNER BRETT L 
5101 CRANES POINT CT 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

PARTAIN VIRGINIA R TR 
5434 LA'Z,Y OAKS LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

TEAGUE MICHAEL A 
5553 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

ACCOLA KEVIN D 
5143 CRANES POINT CT 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

HARRIS VALERIE L 
5561 jesSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

WILLIAMSON PAUL R 
5130 CRANES POINT CT 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

NUNNALLY LESTER C 
731 JAMESTOWN DR 
WINTER PARK, FL. 32792 

PULLUM HARRY G SR 
5550 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

GREY RODERIC J LIFE ESTATE 
5533 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

www.avery.com 
1·800·GO..AVERY 

156 



PARTAIN JONATHAN 0 
5434 LAZY OAKS LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

YOUNG TERRY C 
5115 CRANES POINT CT 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

f wa6pg dn·dOd asodx<l - .. dtd paad 
I ouu116uo1e puaa - y 
I 

BURKE BONNIE S 
5569 JESSAMINE LN 
ORLANDO, FL. 32839 

f 
I 

5oaLs ~eJdWe.J. efoJaAV asn 
SJBqi!'J ®188d MB~ 

157 



Application: __________ _ 

Owner/Applicant Name: _______ _ 

Public Hearing Date:---------

This affidavit is til be presented lilt ftlne public lne111r!ng before the Planning111nd Z11ning Board. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
ORANGE COUNTY 

SiGN AIFFIDAV!T 

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared ·th \J ~(I ),<·~.<ol k' C i 
to me well known and known to me to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing affidavit, 
after being first duly sworn, says: 

1. That the affiant posted the notice provided by the City of Edgewood, which contains the time 
and date of the public hearings involved (i.e. Planning and Zoning Board and/or City Council). 

2. That said posted notice also contained the relevant facts pertaining to the application. 

3. That said notice was posted in a conspicuous and easily visible place onJhe subject property 
not less than ten days prior to the date of public hearing. Dale posted: _.~;,,\ '\ \ t 01 S 

4. That the affiant understands that this affidavit is intended to be submitted as a prerequisite for ... ~""""·"'"""'· ~""-'"""'~.7' '""'' 
Signature of owner or authorized representative 

Print, type, or stamp commissioned 
Florida 

Personally Known OR Produced Identification 

Typeofi.D.Produced fL f)rnlefi:.;LICeVJSi<. 

1/14/2007 

,2o.LS 

158 



(Slip Opinion) OCTOBER TERM, 2014 

Syllabus 

NOTE: Where it is feasible, a syllabus {headnote) will be released, as is 
being done in connection with this case, at the time the opinion is issued. 
The syllabus constitutes no pa1·t of the opinion of the Court but bas been 
prepal'ed by the Reporter of Decisions fur the co_nvenience of the reader. 
See United Slates v. Detroit Timber & Lu.mber Co., 200 U. S. 821, BS7. 

1 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

Syllabus 

REED ET AL. v. TOWN OF GILBERT, ARIZONA, ET AL. 

CERTIORARI TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR 
THE NINTH CIRCUIT 

No. 13-502. Argued January 12, 2015-DecidedJune 18,2015 

Gilbert, Al·izona (Town), has a comprehensive code (Sign Code or Code) 
that prohibits the display of outdoor signs without a permit, but" ex
empts 23 categories of signs, including three relevant here. "Ideolog
ical Signs," defined as signs "communicating a message or ideas" that 
do not :lit in any other Sign Code category, may be up to 20 square 
feet and have no placement or time restrictions. "Political Signs," de
fined as signs "designed to influence the outcome of an election," may 
be up to 32 square feet and may only be displayed dw'ing an election 
season. ''Tempm·ary DiJ:ectional Signs/' defined as signs directing the 
public to a church or othe1· "qualifying event," have even greater re
strictions: No more than four of the signs, limite_d to six square feet, 
may be on a single propet•ty at any time, and signs may be displayed 
no more than 12 hom·s before the "qualifying event" and 1 hom· after. 

Petitionet•s, Good News Community Church (Chm·ch.) and its pas
tor, Clyde Reed, whose Sunday church services are held at various 
temporary loca_tions in.and neat• the Town, posted signs early each 
Satm·day beai·ing the Church name and the time and location of the 
next service and did not remove the signs until around midday Sun· 
day. The Church was cited for exceeding the time limits for display
ing tempm·ary dil'ectional signs and for failing to include an event 
date on the signs. Unable to reach an accommodation with the Town, 
petitioners filed suit, claiming that the Code abl'idged their freedom 
of speech. The District Colll't denied theh· mOtion for a preliminary 
injunction, and tP,e NiD.th Circuit affirmed, ultimately concluding 
that the Code's sign categories WeJ.'e content neutral, and that the 
Code satisfied the intermediate ac1·utiny accorded to content-neutr81 
l'egulations of speech. , 

Held: The Sign Code's provisions are content-based regulations of 

159 ! 



2 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Syllabus 

Bp\'lech that do not survive strict scrutiny. Pp. 6-17. 
(a) Because content-based laws target speech based on its conimu

nicative content, they are presumptively unconstitutional and may be 
justified oitly if the government proves that -they are narrowly tai
lored to serve compelling state interests. E.g., R. A. V. v. St. Paul, 
505 U. "8. 377, 395. Speech regulation is content based if a law ap
plies to particular speech because of the topic discussed or the idea or 
message exp1·essed. E.g., Sorrell v. IMS Hea.lth, Inc., 664 U.S._, 
_·-_. And courts are required to consider whether a regulation of 
speech "on its face" ch·aws distinctions based on the message a speak
er conveys. ld., at_. Whether laWs define regulated speech by par· 
ticula1· subject matter or by its 'function or purpose, they are subject 
to stlict scrutiny. The same is true f01•laws that, though facially con· 
tent neutral, cannot be "~ustified without refe1·ence to the content of 
the l'egulated speech,' " or were adopted by the government "because 
of disagreement with the message" conveyed: Ward v. Rock Against 
Racism, 491 U.S. 781, 791. Pp. f>--7. 

(b) The Sign Code is content based on its face. It defines the cate· 
gories of temporary, political, and ideological signs on the basis of 
their messages and then subjects each category to different l'e· 

strictions. The restrictions applied thus depend entil:ely on the sign's 
communicative content. Because the Code, on its face, is a content· 
based regulation of speech, there is no need to consider the govern
ment's justifications or purposes for enacting the Code to determine 
whethe1· it is subject to strict scl'Utiny. Pp. 7. 

(c) None of the Ninth CircUit's theories for its contrary holding is 
persuasive. Its conclusion that the Town's regulation was not based 
on a disagreement with the message- conveyed skips the Cl'UCial fu·st 
step in the content-neutrality analysis: determining whether the law 
is content neutral on its face. A l&w that is content based on its face 
is subject to strict scrutiny regardless of the government's benign mo
tive, content-neut1·al justification, or lack of "animus toward the ideas 
contained" in the regulated speech. Cincinnati v. Discove1y Network, 
Inc., 507 U. S. 410, 429. Thus, an innocuous justification cannot 
transform a facially content-based law into one that is conterit neu
tral. A court must evaluate each question-whether a law is content 
based on its face and whether the purpose and justification for the 
law are content based-before concluding that a law is content neu
tral. Ward does not 1·equire otherwise, for its fi:amework applies only 
to a content-neutral statute. 

The Ninth Circuit's·conclusion that the Sign Code does not single 
out any idea or viewpoint fOl' discrimination conflates two distinct but 
related limitations that the First Amendment places on government 
regulation of speech. Government discrimination among viewpoints 

160 



Cite as: 576 U. S. _ (2015) 3 

Syllabus 

is a 1'more blatarit" and "egregious form of content discrimination," 
Rosenberger v. Rector and Visitors of Univ. of Va., 515 U.S. 819, 829, 
but "[t]he First Amendment's hostility to content-based regulation 
[also] extends ... to prohibition of public discussion of an entiJ:e top· 
ic," Consolidated Edison Co. of N. Y. v. Public Seru. Comm'n of N. Y., 
447 U.S. 530, 537. The Sign Code, a pandigmatic example of con
tent-based discrimination, singles out specific subject matter fo1·. clif. 
ferential tl:eatment, even if it does not ta1·get viewpoints within that 
subject matte1·. 

The Ninth Circuit also e1·red in concluding that the Sign Code was 
not content based because it made only speaker-based and event
based distinctions. The Code's categories are not speaker-based-the 
restrictions for political, ideological, and temporary event signs apply 
equally no matter who sponsm·s them. And even if the sign catego
ries were speaker based, that would not automatically render the law 
content neutr~. Rathel·, "laws favoring· some speakers over others 
demand strict scrutiny when the legislature's speaker preference re
flects a content preference." Turner _Broadcasting System, Inc. v. 
FCC, 512 U.S. 622, 658. This same analysis applies to event-based 
distinctions. Pp. 8-14. 

(d) The Sign Code's content-based restrictions do not survive strict 
sCI·utiny because the Town has not demonstl·ated that the Code's dif
ferentiation between temporary directional signs and ather types of 

. signs furthers a compelling governmental interest and is narrowly 
tailored to that end. See A1·izona Free Enterprise Club's Freedom 
Club PAC v. Bennett, 564 U.S. ~ _. Assuming that the Town 
has a compelling interest in p1•eserving its aesthetic appeal and traf
fic safety, the Code's distinctions are highly underinclusive. The 
Town cannot claim that placing strict limits on temporary directional 
signs is necessary to beautify the Town when other types of signs 
create the same pl'Oblem. See Discovery Netwo1'k, supra., at 426. Nor 
has it shown that temporary d.il:ectional signs pose a greatet• threat to 
public safety than ideological or political signs. Pp. 14-15. 

(e) This decision will not prevent governments from enacting effec
tive sign laws. The Town has ample content-neutral options availa
ble to resolve problems with safety and aesthetics, including regulat
ing size, building materials, lighting, moving pa1·ts, and portability. 
And the Town may be able to fm·bid postings on public property, so 
long as it does so in an evenhanded, content-neutral manner. See 
Members of City Council of Los Angeles v. Ta~"<payers for Vincent, 466 
U.S. 789, 817. An ordinance narrowly tailored to the challenges of 
protecting the safety of pedestl·ians, drivers, and passengers-e.g., 
warning signs marking hazards on private property or signs directing 
traffic-might also survive strict scrutiny. Pp. 16--17. 

161 



4 REED v. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Syllabus 

707 F. 3d 1057, reversed and 1•emanded. 

THOMAS, J., delivered the opinion of the Court, in which ROBERTS, 
C. J., and SCALIA, KENNEDY, AuTO, and SOTOMAYOR, JJ., joined. ALITO, 
J., filed a concurring opinion, in which KENNEDY and SOTOMAYOR, JJ., 
joined. BREYER, J., filed an opinion concurl"ing in the judgment. KA· 
GAN, J., filed an opinion concurring in the judgment, in which GINSBURG 
and BREYER, JJ., joined 

162 



Cite as: 576 U. S. _ (2015) 

Opinion of the CoUl·t 

NOTICE: This ·opinion is subject to formal revision before publicatil)n in the 
Pl'eliminary print of the United States Reports. Readers Rl'e requested to 
notify the Reportet• of Decisions, Supreme Court of the United States, Wash· 
ington, D. C. 20548, of any typographical at• othet• formal E!l'l'Ors, in order 
that conections may be·made befm-e the pxeliminaty pt•int goes to Pl'!!SS. 

1 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

No. 13-502 

CLYDE REED, ET AL., PETITIONERS v. TOWN OF 
GILBERT, ARIZONA, ET AL. 

ON WRIT OF CERTIORARI TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF 
APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT 

[June 18, 2015] 

JUSTICE THOMAS delivered the opinion of the Court. 

The town of Gilbei·t, Arizona (or Town), has adopted a 
comprehensive code governing the manner in which people 
may display outdoor signs. Gilbert, Ariz., Land Develop
ment Code (Sign Code or Code), ch. 1, §4.402 (2005).1 The 
Sign Code identifies various categories of signs based on 
the type of information they convey, then subjects each 
category to different restrictions. One of the categories is 
"Temporary Dh·ectional Signs Relating to a Qualifying 
Event," loosely defined as signs directing the public to a 
meeting of a nonprofit group. §4.402(P). The Code imposes 
mo1·e stringent restrictions on these signs than it does 
on signs conveying other messages. We hold that these 
provisions are content-based regulations of speech that 
cannot survive strict scrutiny. 

1The Town's Sign Code is available online at http://www.gilbertaz.goy/ 
departments I development· service /planning- development/land· 
development-code (as visited June 16, 2015, and available in Clerk of 
Court's case file). 

163 



2 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Court 

I 
A 

The Sign Code prohibits the display of outdoor signs 
anywhere within the Town without a permit, but it then 
exempts 23 categories of signs from that requirement. 
These exemptions include everything fi·om bazaar signs to 
flying banners. Three categories of exempt signs are 
p articulal'ly relevant here. 

The fi1·st is "Ideological Sign[s]." This category includes 
any ({sign communicating a message or ideas for noncom
mercial purposes that is not a Construction Sign, Direc· 
tiona! Sign, Temporary Directional Sign Relating to a 
Qualifying Event, Political Sign, Gal'age Sale Sign, or a 
sign owned or required by a governmental agency." Sign 
Code, Glossary of General Terms (Glossary), p. 23 (em· 
phasis deleted). Of the three categories discussed here, 
the Code treats ideological signs most favorably, allowing 
them .to be up to 20 square feet in area and to be placed in 
all "zoning districts" without time limits. §4.402(J). 

The second category is "Political Sign[s]." This includes 
any "temporary sign designed to influence the outcome of 
an election called by a public body." Glossary 23.2 The 
Code treats these signs less favorably than ideological 
signs. The Code allows the placement of political signs up 
to 16 square feet on residential property and up to 32 
square feet on nonresidential property, undeveloped mu· 
nicipal p1·operty, and "rights-of-way." §4.402(!)." These 
signs may be displayed up to 60 days before a prima1·y 
election and up to 15 days following a general election. 
Ibid. 

2 A "Tempm·ru·y Sign" is a "sign not permanently attached to the 
ground, a wall or a building, and not designed or intended for perma
nent display." Glossary 25. 

BThe Code defines 11Right-of-Way'' as a 11strip of publicly owned land 
occupied by or planned fm· a street, utilities, landscaping, sidewalks, 
trails, and similar facilities." Id., at 18. 

164 



Cite as: 576 U.S._ (2015) 3 

Opinion of the Court 

The third category is "Temporary Directional Signs 
Relating to a Qualifying Event." This includes any "Tem
porary Sign intended to direct pedestrians, motorists, and 
other passe1·sby to a 'qualifying event.'" Glossa1•y 25 
(emphasis deleted). A "qualifying event'' is defined as any 
"assembly, gathering, activity, or meeting sponsored, 
ananged, or promoted by a religious, charitable, commu
nity service, educational, or other. similar non-profit organ
ization." Ibid. The Code treats temporary directional 
signs even less favorably than political signs.• Temporary 
directional signs may be no la1·ger than six square feet. 
§4.402(P). They may be placed on private property m· on a 
public right-of-way, but no mo1·e than fom signs may be 
placed on a single property at any time. Ibid. And, they 
may be displayed no more than 12 hours before the "quali
fying event'' and no more than 1 hom afterward. Ibid. 

B 

Petitioners Good News Community Church (Church) 
and its pastm·, Clyde Reed, wish to advertise the time and 
location of their Sunday chmch services. The Church is a 
small, cash-strapped entity that owns no building, so it 
holds its services at elementary schools m· other locations 
in or near the Town. In order to inform the public about 
its services, which are held in a variety of different loca-

4The Sign Code has been amended twice during the pendency of this 
case. When litigation began in 2007," tb,e Code defined the signs at 
issue as "Religious Assembly Temporary Direction Signs." App. 75. 
The Code entirely p1·ohibited placement of those signs iri the public 
right-of-way, and it fo1·bade posting them in any location for more than 
two hours before the religious assembly or more than one hom· after
W81'd. Id., at 75-'7:6. In 2008, the Town redefined the category as 
"Temporary Dh·ectional Signs Related to a Qualifying Event," and it 
expanded the time limit to 12 hours.before and 1 hour after the "quali
fying event." Ibid. In 2011, the Town amended the Code to authorize 
placement of tempo1•ary directional signs in the public right-of-way. 
ld., at 89. 

165 



4 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Court 

tiona, the Church began placing·15 to 20 temporary signs 
around the Town, frequently in the public right-of-way 
abutting the street. The signs typically displayed the 
Church's name, along with the time and location of the 
upcoming se1·vice. Chumh members would post the signs 
early in the day on Saturday and then remove them 
around midday on Sunday. The display of these signs 
requires little money and manpower, and thus has proved 
to be an economical and effective way for the Church to let 
the community know where its services are being held 
each week. 

This pnctice caught the attention of the Town's Sign 
Code compliance manager, who twice cited the Church for 
violating the Code. The first citation noted that the 
Church exceeded the time limits fo1· displaying its tempo· 
ral'Y directional signs. The second citation referred to the 
same problem, along with the Church's failtue to include 
the date of the event on the signs. Town officials even 
connscated one of the Church's signs, which Reed had to 
retrieve from the municipal offices. 

· Reed contacted the Sign Code Compliance Department 
in an attempt to reach an accommodation. His efforts 
proved unsuccessful. The Town's Code compliance man· 
ager informed the. Chmch that there would be "no leni· 
ency under the Code" and promised to punish any future 
violations. 

Shortly thereafte1·, petitioners filed a complaint in the 
United States District Court for the District of Arizona, 
arguing that the Sign Code ab1·idged theil· freedom of 
speech in violation of the First and Fourteenth Amend· 
menta. The District Court denied the petitioners' motion 
for a preliminary injunction. The Court of Appeals for the 
Ninth Circuit affirmed, holding that the Sign Code's provi· 
sian regulating tempora1'Y dil·ectional signs did not l'egu· 
late speech on the basis of .content. 587 F. 3d 966, 979 
(2009). It reasoned that, even though an enforcement 

166 



Cite as: 576 U.S._ (2015) 5 

Opinion of the Cow·t 

officer would have to read the sign to determine what 
pl'Ovisions of the Sign Code applied to it, the '"kind of 
cm·so1-y examination"' that would be necessary for an 
officer to classify it as a tempora1-y directional sign was 
"not akin to an officer synthesizing the expressive content 
of the sign." Id., at 978. It then 1·emanded for the District 
Court to dete1·mine in the first instance whethe1· the Sign 
Code's distinctions among temp01•ary directional signs, 
political signs, and ideological signs nevertheless consti
tuted a content-based regulation ofspeech. 

On remand, the Distl'ict Court granted summa1y judg
ment in favor of the Town. The Court of Appeals again 
affirmed, holding that the Code's sign categories were 
content neutral. The court concluded that "the distinc
tions between Tempora1-y Directional Signs, Ideological 
Signs, and Political Signs ... are based on objective fac
tors 1•elevant to Gilbert's creation of the specific exemption 
from the permit requirement and do not othe1'Wise consider 
the substance of the sign." 707 F. 3d 1057, 1069 (CA9 
2013). Relying on this Court's decision in Hill v. Colorado, 
530 U. S. 703 (2000), the Court of Appeals concluded that 
the Sign Code is content neutral. 707 F. 3d, at 1071-1072. 
As the court explained, "Gilbert did not adopt its mgula
tion of speech because it disagreed with the message 
conveyed" and its "interests in regulat[ing] temporary 
signs are unrelated to the content of the sign." Ibid. Accord
ingly, the court believed that the Code was "content
neutral as that term [has been] defined by the Supreme 
CoUl't." Id., at 1071. In light of that determination, it 
applied a lowe1· level of scrutiny to the Sign Code and 
concluded that the law did not violate the First Amend
ment. Id., at 1073-1076. 

We granted certiomri, 573 U. S. _ (2014), and now 
reverse. 

167 



6 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Court 

II 
A 

The First Amendment, applicable to the States through 
the Fourteenth Amendment, prohibits the enactment of 
laws "abridging the freedom of speech." U.S. Canst., 
Arndt. 1. Unde1· that Clause, a gove1·nni.ent, including a 
municipal government vested with state authority, "has no 
power to restrict expression because of its message, its 
ideas, its subject matter, or its content." Police Dept. of 
Chicago v. Mosley, 408 U. S. 92, 95 (1972). Content-based 
laws-those that target speech based on its communica
tive coilt.ent-are pres~1mptively unconstitutional and may 
be justified only if the government proves that they are 
nanowly tailored to se1-ve compelling state interests. 
R. A. V. v. St. Pa!tl, 505 U. S. 377, 395 (1992); Simon & 
Schltste1~ Inc. v. Members of N. Y. State Crime Victims 
Bd., 502 U.S. 105, 115, 118 (1991). 

Government 1·egulation of speech is content based if a 
law applies to particular speech because of the topic dis
cussed o1· the idea m· message expressed. E.g., Sorrell v. 
IMS Health, Inc., 564 U. S. _, _-_ (2011) (slip op., at 
8-9); Carey v. Brown, 447 U.S. 455, 462 (1980); Mosley, 
s!tpra., at 95. This commonsense meaning of the phrase 
"content based" requires a court to consider whether a 
regulation of speech "on its face" draws distinctions based 
on the message a speaker conveys. Sorrell, supra, at _ 
(slip op., at 8). Some facial distinctions based on a mes
sage are obvious, defining regulated speech by particular 
subject matter, and others are more subtle, defining regu
lated speech by its function or purpose. Both are distinc
tions drawn based on the message a speaker conveys, and, 
therefore, are subject to strict scrutiny. 

Our precedents have also recognized a separate and 
additional category of laws that, though facially content 
neutral, will be considered content-based 1·egulations of 
speech: laws that cannot be "~ustified without reference to 

168 



Cite as: 576 U. S. _ (2015) 7 

Opinion of the Court 

the content of the t·egulated speech,"' or that were adopted 
by the govemment "because of disagreement with the 
message [the speech] conveys," Ward v. Rock Against 
Racism, 491 U. S. 781, 791 (1989). Those laws, like those 
that are content based on their face, must also satisfy 
strict scrutiny. 

B 
The Town's Sign Code is content based on its face. It 

defines "Temporary Directional Signs" on the basis of 
whether a sign conveys the message of directing the public 
to church or some other "qualifying event." Glossat·y 25. 
It defines "Political Signs" on the basis of whether a sign's 
message is "designed to influence the outcome of an elec
tion." !d., at 24. And it defines "Ideological Signs" on the 
basis of whether a sign "communicat[es] a message or 
ideas" that do not fit within the Code's other categories. 
!d., at 23. It then subjects each of these categories to 
different restrictions. 

The· restrictions in the Sign Code that apply to any 
given sign thus depend entirely on the communicative 
content of the sign. If a sign informs its t·eader of the time 
and place a book club will discuss John Locke's Two Trea
tises of Govemment, that sign will be tt·eated differently 
from a sign expressing the view that one should vote for 
one of Locke's followers in an upcoming election, and both 
signs will be treated differently n:om a sign expressing an 
ideological view rooted in Locke's them·y of government. 
More to the point, the Church's signs inviting people to 
attend its worship set·vices are treated differently from 
signs conveying other types of ideas. On its face, the Sign 
Code is a content-based regulation of speech. We thus 
have n<i need to consider the government's justifications or 
purposes for enacting the Code to determine whether it is 
subject to strict scrutiny. 

169 I 



8 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Court 

c 
In reaching the contrary conclusion, the Court of Ap

peals offered several theories to explain why the Town's 
Sign Code should be deemed content neutral. None is 
persuasive. 

1 

The Court of Appeals first determined that the Sign 
Code was content neutral because the Town "did not adopt 
its 1·egulation of speech [based on] disagree[ment] with the 
message conveyed," and its justifications for regulating 
tempora1·y directional signs we1·e "unrelated to the content 
of the sign." 707 F. 3d, at 1071-1072. In its brief to this 
Comt, the United States similarly contends that a sign 
regulation is content neutral-even if it expressly draws 
distinctions based on the sign's communicative content-if 
those distinctions can be "'justified without reference to 
the content of the regulated speech."' Brief for United 
States as Amicus Curiae 20, 24 (quoting Ward, supra, at 
791; emphasis deleted). 

But this analysis skips the crucial first step in the 
content-neutrality analysis: determining whether the law 
is content neutral on its face. A law that is content based 
on its face is subject to stl"ict scrutiny rega1·dless · of the 
government's benign motive, content-neutral justification, 
or lack of "animus toward the ideas contained" in the 
regulated speech. Cincinnati v. Discovery Network, Inc., 
507 U. S. 410, 429 (1993). We have thus made clear that 
"'[i]llicit legislative intent is not the ·sine qua non of a 
violation of the First Amendment,"' and a party opposing 
the government "need adduce 'no evidence of an imprope1· 
censm·ial motive."' Simon & Schuste1~ supm, at 117. 
Although "a content•based purpose may be sufficient in 
certain circumstances to show that a regulation is content 
based, it is not necessary." Turner Broadcasting System, 
Inc. v. FCC, 512 U. S. 622, 642 (1994). In other words, an 

170 



Cite as: 576 U. S. _ (2015) 9 

Opinion of the Com·t 

innocuous justification cannot transform a facially content
based law into one that is content neutral. 

That is why we have repeatedly considered whether a 
law is content neutral on its face before tmning to the 
law's justification or purpose. See, e.g., Sorrell, supra, at 
_-_ (slip op ., at 8-9) (statute was content based "on its 
face," and there was also evidence of an impermissible 
legislative motive); United States v. Eichnw.n, 496 U. S. 
310, 315 (1990) ("Although the [statute] contains no ex
plicit content-based limitation on the scope of prohibited 
conduct, it is neve1·theless clear that the Government's 
asse1'ted interest is related to the suppression of free ex
pression" (internal quotation marks omitted)); Members of 
City Cou.ncil of Los Angeles v. Taxpayers for Vincent, 466 
U.S. 789, 804 (1984) ("The text of the ordinance is neu
tral," and "there is not even a hint of bias 01' censorship in 
the· City's enactment or enforcement of this ordinance"); 
Clark v. Community for Creative Non-Violence, 468 U. S. 
288, 293 (1984) (requiring that a facially content-neutral 
ban on camping must be "justified without refe1·ence to the 
content of the regulated speech''); United States v. O'Brien, 
391 U. S. 367, 375, 377 (1968) (noting that the statute "on 
its face deals with conduct having no connection with 
speech;'' but examining whether the "the governmental 
interest is unrelated to the suppression of free expres
sion"). Because strict scrutiny applies either when a law 
is content based on its face 01' when the purpose and justi
fication for the law are content based, a court must evalu
ate each question before it concludes that the law is con
tent neutral and thus subject to a lower level of scrutiny. 

The Court of Appeals and the United States misunder
stand our decision in Ward as suggesting that a govern
ment's purpose is relevant even when a law is content 
based on its face. That is incol'l'ect. Ward had nothing to 
say about facially content-based restrictions because it 
involved a facially content-neutra.l ban on the use, in a 

171 



10 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Court 

city-owned music venue, of sound amplification systems 
not provided by the city. 491 U.S., at 787, and n. 2. In 
that context, we looked to governmental motive, including 
whethet· the government had regulated speech "because of 
disagreement" with its message, and whether the regula- · 
tion was "'justified without reference to the content of the 
speech."' Id., at 791. But Ward's framework "applies only 
if a statute is content neutral." Hill, 530 U.S., at 766 
(KENNEDY, J., dissenting). Its rules thus operate "to pro
tect speech," not "to 1;estrict it." Id., at 765. 

The Fh·st Amendment requires no less. Innocent mo
tives do not elimmate the danger of censorship presented 
by a facially content-based statute, as future government 
officials may one day wield such statutes to suppress 
disfavored speech. That is why the First Amendment 
expressly targets the opet·ation of the laws-i.e., the 
"abridg[ementJ of speech"-rather than merely the mo
tives of those who enacted them. U. S. Const., Arndt. 1. 
'"The vice of content-based legislation ... is not that it is 
always used for invidious, thought-control purposes, but 
that it lends itself to use for those pm-poses."' Hill, supm, 
at 743 (SCALIA, J., dissenting). 

For instance, in NAACP v. Button, 371 U.S. 415 (1963), 
the Court encountered a State's attempt to use a statute 
prohibiting "'improper solicitation"' by attorneys to outlaw 
litigation-t·elated speech of the National Association for 
the Advancement of Colored People. I d., at 438. ·Although 
Button predated our more recent formulations of strict 
scrutiny, the Court rightly rejected the State's claim that 
its interest in the "regulation of professional conduct" 
rendered the statute consistent with the First Amend
ment, observing that "it is no answer ... to say ... that 
the purpose of these regulations was merely to insure high 
professional standards and not to curtail free expression." 
Id., at 438-439. Likewise, one could easily imagine a Sign 

. Code compliance manager who disliked the Church's 

172 



Cite as: 576 U.S._ (2015) 11 

Opinion of the Court 

substantive teachings deploying the Sign Code to make it 
more difficult for the Church to infm·m the public of the 
location of its services. Accm·dingly, we have repeatedly 
"rejected the argument that 'discriminatory ... treatment 
is suspect under the First Amendment only when the 
legislature intends to suppress cel'tain ideas."' Discovery 
Network, 507 U.S., at 429. We do so again today. 

2 

The Court of Appeals next reasoned that the Sign Code 
was content neutral because it "does not mention any idea 
or viewpoin.t, let alone single one out for differen.tial 
treatment." 587 F. 3d, at 977. It reasoned that, for the 
purpose of the Code provision.s, "[i]t makes n.o diffe1·ence 
which can.didate is supported, who sponsors the event, or 
what ideological perspective is asserted." 707 F. 3d, at 
1069. 

The Town seizes on this 1·easoning, insisting that "con
tent based" is a term of art that "should be applied flexi
bly" with the goal of p1•otecting "viewpoints and ideas from 
government censm·ship or favoritism." B1·ief for Respond
ents 22. In the Town's view, a sign regulation that "does 
not censor or favor particula1' viewpoints or ideas" cannot 
be content based. Ibid. The Sign Code allegedly passes 
this test because its treatment of temporary dil·ectional 
signs does not raise any concems that the government is 
"endm·sing or Suppressing 1ideas or viewpoints/" id., at 27~ 
and the provisions for political signs and ideological signs 
"are neutml as to pa1'ticular ideas or viewpoints" within 
those categories. Id., at 37. 

This analysis conflates two distinct but 1·elated limita
tions that the First Amendment places on government 
regulation of speech. Government discrimination among 
viewpoints--or the regulation of speech based on "the 
specific motivating ideology m· the opinion or perspective 
of the speaket"-is a 11more blatant" and "eg1·egious form of 

173 



12 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Com·t 

content discrimination." Rosenberger v. Rector and Visi
tors of Univ. of Va .. , 515 U.S. 819, 829 (1995). But it is 
well established that "It]he First Amendment's hostility to 
content-based regulation extends not only to restrictions 
on particular viewpoints, but also to prohibition of public 
discussion of an entire topic." Consolida.ted Edison Co. of 
N. Y. v. Public Sel'V. Com.m.'n of N. Y., 447 U.S. 530, 537 
(1980). 

Thus, a speech regulation ta1•geted at specific subject 
matte1· is content based even if it does not discriminate 
among viewpoints within that subject matter. Ibid. For 
example, a law banning the use of sound trucks for politi
cal speech-and only political speech-would be a content
based regulation, even if it imposed no limits on the politi
cal viewpoints that could be expressed. See Discovery 
Network, supra, at 428. The Town's Sign Code likewise 
singles out specific subject matter for diffe1·ential treat
ment, even if it does not target viewpoints within that 
subject matter. Ideological messages a1·e given more 
favorable treatment than messages concerning a political 
candidate, which are themselves given more favorable 
treatment than messages announcing an assembly of like
minded individuals. That is a pal'adigmatic example of 
content-based discrimination. 

3 
Finally, the Court of Appeals characte1·ized the Sign 

Code's distinctions as turning on "'the content-neutral 
elements of who is speaking through the sign and whether 
and when an event is occurring."' 707 F. 3d, at 1069. 
That analysis is mistaken on both factual and legal 
grounds. 

To start, the Sign Code's distinctions a1·e not speaker 
based. The 1·estrictions for political, ideological, and tern
porary event signs apply equally no matter who sponsm·s 
them. If a local business, for example, sought to put up 

174 



Cite as: 576 U.S._ (2015) 13 

Opinion of the Court 

signs advertising the Church's meetings, those signs 
would be subject to the same limitations as such signs 
placed by the Church. And if Reed had decided to dis
play signs in support of a particula1· candidate, he could 
have made those signs far lsrger-and kept them up fm· 
far longer-than signs inviting people to attend his 
church services. If the Code's distinctions were truly 
speaker based, both types of signs would receive the same 
treatment. 

In any case, the fact that a distinction is speaker based 
does not, as the Court of Appeals seemed to believe, auto
matically render the distinction content neutral. Because 
"[s]peech restl·ictions based on the identity ofthe speaker 
are all too often sinlply a means to control content," Citi
zens United v. Fedem.l Election Comm'n, 558 U.S. 310, 
340 (2010), we have insisted that "laws favoring some 
speakers over others demand stl·ict scrutiny when the 
legislature's speaker prefe1·ence 1·efl.ects a contsnt prefer
ence," 1\trner, 512 U.S., at 658. Thus, a law limiting the 
content of newspapers, but only newspapers, could not 
evade strict scrutiny sinlply because it could be character
ized as speaker based. Likewise, a content-based law that 
restricted the political speech of all corporations would not 
become content neutral just because. it singled out cm-po
rations as a class of speakers. See Citizens United, s!tpm., 
at 340-341. Characterizing a distinction as speaker based 
is only the beginning-not the end-of the inquiry. 

Nor do the Sign Code's distinctions hinge on "whether 
and when an event is occurring." The Code does not per
mit citizens to post signs on any topic whatsoever within a 
set period leading up to an election, for example. Instead, 
come election time, it requires Town officials to determine 
whether a sign is "designed to influence the outcome of an 
election" (and thus "political") or me1·ely "communicating a 
message Ol' ideas for noncomme1·cial purposes" (and thus 
"ideological"). Glossary 24. That obvious content-based 

175 



14 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Court 

inqun:y does not evade st1ict scrutiny review simply be
cause an event (i.e., an election) is involved. 

And, just as with speaker-based laws, the fact that a 
distinction is event based does not 1•ender it content neu
tral. The Court of Appeals cited no precedent from this 
Court supporting its novel theory of an exception from the 
content-neutrality requirement for event-based laws. As 
we have explained, a speech regulation is content based if 
the law applies to particula•- speech because of the topic 
discussed m· the idea or message expressed. Sup1·a, at 6. 
A regulation that targets a sign because it conveys an idea 
about a specific event is. no less content based than a 
1·egulation that targets a sign because it conveys some 
other idea. He1•e, the Code singles out signs bearing a 
particular message: the time and location of a specific 
event. This type of ordinance may seem like a perfectly 
rational way to regulate signs, but a clear and firm rule 
governmg content neutrality is an essential means of 
protectmg the freedom of speech, even if laws that might 
seem "entirely reasonable, will sometimes be "struck down 
because of theil' content-based nature." City of Ladue v. 
Gilleo, 512 U.S. 43, 60 (1994) (O'Connor, J., concUl'dng). 

III 
Because the Town's Sign Code imposes content-based 

restrictions on speech, those provisions can stand only if 
they survive strict scrutiny, '"which requires the Govern
ment to pmve that the restriction furthe1·s a compelling 
interest and is nanowly tailored to achieve that interest,"' 
Arizona Free Enterprise Clu.b's Fl·eedom Club PAC v. 
Bennett, 564 U. S. _, ·_ (2011) (slip op., at 8) (quoting 
Citizens United, 558 U. S., at 340). Thus, it is the Town's 
burden to demonstrate that the Code's differentiation 
between tempm·ary directional signs and other types of 
signs, such as political signs and ideological signs, furthers 
a compelling governmental interest and is narrowly tai-

176 



Cite as: 576 U.S._ (2015) 15 

Opinion of the Court 

lored to that end. See ibid. 
The Town cannot do so; It has offe1·ed only two govern

mental interests in support of the distinctions the Sign 
Code draws: preserving the Town's aesthetic appeal and 
traffic safety. Assuming for the sake of argument that 
those are compelling governmental interests, the Code's 
distinctions fail as hopelessly underinclusive. 

Starting with the preservation of aesthetics, temporary 
dixectional signs are "no greater an eyesore," Discovery 
Netwo,-k, 507 U. S., at 425, than ideological or political 
ones. Yet the Code allows unlimited proliferation ofla1·ger 
ideological signs while strictly limiting the number, size, 
and duration of smaller directional ones. The Town can
not claim that placing strict limits on temporary direc
tional signs is necessary to beautify the Town while at the 
same time allowing unlimited numbers of other types of 
signs that create the same problem. 

The Town similarly has not shown that limiting tempo
rary directional signs is necessary to eliminate threats. to 
traffic safety, but that limiting other types of signs is not. 
The Town has offered no reason to believe that dil.-ectional 
signs pose a greater threat to safety than do ideological or 
political signs. If anything, a sha1-ply worded ideological 
sign seems more likely to distract a driver than a sign 
directing the public to a nearby church meeting. 

In light of this underinclusiveness, the Town has not 
met its burden to prove that its Sign Code is narrowly 
tailored to ftn·ther a compelling government interest. 
Because a '"law cannot be regarded as protecting an inter
est of the highest m·de1·, and thus as justifymg a re
striction on truthful speech, when it leaves appreciable 
damage to that supposedly vital interest unprohibited,"' 
Repztblican Pa,-ty of Minn. v. White, 536 U.S. 765, 780 
(2002), the Sign Code fails strict scrutiny. 

177 



16 REED u. TOWN OF GILBERT 

Opinion of the Court 

IV 
Our decision today will not prevent governments from 

enacting effective sign laws. The Town asserts that an 
'"absolutist"' content-neutrality l'Ule would render "virtu
ally all distinctions in sign laws ... subject to strict scru
tiny," B1·ief fo1' Respondents 34--35, but that is not the 
case. Not "all distinctions" are subject to stlict scrutiny, 
only content-based ones al'B. Laws that are content neutral 
are instead subject to lesser scrutiny. See Clark, 468 
U.S., at 295, 

The Town has ample content-neutral options available 
to resolve problems with safety and aesthetics, For exam
ple, its current Code 1·egulates many aspects of signs that 
have nothing to do with a sign's message: size, building 
materials, lighting, moving parts, and pm-tability. See, 
e.g., §4.402(R). And on public property, the Town may go 
a long. way toward entirely forbidding the posting of signs, 
so long as it .does so in an evenhanded, content-neutral 
manner. See Taxpayers for Vincent, 466 U.S., at 817 
(upholding content-neutral ban against posting signs on 
public property). Indeed, some lower courts have long 
held that similar content-based sign laws receive strict 
scl'Utiny, ·but there is no evidence that towns in those 
jmisdictions have suffered catastrophic effects. See, e.g., 
Solantic, LLC v. Neptune Beach, 410 F. 3d 1250, 1264-
1269 (CAll 2005) (sign categories similar to the town of 
Gilbert's were content based and subject to strict scru
tiny); Matthews v. Needham, 764 F. 2d 58, 59-60 (CAl 
1985) (law banning political signs but not commercial 
signs was content based and subject to strict scrutiny). 

We acknowledge that a city might reasonably view the 
general regulation of signs as necessary because signs 
"take up space and may obstruct views, distract motorists, 
displace altemative uses fm· land, and pose other problems 
that legitimately call fm· regulation." City of Ladue, 512 
U. S., at 48. At the same time, the p1·esence of certain 

178 



Cite as: 576 U.S._ (2015) 17 

Opinion of the Court 

signs may be essential, both for vehicles and pedestl·ians, 
to guide traffic or to identify hazards and ensure safety. A 
sign ordinance narrowly tailored to the challenges of 
protecting the safety of pedestrians, drive1·s, and passen
gers-such as warning signs marking hazards on p1•ivate 
property, signs directing traffic, or street numbers associ
ated with private houses-well might su1-vive strict scru
tiny. The signs at issue in this case, including political 
and ideological signs and signs for events, are far removed 
from those purposes. As discussed above, they are facially 
content based and are neither justified by traditional 
safety concems nor narrowly tailored. 

* * * 
We reverse the .judgment of the Court of Appeals and 

remand the case for proceedings consistent with this 
opinion. 

It is so orde1·ed. 

179 



Cite as: 576 U.S. _(2015) 

ALITO, J ., concurring 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

No. 13-502 

CLYDE REED, ET AL., PETITIONERS v. TOWN OF 
GILBERT, ARIZONA, ET AL. 

ON WRIT OF CERTIORARI TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF 
APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT 

[June 18, 2015] 

JUSTICE ALITO, with whom JUSTICE KENNEDY and 
JUSTICE SOTOMAYOR join, concurring. 

I join the opinion of the Court but add a few words of 
further explanation. 

As the Court holds, what we have termed "content
based" laws must satisfY strict scrutiny. Content-based 
laws merit· this protection because they present, albeit 
sometimes in a subtler form, the same dangers as laws 
that regulate speech based on viewpoint. Limiting speech 
based on its "topic" or "subject" favors those who do not 
want to disturb the status quo. Such regulations may 
interfere with democratic self-government and the search 
for truth. See Consolidated Edison Co. ofN. Y. v. Public 
Serv. Comm 'n ofN. Y., 447 U.S. 530, 537 (1980). 

As the Court shows, the regulations at issue in this case 
are replete with content-based distinctions, and as a result 
they must satisfY strict scrutiny. This does not mean, 
however, that municipalities are powerless to enact and 
enforce reasonable sign t·egulations. I will not attempt to 
provide anything like a comprehensive list, but here are 
some rules that would not be content based: 

Rules regulating the size of signs. These rules may 
distinguish among signs based on any contentcneutral 
criteria, including any relevant criteria listed below. 

Rules regulating the locations in which signs m·ay be 

180 



2 REED v. TOWN OF GILBERT 

ALITO, J ., concurring 

placed. These rules may distinguish between free-
standing signs and those attached to buildings. 

Rules distinguishing between lighted and unlighted 
signs. 

Rules distinguishing between signs with fixed messages 
and electronic signs with messages that change. 

Rules that distinguish between the placement of signs 
on private and public property. 

Rules distinguishing between the placement of signs on 
commercial and residential property. 

Rules distinguishing between on-premises an.d off
premises signs. 

Rules restricting the total number of signs allowed per 
mile of roadway. 

Rules imposing time restrictions on signs advertising a 
one-time event. Rules of this nature do not discriminate 
based on topic or subject and are akin to rules restricting 
the times within which oral speech or music is allowed.* 

In addition to regulating signs put up by private actors, 
government entities may also erect their own signs con
sistent with the principles that allow governmental 
speech. See Pleasant Grove City v. Summum, 555 U. S. 
460, 467-469 (2009). They may put up all manner of signs 
to promote safety, as well as directional signs and signs 
pointing out historic sites and scenic spots. 

Properly understood, today's decision will not prevent 
cities from regulating signs in a way that fully protects 
public safety and serves legitimate esthetic objectives. 

*Of course, content-neutral restrictions on speech are not necessarily 
consistent with the First Amendment. Time, place, and manner 
restrictions "must be narrowly tailored to serve the government's 
legitimate, content-neutral interests." Ward v. Rock Against Racism, 
491 U.S. 781, 798 (1989). But they need not meet the high standard 
imposed on viewpoint- and content-based restrictions. 

181 



Cite as: 576 U.S. _(2015) 

BREYER, J ., concurring in judgment 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

No. 13-502 

CLYDE REED, ET AL., PETITIONERS v. TOWN OF 
GILBERT, ARIZONA, ET AL. 

ON WRIT OF CERTIORARI TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF 
AFPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT 

[June 18, 2015] 

JUSTICE BREYER, concurring in the judgment. 

I join JUSTICE KAGAN's separate opinion. Like JUSTICE 
KAGAN I believe that categories alone cannot satisfactorily 
resolve the legal problem before us. The First Amendment 
requires greater judicial sensitivity both to the Amend
ment's expressive objectives and to the public's legitimate 
need for regulation than a simple recitation of categories, 
such as "content discrimination" and "strict scrutiny," 
would permit. In my view, the category "content discrimi
nation" is better considered in many contexts, including 
here, as a rule of thumb, rather than as an automatic 
"strict scrutiny" trigger, leading to almost certain legal 
condemnation. 

To use content discrimination to trigger strict scrutiny 
sometimes makes perfect sense. There are cases in which 
the Court has found content discrimination an unconstitu
tional method for suppressing a viewpoint. E.g., Rosen
berger v. Rector and Visitors ofUniv. ofVa., 515 U.S. 819, 
828-829 (1995); see also Boos v. Barry, 485 U. S. 312, 318-
319 (1988) (plurality opinion) (applying ·strict scrutiny 
where the line between subject matter and viewpoint was 
not obvious). And there are cases where the Court has 
found content discrimination to reveal that rules govern
ing a traditional public forum are, in fact, not a neutral 
way of fairly managing the forum in the interest of all 

182 



2 REED v. TOWN OF GILBERT 

BRE'iER, J ., concurring in judgment 

speakers. Police Dept. of Chicago v. Mosley, 408 U.S. 92, 
96 (!972) (''Once a forum is opened up to assembly or 
speaking by some groups, government may not prohibit 
others from assembling or speaking on the basis of what 
they intend to say"). In these types of cases, strict scru
tiny is often appropriate, and content discrimination has 
thus served a useful purpose. · 

But content discrimination, while helping courts to 
identify unconstitutional suppression of expression, can
not and should not always trigger strict scrutiny. To say 
that it is not an automatic "strict scrutiny" trigger is not to 
argue against that concept's use. I readily concede, for 
example, that content discrimination, as a conceptual tool, 
can sometimes reveal weaknesses in the government's 
rationale for a rule that limits speech. If, for example, a 
city looks to litter prevention as the rationale for a prohi
bition against placing newsracks dispensing free adver
tisements on public property, why does it exempt other 
newsracks causing similar litter? Cf. Cincinnati v. Dis
covery Network, Inc., 507 U.S. 410 (1993). I also concede 
that, whenever government disfavors one kirid of speech, 
it places that speech at a disadvantage, potentially inter
fering with the fi·ee marketplace of ideas and with an 
individual's ability to express thoughts and ideas that can 
help that individual determine the kind of society in which 
he wishes to live, help shape that society, and help define 
his place within it. 

Nonetheless, in these latter instances to use the pres
ence of content discrimination automatically to trigger 
strict scrutiny and thereby call into play a strong pre
sumption. against constitutionality goes too far. That is 
because virtually all government activities involve speech, 
many of which involve the regulation of speech. Regula
tory programs almost always require content discrimination. 
And to hold that such content discrimination triggers 
strict scrutiny is to write a recipe for judicial management 

183 



Cite as: 576 U.S. ~(2015) 3 

BREYER, J ., concurring in judgment 

of ordinary government regulatory activity. 
Consider a few examples of speech regulated by gov

ernment that inevitably involve content discrimination, 
but where a strong presumption against constitutionality 
has no place. Consider governmental regulation of securi
ties, e.g., IS U.S. C. §781 (requirements for content that 
must be included in a registration statement); of energy 
conservation labeling-practices, e.g., 42 U.S. C. §6294 
(requirements for content that must be included on labels 
of certain consumer electronics); ofprescl'iption drugs, e.g., 
21 U.S. C. §353(b)(4)(A) (requiring a prescription drug 
label to bear the symbol "Rx only"); of doctor-patient confi
dentiality, e.g., 38 U.S. C. §7332 (requiring confidentiality 
of certain medical records, but allowing a physician to 
disclose that the patient has HIV to the patienf's spouse or 
sexual partner); of income tax statements, e.g., 26 U.S. C. 
§6039F (requiring taxpayers to furnish information about 
foreign gifts received if the aggregate amount exceeds 
$1 0,000); of commercial airplane briefings, e.g., 14 CPR 
§136.7 (2015) (requiring pilots to ensure that each passen
ger has been briefed on flight procedures, such as seatbelt 
fastening); of signs at petting zoos, e.g., N.Y. Gen. Bus. 
Law Ann. §399-ff(3) (West Cum. Supp. 2015) (requiring 
petting zoos to post a sign at every exit '"strongly recom
mend[ing) that persons wash their hands upon exiting the 
petting zoo area,); and·so on. 

Nor can the majority avoid the application of strict 
scrutiny to all sorts of justifiable governmental regulations 
by relying on this Court's many subcategories and excep
tions to the rule. The Court has said, for example, that we 
should apply less strict standards to "commercial speech." 
Central Hudson Gas & Elec. Corp. v. Public Service 
Comm'n of N. Y., 447 U.S. 557, 562-563 (1980). But 
I have great concetn that many justifiable instances 
of '~content~based" regulation are noncommercial. And, 
worse than that, the Court has applied the heightened 



4 REED v. TOWN OF GILBERT 

BREYER, J ., concuning in judgment 

"st~ict scrutiny" standard even in cases where the less 
stringent "commercial speech" standard was appropriate. 
See Sorrell v. IMS Health Inc., 564 U.S. _, _ (2011) 
(BREYER, J ., dissenting) (slip op., at _ ). The Court has 
also said that "government speech" escapes First Amend
ment strictures. See Rust v. Sullivan, 500 U.S. 173, 193-
194 (I 991 ). But regulated speech is typically private 
speech, not government speech. Further, the Court has 
said that, "[w]hen the basis for the content discrimination 
consists entirely of the very reason the entire class of 
speech at issue is proscribable, no significant danger of 
idea or viewpoint discrimination exists." R. A. V. v. 
St. Paul, 505 U.S. 377, 388 (1992). But this exception 
accounts for only a few of the instances in which content 
discrimination is readily justifiable. 

I recognize that the Court could escape the problem by 
watering down the force of the presumption against con
stitutionality that "strict scrutiny" normally carries with 
it. But, in my view, doing so will weaken the First 
Amendment's protection in instances where "strict scru
tiny" should apply in full force. 

The better approach is to generally treat content dis
crimination as a strong reason weighing against the con
stitutionality of a rule where a traditional puhlic forum, or 
where viewpoint discrimination, is threatened, but else
where treat it as a rule of thumb, finding it a helpful, but 
not determinative legal tool, in an appropriate case, to 
determine the strength of a justification. I would use 
content discrimination as a supplement to a more basic 
analysis, which, tracking most of our First Amendment 
cases, asks whether the regulation at issue works harm to 
First Amendment interests that is dispi·oportionate in 
light oft he relevant regulatory objectives. Answering this 
question requires examining the seriousness of the harm 
to speech, the importance of the countervailing objectives, 
the extent to which the law will achieve those objectives, 

185 i 



Cite as: 576 U.S._ (2015) 5 

BREYER, J ., concurring in judgment 

and whether there are other, less restrictive ways of doing 
so. See, e.g., United States v. Alvarez, 567 U.S._,_
- (2012) (BREYER, J ., concurring in judgment) (slip op., 
at 1-3); Nixon v. Shrink Missouri Government PAC, 528 
U.S. 377, 400-403 (2000) (BREYER, J ., concurring). Ad
mittedly, this approach does not have the simplicity of a 
mechanical use of categories. But it does permit the gov
ernment to regulate speech in numerous instances where 
the voters have authorized the government to regulate 
and where courts should hesitate to substitute judicial 
judgment for that of administrators. 

Here, regulation of signage along the roadside, for pur
poses of safety and beautification is at issue. There is no 
traditional public forum nor do I find any general effort to 
censor a particular viewpoint. Consequently, the specific 
regulation at issue does not warrant "strict scrutiny." 
Nonetheless, for the reasons that JUSTICE KAGAN sets 
forth, I believe that the Town of Gilbert's regulatory rules 
violate the First Amendment. I consequently concur in 
the Court's judgment only. 

186 



Cite as: 576 U. S._(2015) 

KAGAN,J ., concurring in judgment 

SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES 

No. 13-502 

CLYDE REED, ET AL., PETITIONERS v. TOWN OF 
GILBERT, ARIZONA, ET AL. 

ON WRIT OF CERTIORARI TO THE UNITED STATES COURT OF 
APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT 

[June 18, 2015) 

JUSTICE KAGAN, with whom JUSTICE GINSBURG and 
JUSTICE BREYER join, concurring in the judgment. 

Countless cities and towns across America have adopted 
ordinances regulating the posting of signs, while exempt
ing certain categories of signs based on their subject mat
ter. For example, some municipalities generally prohibit 
illuminated signs in residential neighborhoods, but lift 
that ban for signs that identify the address of a home or 
the name of its owner or occupant. See, e.g., City of Truth 
or Consequences, N. M., Code of Ordinances, ch. 16, Art. 
Xlll, §§I 1-13-2.3, ll-13-2.9(H)(4) (2014). In other mu
nicipalities, safety signs such as "Blind Pedestrian Cross
ing" and ''Hidden Driveway" can be posted without a 
permit, even as other permanent signs require one. See, 
e.g., Code of Athens-Clarke County, Ga., Pt. III, §7-4-7(1) 
(1993). Elsewhere, historic site markers-for example, 
"George Washington Slept Here''-are also exempt from 
general regulations. See, e.g., Dover, Del., Code of Ordi
nances, Pt. II, App. B, Art. 5, §4.5(F) (2012). And simi
larly, the federal Highway Beautification Act limits signs 
along interstate highways unless, for instance, they direct 
travelers to ''scenic and historical attractions" or advertise 
free coffee. See 23 U.S. C. §§13l{b), (c)(!), (c)(5). 

Given the Court's analysis, many sign ordinances ofthat 
kind are now in jeopardy. See ante, at 14 (acknowledging 

187 



2 REED v. TOWN OF GILBERT 

KAGAN, J ., concurring in judgment 

that "entirely reasonable" sign laws "will sometimes be 
struck down" under its approach (internal quotation 
marks omitted)). Says the majority: When laws "single[] 
out specific subject matter," they are "facially content 
based"; and when they are facially content based, they are 
automatically subject to strict scrutiny. Ante, at 12, 16-
17 .. And although the majority holds out hope that some 
sign laws with subject-matter exemptions "might survive" 
that stringent review, ante, at 17, the likelihood is that 
most will be struck down. After aU, it is the "rare case[] in 
which a speech restriction withstands strict scrutiny." 
WiUiams-Yulee v. Florida Bar, 575 U. S. _, _ (2015) 
(slip op., at 9). To clear that high bar, the government 
must show that a content-based distinction "is necessary 
to serve a compelling state interest and is narrowly drawn 
to achieve that end." Arkansas Writers' Project, Inc. v. 
Ragland, 481 U.S. 221, 231 (1987). So on the majority's 
view, courts would· have to determine that a town has a 
compelling interest in informing passersby where George 
Washington slept. And likewise, courts would have to find 
that a town has no other way to prevent hidden-driveway 
mishaps than by speciaUy treating hidden-driveway signs. 
(Well-placed speed bumps? Lower speed limits? Or how 
about just a ban on hidden driveways?) The conse
quence-unless courts water down strict scrutiny to some
thing unrecognizable-is that our communities will find 
themselves in an unenviable bind: They will have to either 
repeal the exemptions that allow for helpful signs on 
streets and sidewalks, or else lift their sign restrictions 
altogether and resign themselves to the resulting clutter.* 

*Even in trying (commendably) to limit today's decision, JUSTICE 
Auro's concurrence highlights its far~reaching effects. According to 
JUSTICE Aura, the majority does not subject to strict scrutiny regula
tions of "signs advertising a one-time event." Ante, at 2 (ALITO, J ., 
concurring). But of course it does. On the majority's view, a law with 
an exception for such signs "singles out specific subject matter for 

188 



Citeas: 576U.S._(2015) 3 

KAGAN, J ., concurring in judgment 

Although the majority insists that applying strict scru
tiny to all such ordinances is "essential" to protecting First 
Amendment freedoms, ante, at 14, I find it challenging to 
understand .why that is so. This Com·t's decisions articu
late two important and related reasons for subjecting 
content-based speech regulations to the most exacting 
standard of review. The first is 'to preserve an uninhib
ited marketplace of ideas in- which truth will ultimately 
prevail." McCullen v. Coakley, 573 U. S. __, _-_ 
(2014) (slip op., at 8-9) (inte!·nal quotation marks omit
ted). The second is to ensure that the government has not 
re_gulated speech "based on hostility-or favoritism
towards the underlying message expressed." R. A. V. v. 
St. Paul, 505 U.S. 377, 386 (1992). Yet the subject-matter 
exemptions included in many sign ordinances do not im
plicate those concerns. Allowing residents, say, to install a 
light bulb over "name and address" signs but no others 
does not distort the marketplace of ideas. Nor does that 
different treatment give rise to an inference of impermis
sible government motive. 

We apply strict scrutiny to facially content-based regu
lations of speech, in keeping with the rationales just de
scribed, when there is any "realistic possibility that official 
suppression of ideas is afoot." Davenport v. Washington 
Ed. Assn., 551 U.S. 177, 189 (2007) (quoting R. A. V., 505 
U.S., at 390). That is always the case when the regula
tion facially differentiates on the basis of viewpoint. See 
Rosenberger v. Rector and Visitors of Univ. of Va., 515 
U.S. 819, 829 (1995). It is also the case (except in non
public or limited public forums) when a law restricts "dis
cussion of an entire topic" in public debate. Consolidated 

differential treatment" and "defin[es] regulated speech by particular 
subject matter." Ante, at 6; 12 (majority opinion). Indeed, the precise 
reason the· majority applies strict scrutiny here is tha·t "the Code 
singles out signs bearing a particular message: the time and location of 
a specific event." Ante, at 14. 

189 



4 REED v. TOWN OF GILBERT 

KAGAN, J ., concurring in judgment 

Edison Co. of N.Y. v. Public Serv. Comm 'n of N.Y., 447 
U.S. 530, 537, 539-540 (1980) (invalidating a limitation 
on speech about nuclear power). We have stated that "[i]f 
the marketplace of ideas is to remain free and open, gov
ernments must not be allowed to choose 'which issues are 
worth discussing or debating."' !d., at537-538 (quoting 
Police Dept. of Chicago v. Mosley, 408 U.S. 92,96 (1972)). 
And we have recognized that such subject-matter re
strictions, even though viewpoint-neutral on their face, 
may "suggest[] an attempt to give one side of a debatable 
public question an advantage in expressing its views to 
the people." First Nat. Bank of Boston v. Bellotti, 435 
U.S. 765, 785 (1978); accord, ante, at I (ALITO, J ., concur' 
ring) (limiting all speech on one topic "favors those who do 
not want to disturb the status quo"). Subject-matter 
regulation, in other words, may·have the intent or effect of 
favoring some ideas over others. When that is realistically 
possible-when the restriction "raises the specter that the 
Government may effectively drive certain ideas or view
points from the marketplace"-we insist that the law pass 
the most demanding constitutional test. R. A. V., 505 
U.S., at 387 (quoting Simon & Schuster, Inc. v. Members 
of N. Y. State Crime Victims Bd., 502 U.S. 105, 116 
(1991)). 

But when that is not realistically possible, we may do 
well to relax our guard so that "entirely reasonable" laws 
imperiled by strict scrutiny can survive. Ante, at 14. This 
point is by no means new. Our concern with content
based regulation arises from the fear that the government 
will skew the public's debate of ideas-so when 'that risk 
is inconsequential, ... strict scrutiny is u·nwarranted." 
Davenport, 551 U.S., at 188; seeR. A. V., 505 U.S., at 388 
(approving certain content-based distinctions when there 
is "no significant danger of idea or viewpoint discrimina
tion"). To do its intended work, of course, the category of 
content-based regulation triggering strict scrutiny must 

190 



Cite as: 576 U.S. _(2015) 5 

KAGAN,.J ., concurring in judgment 

sweep more broadly than the actual harm; that category 
exists to create a buffer zone guaranteeing that the gov
ernment cannot favor or disfavor certain viewp.oints. But 
that buffer zone need not extend forever. We can adminis
ter our content-regulation doctrine with a dose of common 
sense, so as to leave standing laws that in no way impli
cate its intended function. 

And indeed we have done just that: Our cases have been 
far less rigid than the majority admits in applying strict 
scrutiny to facially content-based laws-including in cases 
just like this one. See Davenport, 551 U.S., at 188 (noting 
that ''we have identified numerous situations in which 
[the] ris.k" attached to content-based ·laws is "attenuated'). 
In Members of City Council of Los Angeles v. Taxpayers for 
Vincent, 466 U.S. 789 (1984), the Court declined to apply 
strict scrutiny to a municipal ordinance that exempted 
address numbers and markers commemorating "historical, 
cultut"a!, or artistic event[s]" from a generally applicable 
limit on sidewalk signs. !d., at 792, n. I (listing exemp
tions); see id., at 804-810 (upholding ordinance under 
intermediate scrutiny). After all, we explained, the law's 
enactment and enforcement revealed ''not even a hint of 
bias or censorship." !d., at 804; see also Renton v. Play
time Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41, 48 (1986) (applying 
intermediate scrutiny to a zoning law that facially distin
guished among movie theaters based on content because it 
was "designed to prevent crime, protect the city~ retail 
trade, [and] maintain property values ... , not to suppress 
the expression of unpopular views''· And another decision 
involving a similar law provides an alternative model. In 
City of Ladue v. Gill eo, 512 U. S. 43 (1994), the Court 
assumed arguendo that a sign ordinance's exceptions for 
address signs, safety signs, and for-sale signs in residen
tial areas did not trigger strict scrutiny. See id., at 46-47, 
and n. 6 (listing exemptions); id., at 53 (noting this as
sumption). We did not need to, and so did not, .decide the 

191 



6 REED v. TOWN OF GILBERT 

KAGAN, J ., concurring in judgment 

level-of-scrutiny question because the law's breadth made 
it un.constitutional under any standard. 

The majority could easily have taken Ladue's tack here. 
The Town of Gilbert's defense of its sign ordinance-most 
notably, the law's distinctions between directional signs 
and others-does not pass strict scrutiny, or intermediate 
scrutiny, or even the laugh test. See ante, at 14-15 (dis
cussing those distinctions). The Town, for example, pro
vides no reason at all for prohibiting more than four direc
tional signs on a property while phtcing no limits on the 
number of other types of signs. See Gilbert, Ariz., Land 
Development Code, ch. I, §§4.402(J), (P)(2) (2014). Simi
larly, the Town offers no coherent justification for restrict
ing the size of directional signs to 6 square feet while 
allowing other signs to reach 20 square feet. See 
§§4.402(J), (P)(l). The best the Town could come up with 
at oral argument was that directional signs "need to be 
smaller because they need to guide travelers along a 
route." Tr. of Oral Arg. 40. Why exactly a smaller sign 
better helps travelers get to where they are going is left a 
mystery. The absence of any sensible basis for these and 
other distinctions dooms the Town's ordinan·ce under even 
the intermediate scrutiny that the Court typically applies 
to 'time, place, or manner" speech regulations. Accordingly, 
there is no need to decide in this case whether strict sent
tiny applies to every sign ordinance in every town across 
this country containing a subject-matter exemption. 

I suspect this Court and others will regret the majority's 
insistence today on answering that question in the affirm
ative. As the years go by, courts will discover that thou
sands of towns have such ordinances, many of them "en
tirely reasonable." Ante, at 14. And as the challenges to 
them mount, courts will have to invalidate one after the 
other. (This Court may soon find itself a veritable Su
preme Board of Sign Review.) And courts will strike down 
those democratically enacted local laws even though no 

192 



Cite as: 576 U.S. _(2015) 7 

KAGAN, J ., concurring in judgment 

one~ertainly not the majority-has ever explained why 
the vindication of First Amendment values requires that 
result. Because I see no reason why such an easy case 
calls for us to cast a constitutional pall on reasonable 
regulations quite unlike the law before us, I concur only in 
the judgment. 

193 


	7-21-2015 Agenda Packet 1
	7-21-2015 Agenda Packet 2

